THIS CIRCULAR IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION.

Shareholders of Salcon Berhad (“Salcon” or the “Company”) should rely on their own evaluation to assess the merits
and risks of the Proposed Disposals (as defined herein). If you are in any doubt as to the course of action you should
take, you should consult your stockbroker, bank manager, solicitor, accountant or any other professional adviser
immediately.

Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad takes no responsibility for the contents of this Circular, makes no representation as
to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from
or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this Circular.
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Hong Leong Investment Bank Berhad (10209-W)

(A Participating Organisation of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad)
(A Trading Participant of Bursa Malaysia Derivatives Berhad)

The notice of Extraordinary General Meeting (“EGM”) to be held at Victorian Ballroom, Level 1, Holiday Villa Subang,
9 Jalan SS12/1, 47500 Subang Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan on Wednesday, 27 November 2013 at 9.30 a.m. or any
adjournment thereof, together with the Proxy Form are enclosed in this Circular.

As a shareholder, you can appoint a proxy or proxies to attend and vote on your behalf. You must complete and
deposit the Proxy Form at the Registered Office of the Company at 15th Floor, Menara Summit, Persiaran Kewajipan,
USJ 1, 47600 UEP Subang Jaya not later than 48 hours before the time set for the EGM or any adjournment thereof.
You are not precluded from attending and votlng in person at the EGM should you wish to do so subsequent to the
lodging of the Proxy Form.

Last date and time for lodging the Proxy Form :  Monday, 25 November 2013, at 9.30 a.m.
Date and time of the EGM . Wednesday, 27 November 2013, at 9.30 a.m.

This Circular is dated 12 November 2013




DEFINITIONS

Except where the context otherwise requires, the foliowing definitions shall apply throughout this

Circular:

“Act”

“BEWG" or “Purchaser”
“Board”

“Bursa Securities”
“Changle Raw Water”

“Circular”

"Completion Date-A"

“Completion Date-B”

“Completion Date”

*Completion Management
Accounts”

"Concession(s)”

“Deqing Darco”
“Deqing Huanzhong”

“Disposal Consideration”

“EGM"
“EMIF"
“EPS"
“FPE"
“FYE"
“GDV"

“Globe Industrial”

The Companies Act, 1965

Beijing Enterprises Water Group Limited
Board of Directors of Salcon

Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad

Changle Salcon Raw Water Company Limited

This circular dated 12 November 2013 to the shareholders of
Salcon

3" pusiness day after the date of fulfilment or waiver of the
Conditions-A as defined in Section 2.3.2 of this Circular (other
than the completion of the SPA-B) or such other date the parties
may agree in writing

3" business day after the date of fulfiiment or waiver of the

Conditions-B as defined in Section 2.4.2 of this Circular or such
other date the parties may agree in writing

Completion Date-A and Completion Date-B, collectively

Management accounts of all the Target Companies-A and Target
Companies-B as the last date of the month immediately
preceding the Completion Date

Concession(s} held by Salcon in the PRC via certain of its
subsidiaries relating to the provision of services for water
treatment, sewage ftreatment, raw water supply/transfer and
treated water supply/transfer

Deging Darco Producing Water Company Limited
Deging Huanzhong Producing Water Company Limited

A cash c¢onsideration of RMBS$55.0 million (equivalent to
approximately RM494 .88 million) for the disposal of the Target
Companies pursuant to the SPAs, subject to adjustments in
accordance with the terms of the SPA-A and SPA-B

Extraordinary General Meeting

Challenger Emerging Market Infrastructure Fund Pte. Ltd
Earnings per Share

Financial period ended

Financial year ended/ending, as the case may be

Gross development value

Globe Industrial Technology Company Limited



DEFINITIONS (Cont’d)

“Haining Water”
“HLIB"

“Jiangsu Water”

“ AT
“LATMI”

“LBT"

“Linyi Runcheng Water”
“Linyi Water”

“Linyi Water Supply Facilities”

HLPDu

"LPS”

“Main Market Listing
Requirements”

‘MLD”

“NA”

“Nan An Water”
‘PAT"

"PATML”

“PBT”

“PRC”

“Proposed Disposals”

J]

“Salcon” or the “Company’

“Salcon Share(s)” or
“Share(s)”

“Salcon Darco”

"Salcon Fujian”

“Salcon Group” or "Group”
"Salcon Jiangsu”

“Salcon Linyi”

Haining Salcon Water Company Limited
Hong Leong Investment Bank Berhad

Jiangsu Salcon Water & Environmental Development Company
Limited

Loss after taxation

Loss after taxation and minority interest

Loss before taxation

Linyi Runcheng Water Supply Project Company Limited
Linyi Salcon Water Company Limited

Linyi Salcon Water Suppiy Facilities Company Limited

31 October 2013, being the latest practicable date before the
printing of this Circular

Loss per share

Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Securities

Million litre per day

Net assets

Nan An Salcon Water Company Limited

Profit after taxation

Profit after taxation and minority interest

Profit before taxation

People's Republic of China

Proposed disposals of the entire equity interests held in Salcon

Darco, Salcon Jiangsu, Salcon Fujian, Salcon Zhejiang, Salcon
Linyi and Salcon Shandong at the Disposal Consideration

Saicon Berhad

Ordinary share(s) of RM0.50 each in Salcon

Salcon Darco Environmental Pte Ltd
Salcon Fujian (HK) Limited

Salcon and its subsidiary companies
Salcon Jiangsu (HK) Limited

Saleon Linyi (HK} Limited



DEFINITIONS (Cont'd}

“Salcon Shandong”
“Salcon Water”

“Salcon Zhejiang”
“Shandong Changle Water”

“SPA-A"

“SPA-B"

“SPAs"

“Target Companies”

“Target Companies-A"

“Target Companies-B”

“Us"
“WWTP”

“Yizheng Wastewater”
Currency

“HKD”

“RM" and “sen”
“‘RMB”

“SGD"

“Usp*

Salcon Shandong (HK} Limited

Salcon Water (Asia) Limited

Salcon Zhejiang (HK) Limited

Shandong Changle Salcon Water Company Limited

Conditional sale and purchase agreement dated 12 September
2013 between Salcon and BEWG for the proposed disposals by
Salcon of the entire equity interests held in Salcon Darco and
Salcon Jiangsu to BEWG

Conditional sale and purchase agreement dated 12 September
2013 between Salcon, Salcon Water, a 60%-owned subsidiary of
Salcon and BEWG for the proposed disposais by Salcon and
Salcon Water of the entire equity interests held in Salcon Fujian,
Salcon Zhejiang, Salcon Linyi and Salcon Shandong to BEWG
The SPA-A and SPA-B, collectively

Comprising collectively Salcon Darco, Salcon Jiangsu, Salcon
Fujian, Salcon Zhejiang, Salcon Linyi and Salcon Shandong

Comprising collectively Salcon Darco and Saicon Jiangsu and its
respective subsidiaries

Comprising collectively Salcon Fujian, Salcon Zhejiang, Salcon
Linyi and Salcon Shandong and its respective subsidiaries

United States of America
Wastewater treatment plant

Yizheng Salcon Wastewater Treatment Company Limited

Hong Kong Dollar

Ringgit Malaysia and sen, respectively
Chinese Renminbi

Singapore Dollar

US Dollar

In this Circular, translation of RMB amount to RM amount have been made according to the middle
rate as published/made available by Bank Negara Malaysia at 12:00 pm on LPD, unless otherwise
indicated. Transiation of RMB amount to RM amount was made at RMB1.00:RM0.5182.

All references to “our Company” and “the Company” in this Circular are to Salcon. References to "our
Group” and “the Group” are to our Company and our subsidiaries, collectively. References to "we”,

“us”, “our” and “ourselves” are to our Company and save where the context otherwise requires, shall
include our subsidiaries.

Al references to “you” in this Circular are addressing the shareholders of Salcon who are entitled to
attend and vote at our forthcoming EGM.



DEFINITIONS (Cont’d)

Words denoting the singular shall, where applicable, include the plural and vice versa. Words denoting
the masculine gender shall, where applicable, include the feminine andfor neuter genders, and vice
versa. Any reference to persons shall include a corporation, unless otherwise specified.

Any reference in this Circular to any legislation is a reference to that legislation as for the time being
amended or re-enacted. Any reference to a time of a day in this Circular shall be a reference to
Malaysian time, unless otherwise specified.
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(Company No.: 593796-T)
(Incorporated in Malaysia under the Companies Act, 1965)

Registered Office:
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Persiaran Kewajipan, USJ 1
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Malaysia
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Dato’ Seri (Dr.) Goh Eng Toon (Chairman, Non-Independent Non-Executive Director)
Tan Sri Dato’ Tee Tiam Lee (Executive Deputy Chairman)

Dato’ Leong Kok Wah (Executive Director)

Dato’ Dr. Freezailah bin Che Yeom (Independent Non-Executive Director)

Ho Tet Shin (Independent Non-Executive Director)

Dato’ Choong Moh Kheng (Independent Non-Executive Director)

To: The Shareholders of Salcon
Dear Sir/Madam,

PROPOSED DISPOSALS OF THE ENTIRE EQUITY INTERESTS HELD IN THE FOLLOWING:
) SALCON DARCO

()  SALCON JIANGSU

()  SALCON FUJIAN

(IV)  SALCON ZHEJIANG

(V)  SALCON LINYI

(V)  SALCON SHANDONG

1. INTRODUCTION

On 12 September 2013, HLIB had, on behalf of the Board, announced that the Company had
on the same date entered into the following agreements in relation to the Proposed Disposals:

(i) a conditional sale and purchase agreement between Salcon and BEWG for the
proposed disposals by Salcon of the entire equity interests held in Saicon Darco and
Salcon Jiangsu; and

(ii) a conditional sale and purchase agreement between Salcon, Salcon Water, a 60%-
owned subsidiary of Salcon and BEWG for the proposed disposals by Salcon and
Salcon Water of the entire equity interests held in Saicon Fujian, Salcon Zhejiang,
Salcon Linyi and Salcon Shandong to BEWG,

for a total cash consideration of RMB955.0 million (equivalent to approximately RM494.88
million), subject to adjustments in accordance with the terms of the SPA-A and SPA-B,
respectively.



2.1

On 11 November 2013, on behalf of the Board, HLIB announced that the Company proposed
fo vary the utilisation of proceeds to be received from the Proposed Disposals, to include a
proposed distribution of part of the proceeds from the Proposed Disposais to shareholders of
Salcon.

THE PURPOSE OF THIS CIRCULAR IS TO PROVIDE THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SALCON
WITH INFORMATION ON THE PROPOSED DISPOSALS, TO SET OUT THE BOARD'S
RECOMMENDATION AND TO SEEK SHAREHOLDERS' APPROVAL FOR THE
RESOLUTION PERTAINING TO THE PROPOSED DISPOSALS, TO BE TABLED AT THE
FORTHCOMING EGM. THE NOTICE OF EGM TOGETHER WITH THE PROXY FORM ARE
ENCLOSED WITH THIS CIRCULAR.

SHAREHOLDERS OF SALCON ARE ADVISED TO READ AND CAREFULLY CONSIDER
THE CONTENTS OF THIS CIRCULAR TOGETHER WITH THE APPENDICES BEFORE
VOTING ON THE RESCLUTION PERTAINING TO THE PROPOSED DISPOSALS TO BE
TABLED AT THE FORTHCOMING EGM.

DETAILS
Proposed Disposals
The Proposed Disposals involve the foliowing:

(i) proposed disposal by Salcon of 25,768,459 shares in Salcon Darco, representing the
entire issued and paid-up share capital of Salcon Darco to BEWG for a cash
consideration of RMB212.0 million (equivalent to approximately RM109.86 million);

(ii) proposed disposal by Salcon of 1,000 shares of USD1.00 each in Salcon Jiangsu,
representing the entire issued and paid-up share capital of Salcon Jiangsu to BEWG
for a cash consideration of RMB95.0 million {equivalent to approximately RM48.23
million};

iii proposed disposai by Salcon Water of 84,617,949 shares of HKD1.00 each in Salcon
Fujian, representing 89.99% of the issued and paid-up share capital of Salcon Fujian
and proposed disposal by Salcon of 1 share of HKD1.00 each in Salcon Fujian,
representing 0.01% of the issued and paid-up share capital of Salcon Fujian, to
BEWG for a total cash consideration of RMB88.0 million {equivalent to approximately
RM45.60 million};

(iv) proposed disposal by Salcon Water of 61,829,944 shares of HKD1.00 each in Salcon
Zhejiang, representing 99.99% of the issued and paid-up share capital of Salcon
Zhejiang and proposed disposal by Salcon of 1 share of HKD1.00 each in Salcon
Zhejiang, representing 0.01% of the issued and paid-up share capital of Salcon
Zhegjiang, to BEWG for a total cash consideration of RMB150.0 million (equivalent to
approximately RM77.73 mitlion);

(v) proposed disposal by Salcon Water of 40,345,801 shares of HKD1.00 each in Salcon
Linyi, representing 99.99% of the issued and paid-up share capital of Salcon Linyi and
proposed disposal by Salcon of 1 share of HKD1.00 each in Salcon Linyi,
representing 0.01% of the issued and paid-up share capital of Salcon Linyi, to BEWG
for a total cash consideration of RMB130.0 million (equivalent to approximately
RM6&7.37 million); and

(vi) proposed disposal by Salcon Water of 127,488,970 shares of HKD1.00 each in
Salcon Shandong, representing 99.99% of the issued and paid-up share capital of
Saicon Shandong and proposed disposal by Salcon of 1 share of HKD1.00 each in
Salcon Shandong, representing 0.01% of the issued and paid-up share capital of
Salcon Shandong, to BEWG for a total cash consideration of RMB280.0 million
(equivalent to approximately RM145.09 million).

The Disposal Consideration is subject to adjustments in accordance with the terms of the
SPA-A and SPA-B.



The corporate structure of the Target Companies prior to the Proposed Disposals are as
follows:
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Basis and justification of arriving at the Disposal Consideration

The Disposal Consideration of RMBS55.0 million (equivalent to approximately RM494.88
million} was arrived at on a willing-buyer willing-seller basis after taking into consideration the
following:

(i) respective valuations of the Concessions undertaken by the Company via certain of
its subsidiaries based on a discounted cash flow method of valuation which essentially
discounts the projected net cash flows of the Concessions over the respective
concession periods at a discount rate of approximately 10%. The cash flows were
prepared by the Company; and

(i) the valuation of the subsidiary that does not hold any concessions is based on the
unaudited net assets as at 31 May 2013 after deducting the investment in subsidiary
which holds the concession.



2.3

2.3.1

The discount rate of approximately 10% was arrived at by applying the Capital Asset Pricing
Model, to estimate the cost of equity based on the average beta for comparable companies
with water concession assets in the PRC, the risk free rate and equity risk premium (as
extracted from Bloomberg). The key assumptions for the cash flows take into consideration,
amongst others, the expected sales volume, tariff rate, non-revenue water (i.e. loss of water
during the ftransfer due to leakage), inflation rate, provision of repair and maintenance,
financing costs and other operating costs.

Based on the valuation prepared by the Company, the values assigned to the respective
Target Companies are as follows:

Valuation
Non-
Concession concession Disposal
Target Companies companies company Total Consideration
RMB’'miliion RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million
Salcon Darco group'” 216.3 - 216.3 212.0
Salcon Jiangsu group'® 39.1 45.2 84.3 95.0
Salcon Fujian group™ 98.0 - 98.0 88.0
Salcon Zhejiang group'” 116.0 - 116.0 150.0
Salcon Linyi group® 123.0 - 123.0 130.0
Salcon Shandong group® 317.0 - 317.0 280.0
Total 909.4 45.2 954.6 955.0

Notes:

(1) Including waler concessions in Deging County, Zhejiang Province, PRC.
{2) Including wastewater concession in Yizheng City, Jiangsu Province, PRC.
(3) Including raw water concession in Nan An Cify, Fujian Province, PRC.

(4} including water concession in Haining Cily, Zhejiang Province, PRC.

(5 Including water concession in Linyi City, Shandong Province, PRC.

(6} Including water concession, wastewaler concession and raw waler concession in Changle Coumnlty, Shandong
Province, PRC.,

The Disposal Consideration represents a premium of approximately 0.04% to the overall
valuation of the Target Companies.

The Board is of the opinion that the basis in deriving the Disposal Consideration is justified as
it takes into consideration the projected net cash flows of the Concessions over the respective
concession periods at a discount rate of approximately 10% as well as the net assets as at 31
May 2013 adjusted for investment in subsidiaries for the valuation of the subsidiary that do not
hold any concessions. The discounted cash flow method is more appropriate and commonly
used for the valuation of water concession assets compared with other valuation methods
such as price to book multiple, dividend yield, price to earnings multiple or enterprise value
given the nature of the water concession business as well as the finite period of the
concession agreements.

Salient terms of SPA-A

Payment terms

Salcon shall sell as beneficial owner and BEWG shall purchase the entire issued and paid-up
capital of Salcon Darco and Salcon Jiangsu (“Sale Shares-A") respectively for a total

consideration of RMB307.0 million, subject to adjustment in accordance with the terms of the
SPA-A (“Consideration-A") free from all encumbrances and with all rights attaching thereto.



The Consideration-A shall be paid in the following manner:

(i) within 3 business days from the Purchaser's receip! of the notification issued by
Salcon of the account details of a RMB account maintained with a bank in Hong Kong,
the depaosit for the sum of RMB30,700,000 in accordance with the terms of the SPA-A
(“Depasit-A") shall be paid by BEWG to Salcon. The Deposit-A has been paid on 16
September 2013;

(%) on completion of the SPA-A ("Completion-A™) which shall take place on the
Completion Date-A, the amount of RMB268,300,000 subject to adjustment in
accordance with the terms of the SPA-A ("Second Payment-A") shall be paid by
BEWG to Salcon; and

iii} BEWG shall hold back RMB8,000,000 ("Holdback Amount-A") and pay the same to
Salcon after the deductions allowed under the SPA-A1, if any, within 10 business days
after @ months following the Completion-A.

The Second Payment-A is subject to the adjustment in accordance with the terms of the SPA-
A calculated on the following basis:

{a) As at 31 May 2013 (being the cut-off date, agreed between both Salcon and BEWG,
used as a bench mark to compute the price adjustment arising on the changes of total
liabilities and total current assets as compared to the Completion Management
Accounts), the difference between the total liabilities amount® (RMB131,4%0,000) and
the current assets value® (RMB101,950,000) of Salcon Darco, Salcon Jiangsu and
their respective subsidiaries {collectively "Target Companies-A" and each "Target
Company-A") (after deduction of minority interests) was RMB29,540,000
(“Benchmark-A") in accordance with the management accounts of the Target
Companies-A as at 31 May 2013.

(b} Where as at the last date of the month immediately preceding the Completion Daie-A
{“Completion Management Accounts Date-A"}, the total liabilities amount of all the
Target Companies-A (after deduction of minority interests} exceeds the current assets
value of alt the Target Companies-A (after deduction of minority interests) by more
than the Benchmark-A, the Second Payment-A shall be capable of both upwards and
downwards adjustment, based on the difference between the total liabilities and
current assets as at 31 May 2013 as compared to the Completion Management
Accounts and shall be calculated in the following manner:

Adjusied Second Payment-A = total liabilities amount - current assets value -
Benchmark-A.

" Deductions may be made to the Holdback Amount-A under the following situations:

(1) if there is any breach of any of Salcon's warranties and/or any outstanding and overdue obligations of Salcon under the
SPA-A, BEWG shall notify Salcon of its claim stating the detail of {he nature of such claim and the amount claimed
and if Salcon faiis to cure such breach, has such claim determined in ils favour or perform the relevant obligations on
or before 9 months from the Completion Date-A or within the reasonable period specified by BEWG (if later), BEWG
shall be enlitied fo deduct the claim amount from the Holdback Amount-A;

if Salcon is liable to make any paymenl afler adjusting the Consideration-A in accordance with the terms of the SPA-A
and Salcon falls to make such payment within 3 business days from lhe generation of the Cornpletion Management
Accounts for all the Target Companies-A (and such amount remains outstanding as at the date failing 9 months
following Completion-A}, BEWG shall be entitled to deduct the payable amount from the Holdback Amount-A,;

where {a) the trealed water for any water supply or wastewater treatment project of any Target Company-A or the
workmanship or design of any such project has falled to satisfy the requisite standard before Completion-A and/or (b)
liabililies are incurred by the relevant Target Company-A in respect of the time period before Completion-A when it had
nol yel satisfied the requisite standard, Salcon shal compensate BEWG {or the relevant Target Company-A as BEWG
may direct} for all direcl and indirect losses therefore suffered by the Target Company-A and the amount 1o be incurred
by the Target Company-A on the necessary improvement measures for raising the trealed water to the requisite
standard and on settling the aforesaid liabilities, as may be reasonably estimated by BEWG. If Saicon fails to pay the
compensation within 9 months from the Completion-A, BEWG shall be entitled to deduct the claimed amount from the
Holdback Amount-A.

After deduclion of minority interests.

(2

Pl

(3

—

2



2.3.2

(If the total liabilities amount of all the Target Companies-A {after deduction of minarify
interests) is less than the current assets value of all the Target Companies-A {after
deduction of minority interest), paragraph (c) below shall be applicable.)

Where as at the Completion Management Accounts Date-A, the total liabilities amount
of all the Target Companies-A (after deduction of minority interests) exceeds the
current assets value of all the Target Companies-A (after deduction of minority
interests) by less than the Benchmark-A, the Second Payment-A shall be calculated in
the following manner:

Adjusted Second Payment-A = Benchmark-A + current assets value - total
liabilities amount.

In the event that:

(a)

(b)

(d)

the Completion-A has nct taken place after all of the Conditions-A as defined in
Section 2.3.2 of this Circular have been satisfied or waived and Salcon having fully
performed all of its obligations under the SPA-A but solely due to failure on the part of
BEWG to comply with its own completion obligations under SPA-A, then Salcon shall
be entitled to retain the Deposit-A;

the Completion-A has not taken place® solely due to the breach by BEWG of the
Conditions-A stated in Section 2.3.2(iii) of this Circular, then Salcon shall be entitled to
retain the Depaosit-A,;

completion of the Conditions-A set out in Sections 2.3.2 (v), (vi) and {viii) of this
Circular in respect of any Target Company-A (“Given Up Target-A”) has not been
fulfilled by 15 January 2014 then Salcon shall return to BEWG the Deposit-A in
respect of the Given Up Target-A (free from interest) within 3 Business Days after
completion of the sale and purchase of the Sale Shares-A of the other Target
Companies-A; and

the sale and purchase of the Sale Shares-A is not completed, or the SPA-A is
terminated”, Salcon shall refund Deposit-A to BEWG plus an additional amount
equivalent to the amount of the Deposit-A (free from interest) within 3 Business Days
after the date of termination of the SPA-A,

In the event of termination or non-completion of SPA-A as mentioned in paragraphs (a), (b)
and (d) above, each party will bear its own cost that has been incurred.

Conditions

The sale and purchase of the Sale Shares-A shall be conditional upon the fulfillment (or
waiver) prior to 15 January 2014 or such other date as the parties may agree to extend of the
following conditions ("Conditions-A"):

i)

(ii)

(iii)

the passing of resolutions by the shareholders of Salcon in a general meeting for the
disposal of the Sale Shares-A to BEWG no later than 3 months after the date of SPA-
A
Salcon's warranfies in the SPA-A remaining true and accurate in all material respects
and not misleading,

BEWG's warranties in the SPA-A remaining true and accurate in all material respects
and not misleading;

The timeframe for Completion-A is stated in Section 2.3.1(ii) of this Circular.
This provisions cater for situation where the sale and purchase of the Sale Shares-A is not completed or the SPA-A is
terminated for any other reason apait from the reasons set out in the foregoing sub-paragraph (a), (b) and (c).



{iv) no breach of any of Salcon’s obligations, covenants, undertakings and agreements in
SPA-A or of any of Salcon and Salcon Water's obligations, covenants, undertakings
and agreements in SPA-B which is caused by fraud, wilful concealment, dishonesty,
or deliberate act or omission remain unrectified and in aggregate will result in (1) a
decrease in the asset value of, (2) an expense that may be incurred by, or (3) a loss
that may be suffered by, the Target Companies-A and the Target Companies-B under
the SPA-B taken as a whole, of an amount more than RMB50,000,000 as reasonably
estimated by BEWG,;

(v) ne statute, regulation or decision which would prohibit, restrict or materially delay the
sale and purchase of the Sale Shares-A or the operation of any Target Company-A
having been proposed, enacted or taken by any governmental or official authority;

{vi) Salcon and/or the Target Companies-A having provided notification in writing to and
having received acknowledged receipt of the said notification without any objection by
the relevant local governmental or official authorities and the joint venture partners of
the Target Companies-A on the transactions under the SPA-A;

{vii) Salcon having procured that not more than 3 persons nominated by BEWG are given
access to the premise, books and information of the Target Companies-A in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the SPA-A;

(viii) no force majeure event having occurred,

(ix) the Completion Management Accounts of the Target Companies-A having hbeen
generated in accordance with the terms and conditions of the SPA-A; and

{x) the SPA-B having been completed.

2.3.3 In the event that any of the Conditions-A set out in Sections 2.3.2(v), (vi} and (viii) of this
Circular in respect of any of the Given Up Target-A shall not have been fulfilled or waived prior
to 15 January 2014 (or such other agreed extension for Completion-A by the parties), then
the parties shall proceed with the Completion-A in respect of the Sale Shares-A for other
platform company % and the Second Payment-A shall be reduced by the amount of
consideration for the Sale Shares-A of such Given Up Target-A, less the amount of the
Deposit-A paid in respect of such Given Up Target-A.

2.3.4 Completion

Completion of the SPA-A shall take place on the Completion Date-A and shall occur
immediately following and on the same day as the completion of the SPA-B.

THE REST OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

5 Platform companies under SPA-A refers to Salcon Darco and Salcon Jiangsu. The ‘other platfarm company’ refers to the

platform company which do not suffer the items described in Sections 2.3.2(v}, (vi} and (viii) of this Circular.
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Globe Industrial Litigation

A legal suit was filed on 30 September 2011 by Fan Ming Chun (as "Petitioner”) against (i)
Thye Kim Meng (‘First Respondent”) (i) Darco Environmental Pte Limited (now known as
Salcon Darco) ("Second Respondent”) and (iii) Globe Industrial {"Third respondent”) in the
High Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region Court of First Instance
Miscellaneous under Proceedings No. 189 of 2011 seeking inter afia, for a declaration that the
increase of share capital and allotment of new shares in Globe Industrial to Salcon Darco
resulting in the dilution of shares held by the Petitioner were void and invalid ("Globe
Industrial Litigation”). Salcon had acquired 60% equity interests in Salcon Darco from Darco
Water Technologies Ltd on 8 August 2012 and the remaining 40% equity interests in Salcon
Darco on 26 July 2013. Under the terms of the SPA-A, Salcon agrees to fully indemnify
BEWG, Salcon Darco, Globe Industrial and/or Deging Huanzhong in respect of any fees
{including legal fees), costs, losses and damage suffered or incurred by any of them arising
from the Globe Industrial Litigation and Salcon will produce an irrevocable unconditional bank
guarantee given by a bank approved by BEWG (which shall take effect from the Completion of
the SPA-A) in respect of such indemnity up to an amount of RMB15,000,000 (“Bank
Guarantee”)". Further details on the Globe Industrial Litigation are disclosed in Section 8,
Appendix | of this Cireular.

Salient terms of SPA-B
Payment terms

Salcon and Salcon Water (collectively "Vendors”™) shall sell as beneficial owner and BEWG
shall purchase the entire issued and paid-up share capital of Salcon Fujian, Salcon Zhejiang,
Salcon Linyi and Salcon Shandong (“Sale Shares-B") respectively for a total consideration of
RMB648.0 million subject to adjustment in accordance with the terms of the SPA-B
(“Consideration-B”} free from all encumbrances and with all rights attaching thereto.

The Consideration-B shall be paid in the following manner:

{i) within 3 business days from the Purchaser's receipt of the nofification issued by the
Vendors of the account details of a RMB account maintained with a bank in Hong
Kong, the deposit for the sum of RMB64,800,000 in accordance with the terms of the
SPA-B ("Deposit-B") shall be paid by BEWG to the Vendors. The Deposit-B has been
paid on 16 September 2013;

(iN) on completion of the SPA-B (“Completion-B”} which shall take place on the
Completion Date-B, the amount of RMB527,300,000 subject to adjustment in
accordance with the terms of the SPA-B ("Second Payment-B”) shall be paid by
BEWG to the Vendors;

iii} BEWG shall hold back RMB17,000,000 ("Holdback Amount-B") and pay the same to
the Vendors after the deductions allowed under the SPA-B’, if any, within 10 business
days after 9 months following the Completion-B;

G

In respect to the Globe Industrial Litigation, Salcon has obtained Deed of indemnity from Darco Water Technologies Ltd
wherein Darco Water Technologies Ltd has undertaken to indemnify Salcon of all costs and expenses in connection with
the Globe Industrial Litigation.

Deductions may be made to the Holdback Amount-B under the following situations:

()

@
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if there is any breach of any of the Vendors’ warranties and/or any outstanding and overdue obligations of the Vendors
under the SPA-B, BEWG shall notify the Vendors of its claim stating the detail of the nature of such claim and the
amount claimed and if the Vendors fail to cure such breach, has such claim determined in their favour or perform the
relevant obligations on or before @ months from the Comptetion Date-B or within the reasonable period specified by
BEWG (if later), BEWG shall be entitled to deduct the claim amount from the Holdback Amount-B;

if the Vendors are liable to make any payment after adjusting the Consideration-B in accordance with the terms of the
SPA-B and the Vendors fail to make such payment within 3 business days from the generation of the Completion
Management Accounts for all the Target Companies-B (and such amount remains outstanding as at the date falling 9
months following Completion-B), BEWG shall be entitled to deduct the payable amount from the Holdback Amount-B;
where (a) the treated water for any water supply or wastewater treatment project of any Target Company-B or the
workmanship or design of any such project has failed to satisfy the requisite standard before Completion-B and/or (b)
liabilities are incurred by the relevant Target Company-B in respect of the time period before Completion-B when it had
not yet satisfied the requisite standard, Salcon shall compensate BEWG (or the relevant Target Company-B as BEWG



(iv} within 5 business days afler the Vendors have fully complied with their obligations in
relation to the Changle Project referred to in Section 2.4.4(a) of this Circular, BEWG
shall pay to the Vendors an amount of RMB11,000,000;

{v) within 5 business days after the timely completion of the Pipeline Acquisition referred
to in Section 2.4.4(b) of this Circular, BEWG shall pay to the Vendors an amount of
RMB11,000,000; and

{vi) within 5 business days after the Vendors providing reasonable proof to BEWG of the
implementation of the Water Tariff Increment referred to in Section 2.4.4(c) of this
Circutar, BEWG shall pay to the Vendors an amount of RMB16,900,000.

The Second Payment-B is subject to the adiustment in accordance with the terms of the SPA-
B calculated on the following basis:

(a) As at 31 May 2013 (being the cut-off date, agreed between Salcon, Salcon Water and
BEWG, used as a bench mark to compute the price adjustment arising on the
changes of total liabilities and total current assets as compared to the Completion
Management Accounts), the difference between the total liabilities amount 8
(RMB425,850,000) and the current assets® (RMB159,800,000) value of Salcon Fuijian,
Salcon Zhejiang, Salcon Linyi and Salcon Shandong and their respective subsidiaries
(collectively “Target Companies-B” and each “Target Company-B”} {after deduction
of minority interests) was RMB266,050,000 ("Benchmark-B") in accordance with the
management accounts of the Target Companies-B as at 31 May 2013.

(b} Where as at the last date of the month immediately preceding the Completion Date-B
("Completicn Management Accounts Date-B"), the total liabilities amount of all the
Target Companies-B {afier deduction of minority interests) exceeds the current assets
value of ali the Target Companies-B (after deduction of minority interests) by more
than the Benchmark-B, the Second Payment-B shall be capable of both upwards and
downwards adjusiment, based on the difference between the total liabilities and
current assets as at 31 May 2013 as compared to the Completion Management
Accounts and shall be calculated in the following manner:

Adjusted Second Payment-B = total liabilities amount - current assets value -
Benchmark-B.

(If the total liabilities amount of all the Target Companies-B (after deduction of minority
interests) is less than the current assets value of all the Target Companies-B (after
deduction of minority interest), paragraph (¢} below shall be applicable.)

(c) Where as at the Completion Management Accounts Date-B, the total liabilities amount
of all the Target Companies-B (after deduction of minority interests) exceeds the
current assets value of all the Target Companies-B (after deduction of minority
interests) by less than the Benchmark-B, the Second Payment-B shall be calculated in
the following manner:

Adjusted Second Payment-B = Benchmark-B + current assets value - total liabilities
amount.

8

may direct) for all direct and indirect losses therefore suifered by the Target Company-B and the amount (o be incurred
by the Target Company-B on the necessary improvement measures for raising the treated water o the requisite
standard and on settling the aforesaid liabilities, as may be reasonably estimated by BEWG. If Salcon fails {o pay the
compensation within 9 months from the Completion-B, BEWG shall be enlitled to deduct the claimed amount from the
Holdback Amount-B.

Afler deducting minorily interests.
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In the event that:

(a)

the Completion-B has not taken place after all of the Conditions-B as defined in
Section 2.4.2 of this Circular have been satisfied or waived and the Vendars having
fully performed all of their abligations under the SPA-B but solely due to failure an the
part of BEWG to comply with its own completion obligations under the SPA-B, then
the Vendors shall be entitled to retain the Deposit-B;

the Completion-B not having taken place9 sclely due to the breach by BEWG of the
Conditions-B stated in Seciion 2.4.2(iii) of this Circular, then the Vendors shall be
entitled to retain the Deposil-B;

completion of the Conditions-B set out in Sections 2.4.2(vi), (vii) and (ix) of this
Circular have not been fulfiled in respect of any Target Company-B (“Given Up
Target-B") by 15 January 2014, then Salcon shall return to BEWG the Deposit-B in
respect of the Given Up Target-B (free from inierest) within 3 Business Days after the
completion of the sale and purchase of the Sale Shares-B of the other Target
Companies-B; and

the sale and purchase of the Sale Shares-B is not completed, or the SPA-B is
terminated'®, Salcon'® shall refund Deposit-B to BEWG plus an additional amount
equivalent to the amount of the Deposit-B (free from interest) within 3 Business Days
after the date of termination of the SPA-B.

In the event of termination or non-completion of SPA-B as mentioned in paragraphs (a), {b)
and (d) above, each party will bear its own cost that has been incurred.

Conditions

The sale and purchase of the Sale Shares-B shall be conditional upon the fulfillment (or
waliver) prior to 15 January 2014 or such other date as the parties may agree to extend of the
fallowing conditions ("Conditions-B"):

(i)

(iv)

the passing of resolutions by the shareholders of Salcon in a general meeting for the
disposal of the Sale Shares-B to BEWG no later than 3 months after the date of the
SPA-B;

the Vendors’ warranties in SPA-B remaining true and accurate in all material respects
and not misleading;

BEWG's warranties in SPA-B remaining true and accurate in all material respects and
not misleading;

no breach of any of the Vendors' obligations, covenants, undertakings and
agreements in SPA-B or of any of Salcon’s obligations, covenants, undertakings and
agreements in SPA-A which is caused by fraud, wilful concealment, dishonesty, or
deliberate act or omission remain unrectified and in aggregate will result in (1) a
decrease in the asset value of, (2} an expense that may be incurred by, or (3) a loss
that may be suffered by, the Target Companies-B and the Target Companies-A under
the SPA-A taken as a whole, of an amount more than RMB50,000,000 as reasonably
estimated by BEWG;

the delivery to BEWG of a written consent from EMIF to the performance of the
obligations by Salcon Water in SPA-B;

g

11

The timeframe for Completion--B is stated in Section 2.4.1(ii) of this Circular.

® This provision cater for situation where the sale and purchase of the Sale Shares-B is not completed or the SPA-B is
terminated for any other reason apart from the reasons set out in the foregoing sub-paragraph (a), (b) and {c).

Only Salcon is responsible to pay to BEWG according to the provision above in view thal Salcon controls the Target
Companies-B via its 80% equity interests in Safcon Water and EMIF which holds 40% equity interest in Salcon Water is a
fund managemeni company and are not involved in the operations of the Target Companies-B.

10



2.4.3

2.44

{vi) no statute, regulation or decision which would prohibit, restrict or materially delay the
sale and purchase of the Sale Shares-B or the operation of any Target Company-B
having been proposed, enacted or taken by any governmental or official authority;

(vii) the Vendars and/or the Target Companies-B having provided notification in writing to
and having received acknowledged receipt of the said notification without any
objection by the relevant local governmental or offictal autherities and the joint venture
partners of the Target Companies-B on the transactions under the SPA-B;

(viil)  the Vendors having procured that not more than 3 persons nominated by BEWG are
given access to the premises, books and information of the Target Companies-B in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the SPA-B;

(ix) no farce majeure event having occurred; and

(x) the Completion Management Accounts of the Target Companies-B having been
generated in accordance with the terms and conditicns of the SPA-B.

In the event that any of the Conditions-B set out in Section 2.4.2(vi), (vii) and (ix) of this
Circular in respect of any of the Given Up Target-B shall not have been fulfilled or waived prior
to 15 January 2014 (or such other agreed extension for Completion-B by the parties), then the
parties shall proceed with the Completion-B in respect of the Sale Shares-B for other platform
companies12 and the Second Payment-B shall be reduced by the amount of consideration for
the Sale Shares-B of such Given Up Target-B, less the amount of the Deposit-B paid in
respect of such Given Up Target-B.

Projects

{(a) The Vendors shall, at their own cost and expense use best endeavours to procure
that Shandong Changle Water completes, prior to the date falling three months after
the date of the SPA-B, upgrading work at the Changle sewage treatment plant such
that upon completion of the upgrading work, treated water of the Changle sewage
treatment plant shall be ready for commercial operation and be of 1A standard (an
upgrade from its existing classification of 1B standard) (the "Changle Project”), and
deliver the project final accounts and the final acceptance report for the Changle
Project to BEWG upon completion of the Changle Project. The Changle Project shall
be completed by the date falling three manths after the date of the SPA-B (or if the
Vendors exercise thelr right to extend such period pursuant to SPA-B to six months
after the date of the SPA-B).

(b) The Vendors shall (i) procure that Nan An Water shali complete the acquisition of the
raw water transmission pipeline starting at Hougiao Reservoir (JG#/KFE) and ending
at Guangiac Water Plant (E#f/K/ ) (the ‘Pipeline Acquisition”) within 9 months
after the daie of the SPA-B; (ii) pay or procure the payment of the consideration of the
Pipeline Acquisition; and (iii) procure that the raw water transmission pipeline shall be
acquired free from encumbrances.

(c) The Vendars shall procure that Nan An Water increases the water tariff for the Fujian
Nan An Raw Water Plant (fa@te % [E/KIE) (“Water Tariff Increment”) from RMB
1.03/ton*® within 9 months after the date of the SPA-B.

12

Platform companies under SPA-B refers ic Salcon Fujian, Salcon Zhejiang, Salcon Linyi and Salcon Shandong. The ‘other

platform companies’ refers te the platform company(ies} which do not suffer the items described in Sections 2.4.2(vi), (vii)
and (ix) of this Circular.

12

(1)

The payment of the RMB 16,900,000 in Section 2.4.1 {vi} cf this Circular shall be subject to adjustment as follows:

if the water tariff is increased to RMB1.20/toen or more, BEWG shall pay to the Vendors additional consideration:
(i) in respect of the increment above RMB1.20%on and up to RMB1.30/ton, RMB650,000 for each RMBO0.01/ten
increment and (i) in respect of the increment above RMB1.30/ton, an additicnal RMB400,000 for each RMB0.01/ton
increment;

if the water tariff is increased higher than RMB1.03/ton, but less than RMB1.20fton, the said amount of
RMB 16,900,000 which shall be released to the Vendors in Section 2.4.1(vi) of this Circular shall be reduced by
RMB650,000 for each shortfall of RMB0.01/ton below RMB1.20/tan.

11
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In the event any of the projects mentioned in paragraphs (a} to (c) above are not completed by
the respective due dates, the amount of deferred considerations as mentioned in Section
2.4.1 (iv), {v) and (vi} of this Circular shall not be payable by BEWG to the Vendors.

Completion

Completion of the SPA-B shall take place on the Completion Date-B and completion of the
SPA-A shall take place on Completion Date-A, both of which shall fall on the same day. The
SPA-A and SPA-B are inter-conditional upon each other.

Original cost and date of investment

The original cost and date of investment for Salcon Darco and Salcon Jiangsu, respectively by
Salcon are as follows:

Company Date of investment Cost of investment
(RM'000)
Salcon Darco 8 August 2012 47 848
28 July 2013 32,687
80,535
Salcon Jiangsu 28 December 2004 7
£ 40,460
40,467

Note:

(1) Advances from Salcon and a subsidiary to be capilalised upon completion of the Propcsed Disposals.

The originat cost and date of investment for Salcon Fujian, Salcon Zhejiang, Salcon Linyi and
Salcon Shandong, respectively by Salcon Water and Salcon are as follows:

Company Date of investment Cost of investment
(HKD’000} {(RM'000)~
Salcon Fujian 30 July 2007 A -
12 January 2011 84 618 33,329
84,618 33,329
Salcon Zhejiang 30 June 2006 - A
12 January 2011 61,830 24,353
61,830 24,353
Saicon Linyi 17 February 2005 -0 e
12 January 2011 40,346 15,881
40,346 15,891
Salcon Shandong 16 April 2008 AU S
12 January 2011 127,489 50,214
127,489 50,214

Notes:

A For comparison and iflustration purposes, the published foreign exchange middle rates from Bank Negara
Malaysia as at 12 January 2011 used is HKD100:RM39.3873.

(1) Transfer of 1 subscriber share of HKD1.00 to Salcon.

12
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3.1

3.2

Liabilities to be assumed

There are no liabilities, including contingent liabilities and guarantees to be assumed by
BEWG arising from the Proposed Disposals, save for the ligbilities stated in the management
accounts of the Target Companies as at 31 May 2013.

BACKGROUND INFORMATICN ON THE TARGET COMPANIES AND PURCHASER
Information on the Target Companies

Details of the Target Companies are set out in Appendices I, il, 1ll, IV, V and VI of this
Circular.

Information on BEWG

BEWG was incorperated in Bermuda on 23 Novemnber 1992 under The Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda as a limited liability company under the name of Wanon International Holdings
Limited. The company subsequently changed its name to Beijing Enterprises Water Group
Limited on 19 March 2008. It was listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited on 19 Aprit 2013,

As at 30 October 2013, the authorised share capital of BEWG is HKD1,500,000,000
comprising 15,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HKDO.10 each, of which 8,435,881,324
ordinary shares of HKD0.10 each have been issued and fully paid-up.

BEWG and its subsidiaries were involved in the following principal activities:

« construction of sewage and reclaimed water treatment and seawater desalination plants,
and provision of construction services for comprehensive renovation projects in the PRC
and Malaysia.

+ provision of sewage and reclaimed waler treatment services in Mainland China and
Portugal.

« distribution and sale of piped water in Mainland China and Portugal.

= provision of technical and consultancy services that are related to sewage treatment and
construction of comprehensive renovation projects in Mainland China.

- licensing of technical know-how that is related to sewage treatment in Mainland China,

The directors of BEWG as at 30 October 2013 are as follows:

Executive Directors: Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Zhang Honghai (Chairman) Mr. Shea Chun Lok Quadrant

Mr. E Meng (Vice Chairrman) Mr. Zhang Gaobo

Mr. Jiang Xinhao Mr. Guo Rui

Mr. Hu Xiaoyong (Chief Executive Officer) Ms. Hang Shijun

Mr. Zhou Min Mr. Wang Kaijun

Mr. Li Haifeng Mr. Yu Ning

Mr. Zhang Tiefu

Ms. Qi Xiaohong

Mr. Ke Jian

Mr. Tung Woon Cheung Eric

THE REST OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
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The substantial shareholders (holding 5% or more) of BEWG and their shareholdings in
BEWG as at 30 June 2013 (as extracted from BEWG's published 2013 interim report) are as

follows:
Approximate
percentage of
Name of Capacity in which Long position in the BEWG's issued
shareholders shares were held shares™ share capital®
Beijing Enterprises Interest of controlled 3,824,367,831 49.76%
Group Compan corporation
Limited @
Security Interest 400,000,000 5.20%
Beijing Enterprises  Interest of controlled 3,824,367,831 49.76%
Holdings Limited corporation
(‘BEHL")"&®) Security Interest 400,000,000 5.20%
Tenson Investment  Beneficial owner 682,193,919 8.88%
Limited
(“Tension")®®
Notes:

(1) Beijing Enterprises Group Company Limited is deemed fo be interested in 3,824,367,831
shares as a result of its indirect holding of such shares through the following entities including
its wholly-owned subsidianes:

Name Long position in shares
Beijing Enterprises Environmental Construction Limited ("BE 3,824,367,831
Environmental’)

BEHL 3,824,367, 831
Beijing Enterprises Group (BVI} Company Limited 3,824,367,831
Beljing Enterprises Group Company Limited 3,824, 367,831

BE Environmental beneficially holds 3,824,367,831 shares of the company. BE Environmental
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of BEHL, which is in tum directly held as to approximately
35.26% by Beijing Enterprises Group (BVI) Company Limited, and which is in tum held as to
100% by Beijing Enterprises Group Company Limited.

(2) The company noted from the website of the Sfock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited that on 29
May 2012, BEHL and Tenson entered into a share mortgage whereby Tenson agreed fo
charge morlgaged shares of 400,000,000 ordinary shares of BEWG ("Mortgaged Shares”)
beneficially owned by Tenson in favour of BEHL as security for the provision of guarantee
entered into by BEHL on 29 May 2012 in favour of DBS Bank Ltd., Hong Kong Branch (“DBS”)
in respect of a loan facifity granted to Tenson by DBS (“Guarantee”).

(3) The long positions held by Beijing Enterprises Group Company Limited and BEHL include: (i)
the 3,824,367,831 Shares as described in Note 1 above; and (ii) 400,000,000 Morigaged
Shares as described in Note 2 above. Beijing Enterprises Group Company Limited is deemed
to be interested in 400,000,000 Mortgaged Shares as its indirect holding of shares of BEHL as
desciibed in Note 1 above.

(4) The share capital of Tenson is beneficially owned as to approximately 52.62% by Mr. Hu
Xiaoyong, as to approximately 44.93% by Mr. Zhou Min, and as to approximately 2.45% by Mr.
Hou Feng, all being executive directors.

** A long position arises where a person is a parly to an equity derivative, by virtue of which the person:
{i) has a right to take the underlying shares;
(i) is under an obligation to take the underlying shares;
{iiy has a right to receive money Iif the price of the underlying shares increases; or
{iv) has a right fo avoid or reduce a loss if the price of the underlying shares increases.
{Source: Practice Nofe 5, Rules Governing the Listing of Securities, The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limifed)

14



(5) The percentage represenled the number of shares over the total issued shares of the
company as at 30 June 2013 of 7,685,981,324 shares.

RATIONALE

The Proposed Disposals involve the disposal of the Group’s subsidiaries which currently holds
the concessions portfoiio in the PRC, namely in Deging, Jiangsu, Fujian, Zhejiang and
Shandong provinces. Despite the positive contribution from the concessiens in the PRC, the
Group expects a more challenging operating environment in respect of the concessions in the
PRC going forward, mainly due 1o the uncertainty in the economic outlook which was reflected
in the decrease in the demand water volume from the industrial sector and the prolongation of
upward revision in the water tariff. Qut of the 9 concessions, only 2 concessions managed to
obtain approval fo increase the water tariff as at the LPD. Linyi Salcon Water Treatment Plant
was able to raise its fariff rate in December 2008 with an average increase of RMB0.30 per
cubic meter after the matter was first brought up to Linyi government in 2007. In year 2011,
another proposal was brought to the Linyi government for negotiation to increase the tariff but
was to no avail. Changle Salcon WWTP managed to obtain an increase of RMB0.36 per cubic
meter in January 2013 after an application to the Changle government was made in 2010. As
at the LPD, the Target Companies group did not submit any formal application for revision of
water tariff for the remaining 7 concessmns *to the respsctive local authorities. Lower
demand from the industrial sector’® due to uncertain economic outlook will affect revenus
growth whilst escalating operating costs, such as increase in labour cost and chemical cost,
and prolongation of upward revision in water fariff are expecied to adversely affect the
profitability of the concessions. Furthermore, intense competition from the domestic players
may impede the Group's prospect of expanding into new concessions in the PRC.

Prior to April 2013, the Company cnly holds 60% equity interest in Salcon Darco. The
Company had entered inte a sale and purchase agreement in April 2013 for the acquisition of
the remaining 40% equity interest in Salcon Darco, which was completed in July 2013 with a
view to further expand the Group's presence in the PRC. Notwithstanding this, the Board is of
the opinion that the offer from BEWG for the Proposed Disposals will provide an opportunity to
the Salcon Group to realise and unlock the value of its investments in the Target Companies
and allow the Group to strengthen its financial position by reducing the gearing level of the
Group. Furthermore, with the proceeds from the Proposed Disposals, Salcon will be able to
re-mobitise its capital and resources for expansion of its other core business including the
property development segment and/or investments in new income stream. As disclosed in
Section 5 of this Circular, the Group has yet io identify the future investments as at the LPD,

The Salcon Group had diversified its principal activities to include property development. For
further details on the property development division as weli as the other core business of the
Salcon Group, please refer to Section 6 of this Circular.

THE REST OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

S The remaining 7 concessions did not apply for lariff increase because:

16

2 concessions were only cperational in 2012;

Z concessions were just acquired in 2012;

the profils for the 2 concessions are al or above the benchmark 12% over the capital injected. The 12% is a
benchmark that the government uses for the water industry in China. Normally only company whose profits is below
the required 12% benchmark is allowed tariff increase; and

1 concession would only apply for tariff increase after the completion of the Phase 2 acquisition. The Phase 2
acquisition is expected 1o be completed in December 2013.

The management does not expect the optimum production capacity of the treatment plants would be met due to lower
demand from the industrial sector.
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UTILISATION OF PROCEEDS

The proceeds from the Proposed Disposals are intended to be utilised as follows:

Timeframe for utilisation of proceeds
from the date of completion of the

Description Note  Amount Proposed Disposals
(RM’000)

Future investments 1 230,000 Within 24 months

Repayment of borrowings 2 97,540 Within 6 months

Distribution to shareholders of 3 30,000 Within 12 months

Salcon

Warking capital 4 10,387 Within 24 months

Defraying expenses incidental 5 1,437 Within 3 months

to the Proposed Disposals

Total * 369,374

Notes:

*  The total proceeds from the Proposed Disposals attributable to Salcon (including repayment of
shareholders’ advances of RMB47.0 million) are RMB712.80 million (equivalent to RM369.37
miilion). The actual proceeds fo be received from the Proposed Disposals are subject to
adfusiments in accordance with the terms of the SPAs. The details on the proceeds from the
Proposed Dispesals are as follows:

Amount
{RMB’million) (RM’million)

SPA-A

Proposed disposal of Salcon Darco and Salcon Jiangsu 307.0 159.09
SPA-B

Proposed disposal of Salcon Fujian, Salcon Zhejfiang, Salcon Linyi 648.0 335.79
and Salcon Shandong

(Less): Assuming repayment of shareholders’ advances'’ (50.0) (25.91)
Total 588.0 309.88
Net proceeds attributable to the following for SPA-B:

Salcon and Salcon Water (60%) 358.8 185.93
EMIF (40%) 239.2 123.95
Total 598.0 309.88

Proceeds from the Proposed Disposals which are attributable
fo the Salcon Group are as follows:

- SPA-A 307.0 158.09
- SPA-B 358.8 1856.93
- Repayment of shareholders’ advances 47.0 24.35
Total 712.8 369.37

17

The shareholders advances of RMB47.0 million (equivalent to RM24.35 millicn} and RMB3.0 million (equivalent to RM1.56
milion) from Salcon and EMIF {which own 40% equity interest in Salcon Water}, respectively to Salcon Water was
provided between January 2012 to May 2013 and utilised to fund the increase in projecticonstruction costs for the raw
waler transfer projects in Nan An City and Changle Counly. The shareholders advances have no fixed repayment terms,
are repayable on demand, do not bear any interest and is unsecured. As at the LPD, the lolal amount owing by Salcon
Water to Salcon and EMIF are RMB47.0 million and RMB3.0 million, respectively.
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(1)

(2)

(3

(4)

(5

The Group expects fo utilise the proceeds for future investments which has yet to be identified as
at the LPD, The proposed investment aclivifies may include acquisition of strategic investments
and/or strategic collaborations, joint ventures or aliiances. The proposed investment activities may
or may not be fn simifar or complementary industnes to the Group’s existing businesses. In the
event shareholders’ approval is required pursuant to the Main Market Listing Requirements for the
strategic investments and/or strategic collaborations, joint ventures or alliances, such approval will
be sought as per the provisions of the Main Market Listing Requirements. Any excess/shortfall in
the actual amount to be utifised for future investments would be adjusted to/from working capital.

The Group’s total bank borrowings as at the LPD is approximately RM352.92 million. The proposed
repayment of part of the Group’s bank borrowings amounting lo RM87.54 miflion is expected to
contribute to interest savings of approximately RM5.30 milflion per annum based on the average
interest rate of 5.44% per annum. Details are as below:

Total amount Amount to be Average inferest
outstanding as repaid from the  interest rates expense
Name of financial Type of atthe LPD proceeds perannum  per amnum
institution facility received
({RM'000) {RM'000) {7} (RM'000)
Standard Chartered Term 97,540 97,540 5.44 5,302

Bank Malaysia Berhad foan

it is the intention of the Board to distribute part of the proceeds from the Proposed Disposals, of up
to RM30.0 million to the shareholders of Salcon via a special dividend or other means, such as
capital repayment, the method of which will be determined at a later stage, after taking into
consideration, amongst others, the aclual proceeds lo be received from the Proposed Disposals
{("Proposed Distribution”). The method of the Proposed Distribution is subject fo the approval by
the Board and an announcement in accordance with the Main Market Listing Requirements will be
made by the Company once the method of distnbution is finalised and the Board's approval is
obtained. The Company will also seek the relevant approvals for the Proposed Distribution, if
required. Any excess in the actual amount to be utilised for the Proposed Distnbution, would be
adjusted fo working capital.

Working capital requirements for the Group include day-tfo-day operations to support the Group's
existing business operations which shall include, but not limited to, the payment of trade and other
payables, and management, employees and marketing expenses. The breakdown of proceeds fo
be utilised for each component of working capital has not been determined at this juncture.
Moreover, the actual amount to be utilised by each component of working capital may differ subject
{o the operating requirements at the time of ufilisation.

The estimated expenses in relation fo the Proposed Disposals comprising professional fees such
as the adviser and lawyers, regulatory fees and other refated costs. Any excess/shorifall in the
actual amount lo be ulilised for defraying the estimaled expenses relating fo the Proposed
Disposals would be adjusted foffrom working capital The breakdown of the estimated expenses
are as follows:

RM’000
Professional fees 1,200
Fees fo be paid to relevant authorities 30
Miscellaneous expenses, which includes printing, advertising and estimated costs 207
for the forthcoming EGM
Total 1,437

The actual proceeds from the Proposed Disposals will depend on the final consideration to be
determined as set out in Sections 2.3.1 and 2.4.1 of this Circular. Any difference between the
actual proceeds received from the Proposed Disposals and the Disposal Consideration will be
adjusted accordingly to the proceeds earmarked for future investments.

Pending the ufilisation of the proceeds by Salcon, the proceeds will be placed in interest-
bearing deposit accounts with financial institutions or short-term money market instrument(s)
as the Board may deem fit.
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FUTURE DIRECTION AND PROSPECTS

Upon completion of the Proposed Disposals, the Salcon Group would principally be involved in
property development and engineering and construction. The Group expects to continue its
efforts to bhid for engineering and construction projects for water and wastewater related

contracts in Malaysia.

Based on the latest audited financial statements of the Group for the FYE 31 December 2012,

the segmental results of the Group is as follows:

Revenue Segment profit

FYE After the FYE After the
Operating 31 December Proposed 31 December Proposed
segment 2012 Disposal’ 2012 Disposal’

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Construction 141,891 141,891 10,321 10,321
Concession 185,866 27,206° 51,372 4,935
Trading 13,049 13,049 3,450 3,450
Total 340,806 182,146 65,143 18,706
Noles:
1 Assuming the Proposed Disposal had been completed on 1 January 2012

2

Comprising the following:

Letter of acceptance of tender by Jabatan Bekalan Air Negeri Sembilan to Salcon
Engineening Berhad, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Salcon, dated 15 September 2003 for
the management, operation and maintenance of Kuala Jelai Water Treatment Flant. The
said confract expired on 31 March 2012,

Letter of acceptance of tender by Jabatan Bekalan Air Negeri Sembilan to Salcon
Engineering Berhad, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Salcon, dated 20 March 2003 for the
management, operation and maintenance of Sungai Terip Water Treatment Plant. The
said contract expired on 30 September 2012.

The concession agreement dated 21 March 2011 entered into befween Changzhou
Salcon Wastewater Treatment Company Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
Salcon, and Changzhou City Tian Ning District Diao Zhuang Street Office for the
acquisition, upgrading, operation and maintenance of wasfewater treatment plant in
Changzhou City, PRC. The said concession was terminated on 12 November 2012,

The bulk sales contract dated 25 May 1995 enftered into between Binh An Water
Corporation Ltd, an indirect associate company of Salcon, and Ho Chi Minh City Water
Supply Company to supply treated water to Ho Chi Minh cily and neighbouring industrial
zones. The said concession will expire on 31 July 2018.

The operation and maintenance agreement dated 1 November 1997 entered into
between Binh An Water Corporation Lid, an indirect associale company of Salcon,
and Integrated Water Services (M) Sdn Bhd, a subsidiary of Salcon, for the operation
and maintenance of Binh An, Vietnam water treatment plant. The said agreement will
expire on 31 July 2019.

The Salcon Group had on 19 March 2013 obtained shareholders’ approval to diversify its
principal activites to include property development. Currently, the Group's property
development portfolio comprises 2 projects, which are in Selayang known as Res 280
("Selayang Res 280"} with an estimated GDV of RM155.0 million and Johor ("Johor Project”)
with an estimated GDV of RM1.2 billion. Selayang Res 280 which comprises a 21-storey
commercial building with 12 units of 2-storey shop offices and 280 units of SOHO (small
officefhome office) had received good response with more than 60% of the total units sold at
its official launch on 6 October 2013. The project had commenced construction in early
October 2013 and is expected to be completed over the next 3 years.

THE REST OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
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The Johor Project which is strategically located in the city of Johor Bahru with a land area of
approximately 12.7 acres is preliminarily planned for a mixed commercial, residential
development, as well as such other development content as may be revised from time fo time
subject to approvals from the relevant authorities and products that are in line with market
trend. The Johor Project is targeted to be launched in the second half of 2014 and is expected
to be completed over the next 4 years. The company, Nusantara Megajuta Sdn Bhd, an
indirect 50.01% subsidiary of Salcon, will be submitting the relevant proposed development
plans to the relevant authorities, which include inter-alia Majlis Perbandaran Johor Bahru and
the local state autherity for approval, tentatively by fourth quarter of 2013. Salcon had on 12
September 2013 announced that Nusantara Megajuta Sdn Bhd intends to appoint Eco World
Development Sdn Bhd as the project manager for the Johor Project. As the Johor Project is
strategically located approximately 2 kilometres north of the Central Business District of Johor
Bahru and the Causeway of Singapore, which is sited within the Flagship Zone A of the
Iskandar Malaysia Economic Corridor, the Group expects the Johor Project to receive positive
response in tandem with the growth prospects of iskandar Malaysia.

After the completion of the Proposed Disposals, the Group would be able to leverage on its
improved balance sheet to selectively acquire land or enter into joint venture(s) for property
development in strategic locations in Klang Valley, Penang and Johor. Going forward, the
Group expects the earnings contribution from the property development division to surpass
the earnings from the engineering and construction division after a period of two years.

For the engineering and construction division, the Group is mainly involved in the design and
construction of water treatment plants, sewerage and wastewater facilities and related works,
The Group's subsidiaries also provide mechanical and electrical engineering setvices for
general industries. For the FYE 31 December 2012, overseas projects contributed
approximately 12% of the revenue for this division whilst the balance of the revenue is from
the local market. The key overseas market for this division is Sri Lanka.

The Group managed to increase its order book by RM210 million for the FYE 31 December
2013, which comprise mainly of the construction of water treatment plant, WWTP and pipe
laying projects. The current outstanding order book of RM330 million as at the LPD is
expected to be completed within the next 3 years. Amongst the notable projects which the
Group has secured are Package D55 Sewage Pipes network in Klang, Selangor and Kalu
Ganga Water Supply in Sri Lanka. The Group will leverage on its expertise, experience and
track record to continue bidding for projects locally as well as overseas such as Sri Lanka.
The Group successfully completed the Batticaloa Water Supply and Kelani Right Bank Water
Treatment projects, both in Sri Lanka in 2011 and 2012, respectively as well as the Dong Tam
Water Treatment Plant project in Vietnam in 2011. As at the LPD, the Group has also
participated in tenders for a total amount of RM2.2 billion worth of projects in water and
wastewater related projects. Amongst the notable projects which the Group has tendered for
include Langat 2 water treatment plant in Selangor and the Pengerang water treatment plant
in Johor, which are currently pending decision from the relevant authorities.

RISK FACTORS

Shareholders should consider the following risk factors arising from the Proposed Disposals
(which may not be exhaustive):

Failure/Detay in the completion of the Proposed Disposals

The completion of the Proposed Disposals are conditional upon the conditions of the SPA-A
and SPA-B as set out in Sections 2.3.2 and 2.4.2 of this Circular being satisfied. The non-
fulfillment of the conditions may result in the SPAs being terminated and the Company may be
required to repay to the Purchaser an amount equivalent to two times the deposits received as
disclosed in Sections 2.3.1 and 2.4.1 of this Circular. There is no assurance that the Proposed
Disposals can be completed within the time period permitted under the SPAs.
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7.2

7.3

7.4

Should a delay or non-completion cccur, the Group may lose the opportunity te dispose the
Target Companies. Consequently, the Group will not be able to utilise the proceeds from the
Proposed Disposals in the manner set out in Section 5 of this Circular. Nevertheless, the
Board will take reasonable steps such as assigning dedicated staffs to review and monitor
clasely the progress of the Proposed Disposals and liaising with the reievant authorities to
ensure that the conditions are met within the stipulated timeframe and that every effort is
made to obtain all the necessary approvals for the Proposed Disposals.

Legal risks

The Company may be subject to certain legal risks as a result of representations, warranties
or covenants given or to be given pursuant to the SPAs for the Proposed Disposals or any
documents executed therewith. Salcon may also be subjected to contraciual risks as a result
of non-fulfillment of its obligations under the SPAs for the Proposed Disposals.

In this respect, the Company endeavors to ensure full compliance in relation to fulfillment of its
obligations under the SPAs for the Proposed Disposals.

Adjustments to be made to the Consideration-B

The SPA-B provides BEWG to pay the Vendors part of the Consideration-B of RMB38.9
million (equivalent to approximately RM20.16 million) in the manner as set out in Sections
2.4.1 (iv) to {vi) of this Circular.

As the Changle Project is still in the testing and commissioning stage whilst the Pipeline
Acquisition is still under negotiation stage, there can be no firm assurance that the Changle
Project and Pipeline Acqguisition can be compieted on time and consequently, the
Consideration-B may be reduced. This is notwithstanding that Salcon may take all reascnable
steps to mitigate occurrence of such adverse variations.

The Company does not expect any complication and delay in increasing the water tariff for the
Project of Fujian Nan An Raw Water Plant as the Fujian government has sef up a special task
committee to review the application for the water tariff adjustment. The Company had also
assigned a dedicated team to follow-up closely on the matter with the aforementioned special
task committee. As at the LPD, the said application is still pending decision from the Fujian
government.

Loss of contribution and future income from the Target Companies
Upon completion of the Proposed Disposals, the Target Companies which are major
contributor to the Salcon Group in terms of profitability, will no longer be subsidiaries of the

Company and Salcon will cease to consolidate the results of the Target Companies.

Based on the audited financial statements of the Group for the FYE 31 December 2010 to
2012, the contributions of the Target Companies to the Group are as follows:

Revenue Segment profit
FYE 31 December FYE 31 December
2010 2011 2012 2010 2011 2012

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Contribution of the

Target Companies 198,122 158,464 158,660 23127 27,087 46,437
Total Salcon Group 548,879 472,462 340,808 65,933 55,807 65,143
% contribution of

Target Companies 36.03% 33.54% 46.55% 35.08% 48.45% 71.28%
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8.1

8.2

As disclosed in Section 5 of this Circular, the Group intends to utilise approximately RiM243.0
million from the proceeds arising from the Proposed Disposals for future investments to
enhance the income-generating capability of the Salcon Group. However, there is no
assurance that Salcon wili be successful in finding suitable investments or that the proposed
future investments will be successful and able to generate sufficient earnings to compensate
for the loss of contribution from the Target Companies. To mitigate such risks, the Board will
actively seek to identify suitable investments as well as take reasonable steps including
assessing the merits and risks of each investment as well as conducting due diligence on the
proposed investments.

EFFECTS
Share capital and substantial shareholders’ shareholding

The Proposed Disposals will not have any effect on the share capital and substantial
shareholders’ shareholdings of Salcon as the Proposed Disposals do not involve any issuance
of new ordinary shares of RM(.50 each in Salcon.

Earnings and EPS

Save for the expected gain arising from the Proposed Disposals, the Proposed Disposals are
not expected to have a material effect on the earnings of the Sailcon Group for the FYE 31
December 2013.

Upon completion of the Proposed Disposals, the Salcon Group is expected to realise a net
gain attributable to owners of the Company of approximately RM78.01 million based on the
latest audited financial statements of the Salcon Group for the FYE 31 December 2012 (after
incorporating the gain arising from the acquisition of the remaining 40% equity interests from
the non-controlling interests of Salcon Darco prior to the proposed disposal of Salcon Darco).
The net gain attributable to owners of the Company represents an EPS of approximately
RM0.13. The net gain attributable to owners of the Company was derived as beiow.

Gain by Salcon for the proposed disposal of Target Companies-A:

RN'000
Disposal consideration for SPA-A 159,088
(Less): Provision for cost o complete existing project (2,591)
156,497
(Less): Cost of investment (126,718)
Gain on disposal 29,779
Gain by Salcon Water sub-group for the proposed disposals of Target Companies-B:
RM’000
Disposai consideration for SPA-B 335,793
{Less): Adjustments for contingent considerations {11,400)
324,393
(Less): Cost of investment (144,635)
Gain on disposal 179,758
Net gain for the Proposed Disposals at Group level:
RM’000
Gain on disposal by Salcon 29,779
Share of 60% gain on disposal from Salcon Water sub-group 107,855
137,634
{Less). Post-acquisition reserve (66,522)
Net gain attributable to owners of the Company 71,112
Add:  Gain on acquisition of the remaining 40% equity interests from the 6,902
non-controlling interests of Salcon Darco prior to the proposed
disposal of Salcon Darco
Net gain attributable to owners of the Company (after incorporating gain on
acquisition of the remaining 40% equity interests from the non-controlling
interests of Salcon Darco prior to the proposed disposal of Salcon Darco) 78,014
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8.3

The Proposed Dispeosals are expected to contribute positively to the future earnings of the
Salcon Group. Assuming the benefits arising from the utilisation of proceeds materialise, the
proceeds received from the Proposed Disposals are expected to strengthen the Salcon
Group’s future ability to generate earnings through the contributions from the proposed future
investments.

For illustration purposes, assuming that the Proposed Disposals had been completed on 1
January 2012, the effects of the Proposed Disposals on our consolidated EPS for the FYE 31
December 2012 are as follows:

FYE  After the

31 December Proposed

2012~ Disposals

RN’000 RM'000

Consolidated PAT attributable to owners of the Company 11,282 11,282

(Less): PAT of Target Companies and its subsidiaries - (16,825
attributable to Salcon Group

Consolidated PAT / (LAT) attributable to owners of the 11,282 {5,543)

Company

Number of Shares in issue (000) 521,738 521,738

EPS/(LPS) (sen) 2.16 (1.06)

Nofes:

& As exiracted from the audited consolidated financial stafements of the Company for the FYE 31
December 2012.

(1) Assuming the acquisition of 40% equily interest in Salcon Darco by Salcon was completed on 1
January 2012 and Salcon Darco will be a wholly-owned subsidiary of Salcon and its results will be
accounled for in our Group's consolidated resufls.

NA per share and gearing
Based on the latest audited consolidated financial statements of the Company as at 31
December 2012, the proforma effects of the Proposed Disposals on the Company’'s NA per

Share and gearing are set out as follows:

Audited as at  After adjusting for events after After the
31 December 31 December 2012 up to LPD Proposed

2012 Proforma I Proformall®  pisposals
RM'000 RM’000 RM’000 RN’000
Share capital 260,869 300,238 300,238 300,238
Reserves
- Share premium 36,627 45,363 45,363 45,363
-  Warrant reserve 22 150 22 150 22,150 22,150
- Translation reserve 13,309 13,309 13,309 5,599
- Share option reserve 3,909 4538 4,538 4,538
Retained earnings 79,691 75,260 82,162 153,274
Shareholders’ equity 416,555 460,858 467,760 531,162
Non-controlling interests 225,490 225,490 185,901 141,589
Total equity 642,045 686,348 653,661 672,751
Number of Shares 521,738 600,476 600,476 600,476
outstanding ("000)
NA per Share (RM) 0.80 0.77 0.78 0.88
Total borrowings 343,660 327,907 327,907 8,413
{RM'000)
Gearing (times) 0.54 0.48 0.50 0.01
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10.

11.

12.

Notes:

(1) Proformal: After adjusting for the private placement of 54,025,268 Salcon Shares af an issue
price of RM0.585 per Share which was completed on 20 August 2013, the
30,135,250 employee share oplions (“Options’) granted and 24,712,400 Options
which were exercised at an issue price ranging from RMG0.50 to RM0.57 pursuant to
the Company’s employee share option scheme.

(2) Proforma ll: After adjusting for the acquisition of 40% equity interest in Salcon Darco for a fotal
cash consideration of RMB63,000,000, which was completed on 26 July 2013.

(3) Assuming repayment of borrowings of RM15,753,600 pursuant to the private placement completed
by the Company on 20 August 2013.

(4) After excluding borrowings of the Target Companies of RM217,094,127 and assuming repayment
of borrowing of RM102,400,000.

APPROVALS REQUIRED

The Proposed Disposals are conditional upon the following approvals being obtained:

(i the shareholders of Salcon at an EGM to be convened; and

(ii) any other relevant authorities and/or parties, if required.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS AND/OR PERSONS

CONNECTED TO THEM

None of the Directors andfor major shareholders of Salcon and/or persons connected with a

director or major shareholder of Salcon has any interest, either direct or indirect, in the

Proposed Disposals.

DIRECTORS’ RECOMMENDATION

The Board, having considered all aspects of the Proposed Disposals including but not limited

to the ratiocnale, salient terms of the SPAs, risk factors and effects of the Proposed Disposals,

is of the opinion that the Proposed Disposals are in the best interests of the Company.

Accordingly, the Board recommends that you vote in favour of the resolution pertaining to the
Proposed Disposals to be tabled at the forthcoming EGM.

OTHER INTENDED CORPORATE EXERCISES WHICH HAVE BEEN ANNOUNCED BUT
NOT YET COMPLETED

There are no other corporate exercises which have been announced by our Company but not
yet completed as at the LPD.

The Proposed Disposals are not conditional or inter-conditicnal upon any other proposals.

THE REST OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
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13.

14.

15.

TENTATIVE TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION

Barring any unforeseen circumstances, the Proposed Disposals are expected to be completed
by end of December 2013. The indicative timetable for the implementation of the Proposed
Disposals are as follows:

Event Tentative timing
EGM 27 November 2013
Completion of the Proposed Disposals End December 2013
EGM

The EGM for the Proposed Disposals, the notice of which is enclosed in this Circular, will be
held at Victorian Ballroom, Level 1, Holiday Villa Subang, 9 Jalan $512/1, 47500 Subang
Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan on Wednesday, 27 November 2013 at 9.30 a.m. or at any
adjournment thereof, for the purpose of considering and if thought fit, passing the resolution
pertaining to the Proposed Disposals.

If you are unable to attend and vote in person at the EGM, you may complete, sign and
return the enclosed Proxy Form in accordance with the instructions printed therein as
soon as possible and in any event, so as to arrive at the registered address of the
Company at 15th Floor, Menara Summit, Persiaran Kewajipan, USJ 1, 47600 UEP
Subang Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan, no later than forty-eight {48) hours before the time
fixed for holding the EGM or any adjournment thereof. The lodgement of the Proxy Form
does not preclude you from attending and voting in person at the EGM should you
subsequently wish to do so.

FURTHER INFORMATION

Shareholders are advised to refer to the Appendices set out in this Circular for further
information.

Yours faithfully
For and on behalf of the Board of
SALCON BERHAD

TAN SRI DATO’ TEE TIAM LEE
Executive Deputy Chairman
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APPENDIX |

INFORMATION ON SALCON DARCO AND [TS SUBSIDIARIES

1. HISTORY AND BUSINESS

Salcen Darco was incorperated in Singapore under the Singapore Companies Act on 8
December 2001 as a private limited company under the name of Darce Environmental Pte Ltd.
On 8 August 2012, Salcon acquired 60% equity interest in Salcon Darco from Darco Water
Technologies Limited, a company incorporated in the Republic of Singapore. On 1 November
2012, Salcon Darco assumed its present name. Subsequently, Salcon compleled the
acquisition of the remaining 40% equity inferest in Salcon Darco on 26 July 2013.

Salcon Darco is an investment holding company whilst the principal activities of its
subsidiaries are further detailed in Section 5 herein.

2, SHARE CAPITAL
As at the LPD, the issued and paid-up share capital of Salcon Darco is 3GD25,768,45%
comprising 25,768,452 ordinary shares. Salcon Darco does not have an authorised share
capital.

3. DIRECTORS

The directors of Salcon Darco and their respective shareholdings in Salcon Darco as at the
LPD are as follows:

S Direct ----> Qmmmem Indirect «n->
No. of % No. of %
ordinary ordinary
Name Designation  Nationality shares shares
Ooi Cheng Swee Director Malaysian - - - -
Law Woo Hock Director Malaysian - - - -
Tee Xun Hao Director Malaysian - - - -
Jean-Paul Max Alain Binot Director Belgian - - - -
4. SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Salcon Darco is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Salcon.

5. SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANY

Save as disclosed below, Salcon Darco does not have any other subsidiary or associated
companies as at the LPD:

Company Date and Equity Issued and paid-up Principal activities
place of interest share capital/
incorporation {%) registered capital
Held by Salcon Darco
Deqing Darco 13.12.2006 100.00 USD11,960,000 Management and operation of
PRC water production and sale of water

in Deging counly, Zhejiang
Province

Globe Industrial 17.07.2002 95.58 HKD226,353 Investment holding

Hong Kong

Held by Globe Industrial

Deqing 28.09.2002 88.32 UsSDb8,939,000 Management and operation of

Huanzhong PRC water production and sale of waler
in  Deging county, Zhejiang
Province



APPENDIX |

INFORMATION ON SALCON DARCO AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

Deqging Darco and Deging Huanzhong each currently operates a water treatment plant
located in Deging County, Zhejiang Province, PRC. The details of the concession held by
Deging Darco and Deqing Huanzhong are set out in Section 1 and Section 2 of Appendix VII,
respectively.

6. MATERIAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at the LPD, there are no material commitments or contingent liabilities incurred or known
to be incurred by Salcon Darco and its subsidiaries ("Salcon Darco Group™) that are likely to
have a material adverse effect on the Salcon Darce Group's financial position.

7. MATERIAL CONTRACTS

Salcon Darco Group has not entered into any material contracts (not being contracts entered
into in the ordinary course of business) within the past two (2) years immediately preceding
LPD.

8. MATERIAL LITIGATION

Save as disclosed below, as at the LPD, Salcon Darco Group is not engaged in any material
litigation, claims or arbitration either as plaintiff or defendant, and our Board has no
knowledge of any proceedings pending or threatened against Salcon Darco Group or of any
facts likely to give rise to any proceedings which may materially affect the financial position or
business of Salcon Darco Group:

(i)  On 30 September 2011, Fan Ming Chun (“the Petitioner”) filed a suit against Thye Kim
Meng {“First Respondent"), Darcoe Environmental Pte Limited {“Second Respondent”)
and Globe Industrial ("Third Respondent”) in the High Court of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region Court of First Instance Miscellaneous under Proceedings No.
189 of 2011 seeking inter alia, for a declaration that the increase of the share capital
and allotment of new shares in Globe Industrial to Darco Environmental Pte Limited
resulting in the dilution of shares held by the Petitioner were void and invalid {“the
Suit"). As at the LPD, the Petiticner has not proceeded further and there is no hearing
date(s) scheduled for the Suit. The Directors of Globe Industrial are of the opinion that
Globe Industrial will not suffer any losses or damages and will not be exposed to any
financial risk regardless of the outcome of the Suit as the Petitioner is merely seeking
for a declaratory relief from the court.

THE REST OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
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APPENDIX I

INFORMATION ON SALCON JIANGSU AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

1. HISTORY AND BUSINESS
Salcen Jiangsu was incorporated in Hong Kong under the Companies Ordinance on 23
March 2004 under the name Salcon Lingu (Hong Kong) Limited as a private limited company.
On 14 January 2005, the company changed its name {0 Saicon Yunnan (HK) Limited and
assumed its present name on 6 November 2009,
Salcon Jiangsu is an investment holding company whilst the principal activities of its
subsidiaries are further detailed in Section 5 herein.

2, SHARE CAPITAL
As at the LPD, the autharised share capital of Salcon Jiangsu is USD1,000 comprising 1,000
ordinary shares of USD1.00 each, all of which has been issued and fully paid-up.

3. DIRECTORS

The directors of Salcon Jiangsu and their respective sharehoidings in Salcon Jiangsu as at
the LPD are as follows:

Cammnn Direct ===->  Cwmeun Indirect «--->
No. of % No. of %

ordinary ordinary

Name Designation  Nationality shares shares
Tan Sri Dato’ Tee Tiam Lee Director Malaystan - - - .
Dato’ Leong Kok Wah Director Malaysian - - - -
Law Woo Hock Director Malaysian - - - -

4, SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Salcon Jiangsu is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Salcon.

5. SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANY

Save as disclosed below, Salcon Jiangsu does not have any other subsidiary or associated
companies as at the LPD:

Company Date and Equity Issued and paid-up Principal activities
place of interest share capital/
incorporation (%) registered capital
Jiangsu 10.12.2009 66.67 RMB120,000,000  Design, build and operate water
Water PRC transmission’ in Jiangsu Province
Yizheng 27.08.2003 100.00 RMB32,536,679 Management and operation of
Wastewater PRC wastewater freatment plant in
Yizheng city.

Yizheng Wastewater currently operates a WWTP located in Yizheng City, Jiangsu Province,
PRC. The details of the concession held by Jiangsu Water and Yizheng Wastewater are set
out in Section 9 and Secticn 3 of Appendix VII.

' Water transmission involves the raw water distribution or transfer from the reservair to the water treatment

plant.
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APPENDIX Il

INFORMATION ON SALCON JIANGSU AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

6.

MATERIAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at the LPD, there are no material commitments or contingent liabilities incurred or known
to be incurred by Salcon Jiangsu and its subsidiaries {"Jiangsu Group”) that are likely to have
a material adverse effect on Jiangsu Group’s financial position.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed below, Jiangsu Group has not entered into any material contracts {not
being contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business) within the past two (2) years
immediately preceding LPD:

(i)  An assets acquisition agreement dated 6 May 2013 entered into between Yizheng
Wastewater and Water Bureau of Yizheng City wherein Yizheng Wastewater had
acquired assets® of Phase 2 of the Yizheng Waste Water Treatment Plant located in
Yizheng City, Jiangsu Province, PRC for a total cash consideration of RMB30,754,000
upon the terms and condition stated therein. The purchase consideration for the
acquisition was funded through bank borrowings and internally generated funds.

MATERIAL LITIGATION

As at the LPD, Jiangsu Group is not engaged in any material litigation, claims or arhitration
either as plaintiff or defendant, and our Board has no knowledge of any proceedings pending
or threatened against Jiangsu Group or of any facts likely to give rise to any proceedings
which may materially affect the financial position or business of Jiangsu Group.

THE REST OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

2

The assets comprise processing plants, pipelines, machineries and equipment of Phase 2 of the WWTP.
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APPENDIX 1I}

INFORMATION ON SALCON FUJIAN AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

1.

HISTORY AND BUSINESS

Salcon Fujian was incorporated in Hong Kong under the Companies Ordinance on 8 June
2007 as a private limited company.

Salcon Fujian is an investment holding company whilst the principal activities of its
subsidiaries are further detailed in Section 5 herein.

SHARE CAPITAL

The authorised share capital of Salcon Fujian is HKD300,000,000 comprising 300,000,000
ordinary shares of HKD1.00 each of which HKD84,617,950 comprising 84,617,950 ordinary
shares of HKD1.00 each has been issued and fully paid-up.

DIRECTORS

The directors of Salcon Fujian and their respective shareholdings in Salcon Fujian as at the
LPD are as follows:

P J— Direct -——->  <oeee- Indirect ---->
No. of % No. of %
ordinary ordinary
Name Designation Nationality shares shares
Tan Sri Dato' Tee Tiam Lee Director Malaysian - - - -
Dato’ Leong Kok Wah Director Malaysian - - - -
Law Woo Hock Director Malaysian - - - -

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

The shareholders of Salcon Fujian as at the LPD are Saicon Water and Salcon with
shareholdings of 99.99% and 1 share of the total paid-up capital, respectively.

SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANY

Save as disclosed below, Salcon Fujian does not have any other subsidiary or associated
companies as at the LPD:

Company Date and Equity Issued and paid-  Principal activities
place of interest up share capital/
incorporation (%) registered capitai
Nan An 18.04.2008 65.0 RMB150,000,000  Design, bulld and operate water
Water PRC fransmission in Fujian Province

Nan An Water currently operates and manages a raw water transfer project in Nan An City,
Fujian Province, PRC. The details of the concession held by Nan An Water are set out in
Section 4 of Appendix VII.

MATERIAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at the LPD, there are no material commitments or contingent liabilities incurred or known

to be incurred by Salcon Fujian and its subsidiary (“Fujian Group”} that are likely to have a
material adverse effect on Fujian Group's financial position.

i -1



APPENDIX1II

INFORMATION ON SALCON FUJIAN AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

7.

9.1

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

Fujian Group has not entered into any material contracts (not being contracts entered into in
the ordinary course of business) within the past two (2) years immediately preceding LPD.

MATERIAL LITIGATION

As at the LPD, Fujian Group is not engaged in any material litigation, claims or arbitration
either as plaintiff or defendant, and our Board has no knowledge of any proceedings pending
or threatened against Fujian Group or of any facts likely to give rise to any proceedings which
may materially affect the financial position or business of Fujian Group.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
Proforma Fujian Group

No consolidated financial statements have been prepared by Salcon Fujian for the past three
(3) years from FYE 31 December 2010 to FYE 31 December 2012 to include the resuits of its
subsidiary as Salcon, being the ultimate holding company of Salcon Fujian, prepared the
consolidated financial statements. For illustration purposes, the proforma unaudited
consolidated financial results of the Fujian Group for the past three (3) years from FYE 31
December 2010 to 31 December 2012 (based on the audited financial statements of Salcon
Fujian and its subsidiary for the respective financial years and the unaudited financial results
of Salcon Fujian and its subsidiary for the six (6) months FPE 30 June 2012 and FPE 30 June
2013) are as follows:

THE REST OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
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APPENDIX IV

INFORMATION ON SALCON ZHEJIANG AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

1.

HISTORY AND BUSINESS

Salcan Zhejiang was incorporated in Hong Kong under the Companies Crdinance on 12 June
2006 as a private iimited company.

Salcon Zhejiang is an investment holding company whilst the principal activities of its
subsidiaries are further detailed in Section 5 herein.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at the LPD, the authorised share capital of Salcon Zhejiang is HKD300,000,000
comprising 300,000,000 ordinary shares of HKD1.00 each of which HKD&1,828,945
comprising 61,829,945 ordinary shares of HKD1.00 each has been issued and fully paid-up.

DIRECTORS

The directors of Salcon Zhejiang and their respective shareholdings in Salcon Zhejiang as at
the LPD are as follows:

Cmneee Direct ---->  <----- Indirect ---->
No. of % No. of Yo
ordinary ordinary
Name Designation  Nationality shares shares
Tan Sr Dato’ Tee Tiam Director Malaysian - - - -
Lee
Dato’ Leong Kok Wah Director Malaysian - - - .
Law Woo Hock Director Malaysian - - - -

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

The shareholders of Salcon Zhejiang as at the LPD are Salcon Water and Salcon with
sharehoidings of 89.99% and 1 share of the total paid-up capital, respectively.
SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANY

Save as disclosed below, Salcon Zhejiang does not have any other subsidiary or associated
companies as at the LPD:

Company Bate and Equity Issued and paid-up Principal activities
place of interest share capital/
incorporation (%) registered capital
Haining 28.09.2006 60.G USD13,550,000 Management and operation of
Water PRC water production and sale of
water in Haining City, Zhejiang
Province

Haining Water currently operates a water treatment plant located in Haining City, Zheiiang
Province, PRC. The details of the concession held by Haining Water are set out in Section &
of Appendix VII.

MATERIAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at the LPD, there are no material commitments or contingent liabilities incurred or known
to be incurred by Salcon Zhsjiang and its subsidiary ("Zhejiang Group”) that are likely to
have a material adverse effect on Zhejiang Group’s financial position.

v -1



APPENDIX IV

INFORMATION ON SALCON ZHEJIANG AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

7.

9.1

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

Zhejiang Group has not entered into any material contracts (not being contracts entered into
in the ordinary course of business) within the past two (2) years immediately preceding LPD.

MATERIAL LITIGATION

As at the LPD, Zhejiang Group is not engaged in any material litigation, claims or arbitration
either as plaintiff or defendant, and our Board has no knowledge of any proceedings pending
or threatened against Zhejiang Group or of any facts likely to give rise to any proceedings
which may materially affect the financial position or business of Zhejiang Group.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
Proforma Zhejiang Group

No consolidated financial statements have been prepared by Salcon Zhejiang for the past
three (3) years from FYE 31 December 2010 to FYE 31 December 2012 to include the results
of its subsidiary as Salcon, being the ultimate holding company of Salcon Zhejiang, prepared
the consolidated financial statements. For illustration purposes, the proforma unaudited
consolidated financial results of the Zhejiang Group for the past three (3) years from FYE 31
December 2010 to 31 December 2012 {based on the audited financial statements of Salcon
Zhejiang and its subsidiary for the respective financial years and the unaudited financial
results of Salcon Zhejiang and its subsidiary for the six (6) months FPE 30 June 2012 and
FPE 30 June 2013) are as follows:
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APPENDIX V

INFORMATION ON SALCON LINYI AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

1.

HISTORY AND BUSINESS

Salcon Linyi was incorporated in Hong Kong under the Companies Ordinance on 11 January
2005 as a private limited company.

Salcon Linyi is an investment holding company whilst the principal activities of its subsidiaries
are further detailed in Section 5 herein.

SHARE CAPITAL

The authorised share capital of Salcon Linyi is HKD300,000,000 comprising 300,000,000
ordinary shares of HKD1.00 each of which HKD40,345,802 comprising 40,345,802 ordinary
shares of HKD1.00 each has been issued and fully paid-up.

DIRECTORS

The directors of Salcon Linyi and their respective shareholdings in Salcon Linyi as at the LPD
are as follows:

L J— Direct ----»  <umee- Indirect ---—->
No. of % No. of %
ordinary ordinary
Name Designation Nationality shares shares
Tan Sri Dato’ Tee Tiam Director Malaysian - - - -
Lee
Dato’ Leong Kok Wah Birector Malaysian - - - -
Law Woo Hock Director Malaysian - - - -

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

The shareholders of Salcon Linyi as at the LPD are Salcon Water and Saicon with
shareholdings of 99.99% and 1 share of the total paid-up capital, respectively.

SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANY

Save as disclosed below, Salcon Linyi does not have any other subsidiary or associated
companies as at the LPD:

Company Date and Equity Issued and paid-  Principal activities
place of interest up share capital/
incorporation (%) registered capifal
Linyi Water 07.11.2005 60.0 USD7,400,000 Management and operation of
PRC water production and distribution
_ of water in Linyi City
Linyi Runcheng 03.07.1993 100.0* RMB120,000 Repair and maintenance of
Water PRC municipal water supply pipeline,
equipment, water supply
equipment in Shandong Province
Linyi Water 11.07.2011 100.0 RMB10,000,000 Repair and maintenance  of
Supply PRC municipal water supply pipeline,
Facilities equipment, water supply
equipment in Shandong Province
Note:

* Sole beneficial owner



APPENDIX V

INFORMATION ON SALCON LINYI AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

9.1

Linyi Water currently operates a water treatment plant located in Linyi City, Shandong
Province, PRC. The details of the concessicn held by Linyi Water are set out in Section 6 of
Appendix VI

MATERIAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at the LPD, there are no material commitments or contingent liabilities incurred or known
to be incurred by Salcon Linyi and its subsidiaries (“Linyi Group”} that are likely to have a
material adverse effect on Linyi Group's financial position.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

Linyi Group has not entered into any material contracts (not being contracts entered into in
the ordinary course of business} within the past fwo (2} years immediately preceding LPD.

MATERIAL LITIGATION

As at the LPD, Linyi Group is not engaged in any material litigation, claims or arbitration either
as plaintiff or defendant, and our Board has no knowledge of any proceedings pending or
threatened against Linyi Group or of any facts likely to give rise to any proceedings which
may materially affect the financial position or business of Linyi Group.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
Proforma Linyi Group

No consolidated financial statements have been prepared by Salcon Linyi for the past three (3)
years from FYE 31 December 2010 to FYE 31 December 2012 to include the results of its
subsidiaries as Salcon, being the ultimate holding company of Salcon Linyi, prepared the
consolidated financial statements. For illustration purposes, the proforma unaudited
consolidated financial results of the Linyi Group for the past three (3) years from FYE 31
December 2010 to 31 December 2012 (based on the audited financial statements of Salcen
Linyi and its subsidiaries for the respective financial years and the unaudited financial results
of Salcon Linyi and its subsidiaries for the six (6} months FPE 30 June 2012 and FPE 30 June
2013) are as follows:

THE REST OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
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APPENDIX VI

INFORMATION ON SALCON SHANDONG AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

1.

HISTORY AND BUSINESS

Salcon Shandong was incorporated in Hong Kong under the Companies QOrdinance on 14 April
2008 as a private limited company.

Salcon Shandong is an investment holding company whilst the principal activities of its
subsidiaries are further detailed in Section 5 herein.

SHARE CAPITAL

The authorised share capital of Salcon Shandong is HKD300,000,000 comprising 300,000,000
ordinary shares of HKD1.00 each of which HKD127,488,971 comprising 127,488,971 ordinary
shares of HKD1.00 each has been issued and fully paid-up.

DIRECTORS

The directors of Salcon Shandong and their respective shareholdings in Salcon Shandong as at
the LPD are as follows:

L - Direct -—-> e Indirect ---->
No. of % No. of Yo
ordinary ordinary
Name Designation Nationality shares shares
Tan Sr Dato’ Tee Tiam Director Malaysian - - . -
Lee
Dato’ Leong Kok Wah Director Malaysian - - - -
Law Woo Hock Director Malaysian - - - -

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

The shareholders of Salcon Shandong as at the LPD are Salcon Water and Salcon with
shareholdings of 99.99% and 1 share of the total paid-up capitai, respectively.

SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANY

Save as disclosed below, Salcon Shandong does not have any other subsidiary or associated
companies as at the LPD:

Company Date and place Equity Issued and paid-up Principal activities
of interest share capital/
incorporation (%) registered capital
Shandong 14.11.2003 100.0 usD7,000,000 Management and
Changle Water PRC operation of water

production and wasle
water treatment plant and
distribution of water in

Changle County,

Shandong Province
Changle Raw 12.06.2008 100.0 USD8,680,000 Design, build and operate
Water PRC of water fransmission in

Changle County,

Shandong Province
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APPENDIX VI

INFORMATION ON SALCON SHANDONG AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

9.1

Shandong Changle Water currently operates a water treatment plant and WWTP located in
Changle County, Shandong Province, PRC whilst Changle Raw Water currently operates and
manages a raw water supply project in Changle County, Shandong Province, PRC. The details
of the concessions held by Shandong Changle Water and Changle Raw Water are set out in
Section 7 and Section 8 of Appendix VI, respectively.

MATERIAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Save as disclosed below, as at the LPD, there are no material commitments or contingent

liabilities incurred or known to be incurred by Salcon Shandong and its subsidiaries ("Shandong
Group”) that are likely to have a material adverse effect on Shandong Group’s financial position:

Material Commitments RMB’000
Capital expenditure:
Upgrading of the Shandong Changle Water's WWTP from Class 18 currently 25,000

to Class 1A as required by Weifang Environmental Bureau of Changle County

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

Shandong Group has not entered into any material contracts {not being contracts entered into in
the ordinary course of business} within the past two (2) years immediately preceding LPD.

MATERIAL LITIGATION

As at the LPD, Shandong Group is not engaged in any material litigation, claims or arbitration
either as plaintiff or defendant, and our Board has no knowledge of any proceedings pending or
threatened against Shandong Group or of any facts likely to give rise to any proceedings which
may materially affect the financial position or business of Shandong Group.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
Proforma Shandong Group

No consolidated financial statements have been prepared by Salcon Shandong for the past three
(3) years from FYE 31 December 2010 to FYE 31 December 2012 to include the results of its
subsidiaries as Salcon, being the ultimate holding company of Salcon Shandong, prepared the
consolidated financial statements. For illustration purposes, the proforma unaudited consolidated
financial results of the Shandong Group for the past three (3) years from FYE 31 December 2010
to 31 December 2012 (based on the audited financial statements of Salcon Shandong and its
subsidiaries for the respective financial years and the unaudited financial results of Salcon
Shandong and its subsidiaries for the six (6) months FPE 30 June 2012 and FPE 30 June 2013)
are as follows: '

THE REST OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
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APPENDIX VI

DETAILS OF CONCESSIONS

1.

DEQING DARCO

Deging Darco, currently operates a water treatment plant known as "Qian Yuan Water
Treatment Plant” located in Deging County, Zhejiang Province, PRC {("Qian Yuan Water
Treatment Plant”). On 12 December 2006, Darco Environmental Pte. Ltd. {now known as
Salcon Darco), the shareholder of Deging Darce had entered into a concession agreement
invalving the granting by Deqing County Construction Bureau of 25 years concession rights to
Darco Environmental Pte. Ltd. (now known as Salcon Darco} ("“Concession Agreement”) to
invest, construct and operate, the water supply engineering works in Deging County and to sell
treated water to Deging County Water Co., Ltd. ("Deqing County Water Co.").

Darco Environmental Pte. Ltd. (now known as Salcon Darce) had also on 12 December 2008
entered into a water purchase agreement with Deging County Water Co. whereby Deging
County Water Co. agreed to purchase treated water from Darco Environmental Pte. Ltd. (now
known as Salcon Darco) ("Water Purchase Agreement”) for a period of 25 years after Qian
Yuan Water Treatment Plant commenced operations on 1 January 2012 and will expire on 31
December 2036.

The Qian Yuan Water Treatment Plant has a design capacity of 100 MLD. The Concession
Agreement and Water Purchase Agreement are not renewable.

The salient terms of the Concession Agreement are as follows:

(a) Darco Environmental Pte. Ltd. (now known as Salcon Darco) shall be responsible in the
design, construction, ownership, operation and maintenance of the water supply
engineering works at its own cost and risk;

(b) Darco Environmental Pte. Ltd (now known as Salcon Darco) shall supply and Deging
County Water Co. shall purchase 80 MLD treated water in the first year of operation, 80
MLD treated water in the second year of operation and 100 MLD treated water in the third
year and subsequent years of operation according to the water tariff and charge as
stipulated in the Water Purchase Agreement entered between Darco Environmental Pte.
Ltd. (now known as Salcon Darco} and Deging County Water Co.;

{c) The concession period shall be 25 years, which commences from the date on which Qian
Yuan Water Treatment Plant is officially operated;

{d) During the concession period, Darco Environmental Pte. Ltd. {(now known as Salcon
Darco) enjoy the concession right, the right to property (including all facilities) and land
use rights;

(&) Darco Environmental Pte. Ltd. (now known as Salcon Darco) is obliged to meet the
normal water supply capacity within the concessicon area and to ensure the compliance of
drinking water standards in accordance to the law of China; and

() Darco Environmental Pte. Ltd. (now known as Salcon Darceo) has the right to assign all its
concession rights and obligations to Deging Darco.

Pursuant to an approval letter dated 28 May 2008 issued by Development and Reform
Commissicn, Zhejiang Province, PRC ("DRC"), DRC has approved Deging Darco to construct
and operate Qian Yuan Water Treatment Plant, and produce and supply treated water to
Deging Country Water Co. for a period of 25 years.

The total initial investment amount in Deging Darco was approximately RMB165.0 million. The
investment cost was funded 80% through bank borrowings and 20% through internally
generated funds. Deging Darco had subsequently obtained locan from financial institution for
the project financing.
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APPENDIX VIl

DETAILS OF CONCESSIONS (Cont’d)

2.

DEQING HUANZHONG

Deging Huanzhong currently operates a water treatmeni plant known as "Wukang Water
Treatment Plant” located in Deging Ceunty, Zheiiang Province, PRC (“Wukang Water
Treatment Plant”). On 5 September 2005, Globe Industrial Technology Company Limited
("Globe industrial®), a 95.58% owned subsidiary of Salcon Darco, entered into a joint-venture
agreement with Deqing County Water Co. to set up a joint venture company, namely Deging
Huanzhong (“Joint Venture Agreement”) for the design, construction, operation and
maintenance of phase 1 of the Wukang Water Treatment Plant and water supply engineering
works on a Build-Operate-Transfer ("BOT"} basis in Deqing County (“Project”).

Pursuant to the Joint Venture Agreement, Deging Huanzhong was set up and was granted
concession rights in respect of the Project. The Wukang Water Treatment Plant has a design
capacity of 60 MLD and had commenced operations since 18 April 2006 and the concession
will expire on 27 March 2028 pursuant to the Joint Venture Agreement. A separate water
purchase agreement has been entered between Deging Huanzhong and Degqing County
Water Co on the same day, i.e. on 5 September 2005 and the same is annexed to the Joint
Venture Agreement. The Joint Venture Agreement and the water purchase agreement are not
renewable.

The salient terms of the concession which are provided under the Joint Venture Agreement
are as follows:

{a) The concession period of the Project under the Joint Venture Agreement shalt be 22
years, which commences from the date en which Wukang Water Treatment Plant is
officially operated;

(b) Deqing County Water Co. shall purchase 60,000 cubic meters per day of treated water
from Deging Huanzhong for a period of 22 years and Deqging Huanzhong shall collect
payment therefrom according to the water purchase agreement entered between Deging
Huanzhong and Deging County Water Co. on 5 September 2005;

{c) Al the costs for construction, maintenance and facilities during the phase 1" of the
Project shall be borne by Globe Industrial; and

(d) Globe Industrial shall also be responsible for the debt and credit of Deging Huanzhong
during the operation period of the Project.

The total investment by Globe Industrial is RMB&5.24 million cash (approximately USD7.89
miliion), representing 88.32% of the total registered share capital of Deqing Huanzhong. Globe
Industrial shall inject the capital based on the timing stipuiated in the Joint Venture Agreement.
Deging County Water Co. Ltd will inject a land with a value of RMB8.63 million as its capital,
representing 11.68% of the total registered share capital of Deqing Huanzhong. The said iand
shall be used as Wukang Treatment Plant's construction site. The investment cost of
RMBG5.24 million was funded 80% through bank borrowings and 20% through internally
generated funds.

THE REST OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

1

The Joini Venture Agreement involves only Phase 1 of the Project. Phase 1 of the Project has been completed on 18 April
2006, i.e. on the same date when Wukang Water Treatment Plant commenced its operation. As at the LPD, the
subsequent phases of the Project has yet to be decided by Deqing Counly Municipal government.
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APPENDIX Vil

DETAILS OF CONCESSIONS {Cont'd)

3. YIZHENG WASTEWATER

Yizheng Wastewater currently operates a WWTP known as "Yizheng Waste Water Treatment
Plant” located in Yizheng City, Jiangsu Province, PRC. Jiangsu Water, a 66.67% owned
subsidiary of Salcon Jiangsu, had on 20 August 2010 entered into an equity transfer
agreement with Wins Sun Infernational Investment Company Limited ("Wins Sun”), in relation
to the acquisition of the entire equity interest in Yizheng Rong Xin Wastewater Treatment
Company Limited (now known as "Yizheng Wastewater") for a total cash consideration of
RMB44 million. Wins Sun had on 18 July 2003 entered info a concession agreement with the
People's Government of Yizheng, Jiangsu Province, PRC ("Concession Agreement’) to
build, finance, operate and maintain the WWTP on a BOT basis for the purpose of carrying
out treatment of wastewater in Yizheng City. The rights and obligation in the Concession
Agreement has been novated and assigned to Yizheng Wastewater upon its incorporation
pursuant to the terms and conditions set cut in the supplemental concession agreement dated
1 December 2010 ("Supplemental Concession Agreement”). The concession is exclusive
and Phase 1 and Phase 2 of the concession will expire on 1 September 2043,

The WWTP has a design capacity of 50 MLD, of which 25 MLD has been completed under
Phase 1 in October 2006. Further and subsequent to the Supplemental Concession
Agreement, Phase 2 of the WWTP for 25 MLD was constructed by Water Bureau of Yizheng
City and was completed in October 2011. The commercial operation of Phase 2 was on 1
September 2013.

On 6 May 2013, Yizheng Wastewater had entered into an assets acquisition agreement with
Water Bureau of Yizheng City (“Assets Acquisition Agreement”) wherein Yizheng
Wastewater had acqguired assets of Phase 2 of the WWTP? for a total cash consideration of
RMB30.754 million upon the terms and condition stated therein. The cash consideration of
RMB30.754 million would be funded wholly through internally generated funds. The cash
consideration of RMB30.754 million was arrived at based an market value of the said assets
of RMB30.754 million as ascribed by Shenzhen ShiHua Assets Appraisai Co Ltd, an
independent valuer, on 30 September 2012. The said assets were valued using the cost-
based valuation. The Assets Acquisition Agreement is expected to be completed by
December 2013.

On the same day, Yizheng Wastewater also entered into an assets custodian agreement with
Water Bureau of Yizheng City (“Asset Custodian Agreement’) whereby Water Bureau of
Yizheng City has assigned to Yizheng Wastewater the non-operating support facilities of
Phase 2 of the WWTP including garden, greenfield, lights, rock garden (“Custody Assets")
for a pericd consistent with the concession right period, which will expire on 1 September
2043 (“Custody Period™).

The satient terms of the Concession Agreement are as follows:

{a) Yizheng Wastewater shall be responsible to invest, build and operate the WWTP on BOT
basis for the purpose of carrying out treatment of wastewater in Yizheng.

{b) The concession period for phase 1 of the WWTP is 21.5 years commencing from 1 July
2003 and expiring on 31 December 2024, and shall consist of the following:

(i 1.5 years for the construction of the WWTP; and
(iiy 20 years for the operation of the WWTP.

The concession period may be extended subject to mutual agreement of the People’s
Government of Yizheng and Yizheng Wastewater.

?  Assets comprise processing plants, pipelines, machineries and equipment of Phase 2 of the WWTP. The assets acquired

are sufficient to run the operation of Phase 2 of the WWTP.
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APPENDIX VII

DETAILS OF CONCESSIONS (Cont'd)

(c) The concession rights granted fo Yizheng Wastewater to operate in Yizheng is exclusive.
The People’'s Government of Yizheng has undertaken not to grant the concession rights,
wholly or partly, to any third party and will not approve the setiing up of other WWTPs in
the areas designated for Yizheng Wastewater.

(d} The wastewater treatment fee is collected from the People's Government of Yizheng, and
the Finance Department of the People's Government of Yizheng has aiso undertaken to
seftie the treatment fee which has been delayed by the government and make good for
the shortfall of the treatment fee which has not been paid by the government, if any.

The purchase consideration for the acquisition of Yizheng Wastewater of RMB44 million was
funded via equity (cash) injection by the shareholders of Jiangsu Water into Jiangsu Water.
Yizheng Wastewater had subseqguentiy obtained loan from financial institution for the project
financing. The acqguisition of Yizheng Wastewater was completed on 12 November 2010.

The saiient terms of the Supplemental Concession Agreement are as follows:-

(a) Yizheng Wastewater shall have the exclusive rights to invest, build, operate and maintain
the WWTP on BOT basis for the purpose of carrying out Phase 2 of WWTP in Yizheng.

{b) The concession pericd is 30 years commencing from the commercial operation date
under Phase 2 of WWTP. Accordingly, the concession period for Phase 1 shall be
extended and be terminated together with Phase 2 of the WWTP.

The Supplemental Concession Agreement is not renewabie. Upon the expiration of the
Supplemental Concession Agreement on 1 September 2043, the WWTP must be transferred
to People’s Government of Yizheng, Jiangsu Province, PRC.

The salient terms of the Assets Acguisition Agreement are as follows:-

(a) Water Buresau of Yizheng City has invested and constructed major assets for phase 2 of
the WWTP on the State-owned land during the concession period granted to Yizheng
Wastewater.

(b} Water Bureau of Yizheng City agreed to transfer and Yizheng Wastewater agreed to
acquire the assets in cash consideration of a sum of RMB30.754 million paid by Yizheng
Wastewater to Water Bureau of Yizheng City in the following manner:

{i) RMB30.0 million will be paid to Water Bureau of Yizheng City within 5 months from
the date of delivery of the assets and engineering data by Water Bureau of Yizheng
City to Yizheng Wastewater ("First Payment”). The expected date of delivery of
the assets and engineering data is in end of December 2013; and

(i)  subject to any deductions arising from the defects of assets to be acguired by
Yizheng Wastewater under the Asset Acquisition Agreement, the balance of the
cash consideration amounting to RMB754,252 will be payable to Water Bureau of
Yizheng City within 1 year from the First Payment.

(c) Water Bureau of Yizheng City shall underfake to transfer all government project
information, the certificates of equipment, invoices, technical information, bidding
information, construction contracts, completion of final accounts, inspection data,
environmental inspection data, and ali files related to the operation of the major assets to
Yizheng Wastewater.

(d) Yizheng Wastewater shall have the right to acquire the remaining assets of phase 2 of
WWTP at the appropriate time’.

®  As at the LPD, the appropriate time to acquire the remaining assets of phase 2 of WWTP has yet to be decided by parties

to the Assets Acguisition Agreement. For defails of the remaining assets of Phase 2 of WWTP, please refer to the Custody
Assets as described in the Asset Custodian Agreement as set out in Section 3 of Appendix VI of this Circular.
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DETAILS OF CONCESSIONS (Cont'd)

The salient terms of the Asset Custodian Agreement are as follows:-

{a) During the Custody Period, Yizheng Wastewater shall have the exclusive right to the
ownership, usage and management of the Custody Assets;

{b) Yizheng Wastewater shall be responsible to the repair and maintenance of the Custody
Assets at its own costs, unless the Custody Assets or any part thereof shall be destroyed
or damaged by force majeure;

(c) Yizheng Wastewater shall not assign or transfer the Custody Assets to any other party
during the Custody Period, failing which Yizheng Wastewater shall be liable to
compensate Water Bureau of Yizheng City, the amount of which shall be calculated
based on the valuation to be carried out by an independent valuer at that point of time;
and

(d) The Assets Custody Agreement shall be effective at the same time with the Asset
Acquisition Agreement.

4, NAN AN WATER

Nan An Water currently operates and manages a raw water transfer project in Nan An City,
Fujian Province, PRC. Salcon Fujian had on 14 January 2008 entered into a joint venture
agreement with Nan An City Trading Industry & Agriculture investment Co Lid. to jointly
establish Nan An Water, on a 65:35 basis, to develop and construct coastal 3-town water
supply engineering project of Nan An City ("Coastal 3-Town Water Project”).

On 26 May 2008, Nan An Water entered into a concession agreement with the Pecple's
Government of Nan An City (*Nan An Government™) for a concession period of 30 years, on
a BOT basis whereby Nan An Water has been granted the right by Nan An Government to
design, finance, construct, operate and maintain the relevant water supply engineering works,
supply raw water to Nan An Guan Qiao Water Supply Company, Nan An Shui Tou Water
Supply Company and Nan An Shi Jing Water Supply Company respectively (Guan Qiao, Shui
Tou and Shi Jing shall collectively referred as “3 Coastal Towns”) and the right to collect fees
therefrom, as well as the exclusive right to execute standardised rmanagement on the water
resources or to purchase scurce water from ShiBi, HouQiao and ShuNei reservoirs for the 3
Coastal Towns.

Nan An Water had on 8 December 2009, 7 September 2009 and 22 April 2009 entered into
raw water purchase agreement with Nan An Guan Qiac Water Supply Company, Nan An Shui
Tou Water Supply Company and Nan An Shi Jing Water Supply Company, respectively, for
the purpose of the Coastal 3-Town Water Project. Each of the raw water purchase agreement
is valid until the expiration of the concession period and it is not renewabte.

The Coastal 3-Town Water Project will be constructed in 2 phases i.e. 170 MLD in Phase |
and 175 MLD in Phase Il. Phase | of the raw water transfer project was completed in 1
November 2012 and commenced operations on the same date. Phase Il of the raw water
transfer project is expected to be completed on 31 December 2026. The concession will
expire on 25 May 2038.

The salient terms of the concession agreement are as follows:

{a) the agreement shali form the basis for Nan An Water in the financing, designing,
construction, operation, maintenance, service of the project during the concession period.
it shall also form part of the basis for the Nan An Government to supervise Nan An
Water;

(b) The Nan An Government shall assist in the following area in accordance/compliance with
the relevant laws in China:
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() moenitoring and supervising the design, construction, operation and maintenance of
the water supply engineering works;

() assist Nan An Water in obtaining all the necessary approval pertaining tc the
design, construclion, operation and maintenance of the water supply engineering
works;

(i)  assist Nan An Water in processing documentations for land approval in
accordance with the law;

(iv) guarantee that Nan An Water enjoys the water intake right within the concession
period; and

(v}  ensure the concession right is fulfiled according to the law by Nan An Water within
the concession area,

(c} During the concession period, Nan An Water shall enjoy, amongst others the following
rights and cbligations:

(0 to supply water to Nan An Guan Qiao Water Supply Company, Nan An Shui Tou
Water Supply Company and Nan An Shi Jing Water Supply Company respectively
in accordance with the stipulated price and areas stated in the respective water
purchase agreement, to operate legally and obtain reasonable returns; and

(iy  to guarantee the sufficiency and quality of the raw water and to meet the
requirement of Nan An 3 Coastal Towns water plants (GuanQiao, Shui Tou, Shi
Jing) in accordance with the law of PRC and the requirement contained in the
agreement,;

(d) The Nan An Government shall guarantee that Nan An Water can obtain the approvat for
taking water from the water resource area granted by the government continuously;

(e} The Nan An Government shall assure the minimum guarantee water quantity with Nan
An Water; and

(f) Upon the expiry of the concession right, Nan An Water shail transfer its water supply
engineering, all the relevant document, material and files pertaining o the project to the
Nan An Government or its designated organisation.

Both Nan An Government, being the concession giver, and Nan An Water are bounded by the
concession agreement. Nevertheless, in incidences of any breach by Nan An Water, the
concession giver has the right to terminate the said agreement. In this respect, Nan An Water
will ensure that all reasonable steps are taken to prevent any such breach,

The initial funding of the water supply project was via equity (cash) injections made by Nan An
City Trading Industry & Agriculture Investment Co Ltd. and Salcon Fujian. The total initial
investment by Salcon Fujian and Nan An City Trading Industry & Agriculture Investment Co
Ltd. was RMB65 million and RMB35 million representing 65% and 35% respectively of the
total registered share capital of Nan An Water. The investment cost of RMB65 million by
Salcon Fujian was funded 80% through bank borrowings and 20% through internally
generated funds. Nan An Water had subsequently obtained loan from financial institution for
the project financing.
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5.

HAINING WATER

Haining Water currently operates a water treatment plant known as “Haining Shuang Xi Giao
Water Treatment Plant” located in Haining City, Zhejiang Province, PRC (“Haining Shuang Xi
Qiao Water Treatment Plant”). Salcon Zhejiang had on 31 August 2006 entered into an
agreement with Haining City Water Investrment Ltd. Group to set up Haining Water, a joint
venture company, on a 60:40 basis to design, operate, maintain, produce and sell treated
water in bulk to Haining City Water Supply Company, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Haining
City Water Investment Ltd which in turn will supply the treated water to the consumers of
Haining City, Zhejiang Province, PRC.

On 9 October 2006, Haining Water entered into a bulk purchase agreement invalving the
purchase by Haining City Water Supply Company from Haining Water of treated water {“Bulk
Purchase Agreement”). On even date, Haining Water entered into a concession agreement
involving the granting by Haining City Construction & Planning Bureau, Zhejiang Province,
PRC (“Haining City Construction”) of 30 years concession rights on a BOT basis to Haining
Water ("Concession Agreement’) to design, finance, construct, cperate and maintain the
water supply engineering works and collection of charges from Haining City Water Supply
Company.

Construction of the Phase | and Phase |l of the water treatment plant with a total capacity of
300 MLD have been fully completed and commenced operations in November 2007 and June
2010, respectively. Both the Concession Agreement and Bulk Purchase Agreement will expire
on 8 October 2036.

The salient terms of the concession agreement are as follows:

fa) During the concession period, Haining Water shall enjoy the following rights and
obligations:

{iy to supply water in accordance with the Bulk Purchase Agreement and obtain
reasonable returns;

(il to guarantee the sufficiency and quality of the water source and to meet the
requirement of Haining City Water Supply Company of water quality and provision of
water supply service in accordance with the law of PRC;

(i) Haining Water has pricrity for the newly built water supply facilities; and

(iv) establish and improve preduction safety system to prevent accidents occur.

(b} Haining City Construction shall enjoy the following rights and obligations:

(i) to supervise and inspect the provision of water supply service by Haining Water;

(i} to formulate annual water supply quality supervision and investigation proposals,
conduct sampiing on the water quality of the water source and provide
comprehensive evaluation on a yearly basis; and

(i) to maintain the completeness of the concessicn right; and

(¢} The Bulk Purchase Agreement and Concession Agreement are not renewable. Upon
expiry of the concession right, Haining Water shall transfer its water supply engineering,

all the relevant document, material and files pertaining to the project to Haining City
Construction or its designated organisation.
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Both Haining City Construction, being the concession giver, and Haining Water are bounded
by the concession agreement. Nevertheless, in incidences of any breach by Haining Water,
the concession giver has the right to terminate the said agreement. In this respect, Haining
Water will ensure that all reasonable steps are taken to prevent any such breach.

The initial funding of the water supply project was via equity injections made by Haining City
Water Investment Ltd. Group (assets and cash) and Salcon Zhejiang (cash}. The investment
by Salcon Zhejiang is approximately USD8.13 million, representing 60% of the total registered
capital of Maining Water. The investment cost of USD8.13 million by Salcon Zhejiang was
funded 80% through bank borrowings and 20% through internally generated funds. Haining
Water had subsequently obtained loan from financial institution for the project financing
whereby corporate guarantee was provided by Salcon and Haining City Water Investment Ltd.
Group. The corporate guarantee provided by Salcon is for a sum of RMB10.5 million and will
be uplifted prior to the completion of SPA-B.

LINYl WATER

Linyi Water currently operates a water treatment plant known as “Linyi Dong Bei Yuan Water
Treatment Plant” located in Linyi City, Shandong Province, PRC. Salcon Water (HK) Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Salcon, had on 28 May 2004 entered intc a joint venture
agreement with Shandong Province Linyi City Water Supply Company (“Linyi Municipality
Company"} to set up Linyi Water, a joint venture company, on a 60:40 basis. Subsequently on
3 April 2005, both parties entered into a supplementary agreement whereby it was agreed
amongst others that the name of the investment company which was stated as Salcon Water
{HK) Limited in the original agreement be changed to Salcon Linyi {HK) Limited.

On 11 November 2005, Linyi Water entered into a concession agreement with the Pecple’s
Government of Linyi City, Shandong Province, PRC (“Linyi City Government”) on a Transfer-
Operate-Transfer ("TOT’) basis (“Concession Agreement’) whereby the Linyi City
Government granted to Linyi Water the right on the design, construction, cperation,
maintenance of water supply engineering works, supplying water to the consumers and
collection of charges from the end consumers within the concession area®, within the
concession pericd of 30 years from the effective date of the agreement and the official
operation date where Linyi Water starts to supply water to the consumers,

The water treatment plant commenced operations since 1997 and has a design capacity of
150 MLD. The Concession Agreement will expire on 31 December 2035. Linyi Water shall
enjoy the exclusive right under the Concessicn Agreement.

The salient terms of the Concession Agreement are as follows:

(a) Except for the obligations stated in the agreement, the Linyi City Government shall assist,
supervise and monitor Linyl Water in carrying out the following works. However, the Linyi
City Government shall not bear any responsibility in providing such assistance,
supervision nor would their existence result in the elimination or reducticn of any
chligations or responsibilities which shall be borne by Linyi Water:

(i) monitoring and supervising the design, construction, operation and maintenance of
the water supply engineering works;

(i) assist Linyi Water in obtaining all the necessary approval pertaining to the design,
construction, operation and maintenance of the water supply engineering works;

{iii) assist Linyi Water in obtaining the land use right of the project site in accordance
with the land use standard of public infrastructure;

4

Concession area means Lan Shan District (including Nan Fang Pian Disfrict), He Dong District, Luo Zhuong District, Linyi
Economic Development Zone and Linyi High-Tech Industrial Development Zone,
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(i)

(vi)

(vii)

protect and manage water collection zone. When proposed by Linyi Water to the
Linyi City Government, the Linyi City Government shall increase and confirm the
additional water collection zone or increase the raw water supply at anytime. Further,
the increasing rate of raw water resource fee shall be maintained at minimum cost
and shall not exceed the increasing rate of water supply fee;

guarantee Linyi Water to enjoy the water intake right within the concession period, as
well as assuring the sufficiency of water supply and water quality which is in
compliance with the relevant regulations;

assist Linyi Water in completing the preliminary works and construction of
permanent municipal facilities and other works, including:

» relocating the affected residents, dismantling any buildings or obstacles at the
project site;

= temporary or permanent electricity, water supply, wastewater, sewerage and
road; and

= the closing down of self-supply wells and other water supply according to the
time as stipulated in the agreement within the cover area of reticulation network.

assist in confirming the electricity fee pursuant to the standards of major industrial
electricity charges;

{b} During the concession period, Linyi Water shall enjoy the following rights and obligations:

legal rights to supply water to the final consumers exclusively in the concession area
and obtain reasonable returns;

to ensure the operation of the water treatment plant in the concession area, normal
maintenance of the water supply reticulation network and provision of water supply
service to the consumers in the concession area in line with social and economic
development;

to meet the requirements of water quality, water quantity, water pressure and
provision of water supply service in accordance with the law of PRC and the
requirement contained in the agreement;

to fulfill the obligation with social benefit as agreed by both parties; and

save from the regulations stipulated in the agreement, Linyi Water shall report the
project contract to the Linyi City Government for recording purpose;

(c) The Concession Agreement is not renewable. Upon expiry of the concession right as
stipulated in the agreement, Linyi Water shall transfer with no considerations all of its
fixed assets, rights, documents, materials and files to the Linyi City Government or its
designated organisation on the date of transfer and ensure that the fixed assets fulfill the
standard technical requirements and functionality requirement.

Both Linyi City Government, being the concession giver, and Linyi Water are bounded by the
concession agreement. Nevertheless, in incidences of any breach by Linyi Water, the
concession giver has the right to terminate the said agreement. In this respect, Linyi Water will
ensure that all reasonable steps are taken to prevent any such breach.
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71

The initial funding of the water supply project was via equity (cash) injections made by Linyi
City Government and Salcon Linyi. The investment by Salcon Linyi is approximately USD3.71
million, representing 60% of the total registered capital of Linyi Water. The investment cost of
USD3.71 millien by Salcon Linyi was funded 80% through bank borrowings and 20% through
internally generated funds.

SHANDONG CHANGLE WATER

Water concession

Shandong Changle Water currently operates Cheng Nan Water Treatment Plant located in
Changle County, Shandong Province, PRC. Salcon Water (HK} Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Salcon, had on 25 July 2003 entered into a joint venture agreement with Changle
County General Water Supply Company to set up the joint venture company, Shandong
Changle Water, on a 7525 hasis to handle, upgrade and manage the existing and newly-built
facilities/plant for the production and supply of potable water and industrial water to the
consumers in Changle County, including water users from household, organization, industrial
and business, respectively, on a TOT basis. On 25 July 2003, the People’'s Government of
Changle County, Shandong Province, PRC (“Changle Government’) issued a letter of
undertaking granting the concession right to Shandong Changle Water to operate the plant
with 40 MLD capacity, exclusively for 50 years i.e. from 1 January 2004 to 31 December 2053
{“Undertaking Letter’). On 21 November 2005, Salcon Water (HK) Limited entered into a
sale and purchase agreement with Changle County General Water Supply Company to
acquire the remaining 25% of the registered share capital of Shandong Changle Water for
RMB4 million in cash, which was financed wholly by internally generated funds.

Subsequently, Shandong Changle Water signed a “Memorandum of Shandeng Changle 100
MLD Water Plant Expansion and Investment Project” and the “Construction of 100 MLD New
Water Plant and Nan Liu Quan Water Plant Counter Buy Agreement’ with Changle
Government on 18 March 2008 and 21 Aprit 2008, respectively, which stipulates that within
the authority of the existing concession right, Shandong Changle Water shall construct,
operate and manage a new water treatment plant with a capacity of 100MLD, on a BOT basis.
Upon operation of the 100 MLD new water plant, the Changle Government shall close down
the existing 40 MLD water plant, after the acquisition of the said existing 40 MLD water ptant
by the Changle Government from Shandong Changle Water.

On 3 July 2008, Salcon Water (HK) Limited entered into a sale and purchase agreement with
Salcon Shandong to dispose all its shares in Shandong Changle Water to Salcon Shandong.

The 40 MLD water treatment plant commenced operations since 1 January 2004 and ceased
operations in October 2011. The new 100 MLD water treatment plant commenced operations
in October 2011. The concession will expire on 13 November 2053. The concession right
given is not renewable.

The salient terms of concession are as provided in the joint venture agreement, as follows:

{a) Shandong Changle Water 15 to possess, upgrade, construct, operate and manage the
water production and distribution systems in the Changle County as well as to produce
and sell water in compliance with the standards to potable and industrial users (excluding
wastewater treatment and its related activities}.

(b) The co-operation period shall be of 50 years commencing from the date on which the
business license was obtained ("Co-operation Period”). The said business license was
issued by the National Administrative Bureau for Industry and Commerce, PRC.,

{¢) The following are the water tariff and charge:

(i} Initial water tariff and charge for household and industrial consumption shall be
based on the existing regulations and policies;
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7.2

(i) The General Manager of Shandong Changle Water shall submit the proposal for the
revision to the water fariff to the Board of Directors of Shandeng Changle Water and
relevant government departments for approval after the signing of the joint venture
agreement. The approval from the Board of Directors of Shandong Changle Water is
to be obtained one (1) month before the end of every two (2) years ar within one (1)
month upon which the state policies are published; and

(i In the event there is an obvious increase in the production costs of Shandeng
Changle Water, the Board of Directors of Shandang Changle Water has the rights to
request for an increase in the water tariff from the government departments.

Both Changle County General Water Supply Company and Shandong Changle Water are
bounded by the Undertaking Letter. Nevertheless, in incidences of any breach by Shandong
Changle Water, the concession giver has the right to terminate the said agreement. In this
respect, Shandong Changle Water will ensure that all reasonable steps are taken to prevent
any such breach.

The initial funding of the water project was via equity injections made by Changle County
General Water Supply Company (assets and cash) and Salcon Water {HK) Limited (cash).
The investments by Salcon Water (HK) Limited is approximately USD1.44 mitlion,
representing 75% of the total registered share capital of Shandong Changle Water. The
investment cost of USD1.44 million by Salcon Water (HK} Limited was funded 80% through
bank borrowings and 20% through internally generated funds.

In 2008, Salcon Shandong acquired Shandong Changle Water from Salcon Water (HK)
Limited. The acquisition was funded via equity {cash) injection by the shareholders of Salcon
Shandong. Shandong Changle Water had subsequently obtained loans from financial
institution for the project financing whereby corporate guarantee was provided by Salcon. The
corporate guarantee provided by Salcon is for a sum of RMBES.2 million and will be uplifted
prior to the completion of SPA-B.

Wastewater concession

Shandong Changle Water currently operates a WWTP known as "Changle Salcon Waste
Water Treatment Plant” located in Changle County, Shandong Province, PRC. Salcon Water
{HK) Limited had on 27 February 2005 entered into a framework agreement with the Changle
Government to takeover a wastewater treatment plant on a TOT basis. Subsequently on 22
April 2005, Salcon Water (HK) Limited entered into a TOT agreement i.e. "Changle
Wastewater Treatment Plant TOT Project Agreement’ to secure the concession of 30
years from the Changle Government, whereby an operating Company, Shandong Changle
Water was incorporated to engage in the design, finance, construction, transfer, operation and
maintenance of the wastewater treatment facilities inside the Changle County WWTP for the
Changle Government.

The WWTP commenced operations since 22 April 2005 and has a design capacity of 40
MLD. The concession is exclusive and will expire on 21 April 2035. The concession right given
is not renewable.

The salient terms and conditions of the concession which are provided in the Changle
Wastewater Treatment Plant TOT Project Agreement are as foliows:

(a) The Changle Government shall grant the following exclusive responsibilities to Salcon
Water (HK) Limited without compensation for 30 years from the first transfer date (60
days within the signing and effectives of the agreement or 15 days upon which all the
conditions precedents are fulfiled, whichever is later), which shall be the date on which
the existing facilities is transferred from Changle Government to Salcon Water (HK)
Limited (“First Transfer Date"} ("Concession Period”) and issue relevant license of
operating wastewater treatment business to Shandong Changle Water:

(i} Manage, own, operate and maintain the existing facilities and extension portion of
the existing facilities;
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(b)

{i) Financing, design and build the extension part of the existing facilities;
(ili) Exclusive right to treat wastewater in the service area; and

{iv) Collect the abovementioned relevant wastewater treatment service fee from Changle
government.

The effective date being the First Transfer Date is 5 January 2006.

The Concession rights have been novated to Shandong Changle Water on 7 December
2005.

Salcon Water (HK) Limited shall be entitled to enjoy the following rights within the
Concession Period:

(i} To enjoy the property rights of the project and takeover all the facilities, equipment,
records of the WWTP;

(i)  To operate and manage the wastewater treatment plant, enjoy all owner's equity
and profit-sharing right, own, use, manage and maintain all the facilities;

(i) Salcon Water (HK) Limited shall have the exclusive right within the service areas
on the concession right granted by the Changle Government, the Changle
Government shall guarantee that it shall not sign any contracts or agreements with
any third party which is in competition with any items contained in the agreement;
and

{iv)  The ownership of the project and the concession right on the wastewater treatment
business belong to Salcon Water (HK) Limited and the Shandong Changle Water
during the Concession Period. All the ownership right of the project shall be
transferred to the Changle Government upon expiry of the Concession Period and
Salcon Water (HK) Limited shall guarantee that the project is free from
encumbrances during the second transfer which is the date on which the existing
facilities is transferred by Salcon Water (HK) Limited to Changle Government
based on the market price at that time and settlement of the transfer payment upon
expiry of the Concession Period. The transfer value will be determined later.

Both Changle Government, being the concession giver, and Shandong Changle Water are
bounded by the concession agreement. Nevertheless, in incidences of any breach by
Shandong Changle Water, the concession giver has the right to terminate the said agreement.
In this respect, Shandong Changle Water will ensure that all reasonable steps are taken to
prevent any such breach.

The total investment amount for the WWTP is RMB18 million by Shandong Changle Water
was funded 80% through bank borrowings and 20% through internally generated funds.

THE REST OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
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8.

CHANGLE RAW WATER

Changle Raw Water currently operates and manages a raw water supply project in Changle
County, Shandong Province, PRC. Salcon Shandong had on 21 April 2008 entered intc a
concession agreement (“Raw Water Supply Concession Agreement”) with the Changle
Government to establish Changle Raw Water, a foreign wholly owned project company in
Changle County, Shandong Province, PRC (“Project Company”}. Upon the establishment of
the Project Company, Salcon Shandong’s rights and obligations stated in the agreement shall
be transferred to the Project Company. The concession is on a BOT basis for a period of 30
years and involves the design, construction, ownership, operation and maintenance of the raw
water project. The facilities i.e. raw water pipelines are to channel raw water from the Gae Ya
reservoir to the 100 MLD water treatment plant owned by Shandong Changle Water.

Construction of the raw water pipelines was completed on 11 November 2011 and
commenced operations on 1 March 2012. The concession will expire on 28 February 2042.

The salient terms of the Raw Water Supply Concession Agreement are as follows:

(a) Salcon Shandong shall be responsible in the design, finance, construction, cwnership,
operation and maintenance of the water supply engineering works, and upon the expiry of
the concession period, shall transfer the raw water supply project to the organisation
appointed by the Changle Government.

{b) Each party agrees that the agreement shall only form the basis for the Project Company
in the financing, design, construction, operation, maintenance, service of the project
during the concession period. It shall alse form part of the basis for the Changle
Government to supervise Salcon Shandong in accordance with the terms and conditions
contained in the agreement during the concession period.

(¢) The agreement shall not constitute a joint venture or partnership relationship between the
Changle Government and Salcon Shandong.

(d) The concession pericd shall be 30 years, which commences from the date on which the
Project Company is officially operated.

(e) The initial estimated investment amount of the Project Company shall be USD15.8 million
{RMB109 million) whereby Salcon Shandong shall inject the capital based on the timing
stipulated in the Memorandum & Articles of Association approved by the approving
authority. On 3 June 2009, the investment amount of the Project Company was revised to
USD21.7 million (RMB148 million).

() Salcon Shandong shall be responsible in the design and technical service, financing
arrangement, procurement, construction, operation and maintenance of the project within
the concession period whilst the Changle Government shall assist in the following area in
accordance with the relevant laws in PRC:

(it Monitoring and supetvising the design, construction, operation and maintenance of
the water supply engineering works,

(i) Assist Salcon Shandong in obtaining all the necessary approval pertaining to the
design, construction, operation and maintenance of the water supply engineering
works;

(i) Assist Salcon Shandong in obtaining the land use right of the project site in
accordance with the land use standard of public infrastructure;

(iv) Assist Saicon Shandong in processing the documentations of using the land in
accordance with the law;

{v) Guarantee Salcon Shandong to enjoy the water intake right within the concession
period;

VIl -13



APPENDIX VI

DETAILS OF CONCESSIONS (Cont’d)

{vi) Assist Salcon Shandong in compteting the preliminary works and construction of
permanent municipal facilities and other works; and

(viiy Taking strong measures to protect the ecology of water resources area.

(g) During the concession period, Salcon Shandong shall enjoy the foliowing rights and
obligations:

(i) to supply water to areas in accordance with the price stipulated;

(i) to meet water demand within the concession area and to ensure that water quality is
in compliance with the requirement of relevant standards as well as the law of PRC
and the requirement contained in the agreement;

{iiiy upon the operation of water supply engineering works, Salcon Shandong shall obtain
the water resource from Gao Ya Reservoir or various water reservoirs within the
Changle County, and has the right to sell raw water to the raw water users (both
water production companies and end consumers) of Changle County; and

{h) The Raw Water Supply Concession Agreement is not renewable. Upon expiry of the
concession right, Salcon Shandong shall guarantee that all facilities are in good condition
and all the liabilittes have been cleared, Salcon Shandong, shall transfer without
consideration the engineering facilities which is related to the water supply project and all
the relevant document, material and files to the Changle Government of its designated
organization.

Both Changle Government, being the concession giver, and Changle Raw Water are bounded
by the concession agreement. Nevertheless, in incidences of any breach by Changle Raw
Water, the concession giver has the right to terminate the said agreement. In this respect,
Changle Raw Water will ensure that all reasonable steps are taken to prevent any such
breach.

The initial investment amount in Changle Raw Water amounting to approximately USD8.70
million was funded by Salcon Shandong. The investment cost was funded 80% through bank
borrowings and 20% through internally generated funds. Changle Raw Water had
subsequently obtained loan from financial institution for the project financing, whereby
corporate guarantee was provided by Salcon. The corporate guarantee provided by Salcon is
for a sum of RMB74 million and will be uplifted prior to the completion of SPA-B.

9. JIANGSU WATER
On 12 December 2009, the People’s Government of Yizheng City, Jiangsu Province, PRC had
authorised both Jiangsu Water to enter into a concession agreement with Water Bureau of
Yizheng City on a Build-Operate-Transfer ("BOT"} basis (“Concession Agreement”) whereby
Jiangsu Water was granted the concession right for the implementation of the water transfer
project in the central region of Yizheng City (“Project”).

The salient terms of the Concession Agreement are as follows:

{a) Jiangsu Water shall be responsibie in the design, finance, construction, operation,
maintenance and transfer of the water supply engineering works on a BOT basis;

(b) The concession period shall be 30 years, which commences from the official commercial
operation date of the Project (not inclusive construction period};
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{¢) Jiangsu Water shall connect the water engineering works together with the related
construction facilities in the concession area which include Long He Town, Ma Ji Town,
Xie Ji Vilage and Yue Tang Vilage, from leheng Huaqlan Water Center to
Xiangzhaolinwan Ecclogy Park and Tongshan office (1 and 2 pipeline networks), and
supply water from the towns and villages under the 1% and 2™ pipeline networks to the
end user;

(d} The total investment of the water engineering works together with the related construction
facilities of the Project is tentatively fixed at RMB150.0 million;

(e) During the concession period, Jiangsu Water shall enjoy the tand use rights and shall has
the right to collect service fee from Water Bureau of Yizheng City at the stipulated rate;
and

(f) The concession agreement is not renewable. Upon the expiry of the concession, Jiangsu
Water shall transfer without consideration the engineering works facilities which are
related to the Project to Water Bureau of Yizheng City.

Subsequent to the Concession Agreement, Yizheng City & Rural Water Company Limited, a
subordinate unit of Water Bureau of Yizheng City constructed the Project. Hence, Yizheng City
& Rural Water Company Limited, a subordinate unit of Water Bureau of Yizheng City, had on
1 December 2010 entered into an asset acquisition agreement with Jiangsu Water
("Acquisition Agreement”) for Jiangsu Water to acquire the pipelines networks and its
ancillary facilities in connection with the Project from Yizheng City & Rural Water Company
Limited. The salient terms of the Acquisition Agreement are as follows:

(8) Yizheng City & Rural Water Company Limited has agreed to transfer and Jiangsu Water
has agreed to acquire assets including pipelines networks of the central region of the
Yizheng city, pipelines of automobile industry park, Chao Shan pressure pump station,
Chen Jia Zhuang pressure pump station and the rights to use the land ("Assets’};

(b) Both parties agreed for Yizheng City Audit Department to delegate a gualified valuation
body to assess and determine the acquisition price of the Assets;

{c)  Within 30 days from the date of the Acquisition Agreement, Jiangsu Water shall pay a
sum of RMB30.0 million cash to Yizheng City & Rural Water Company Limited as part
payment, which is amounting to 20% of the tentative price of the Project
(RMB150,000,000). The RMB30.0 million® was paid by Jiangsu Water to Yizheng City
& Rural Water Company Limited on 28 December 2010.

However, due to the construction cost incurred pertaining to the Project was higher than the
estimated or criginal budgeted cost of the Project, Jiangsu Water and Water Bureau of
Yizheng City had mutually agreed to suspend the Project and thus a concession suspension
agreement dated 6 May 2013 ("Concession Suspension Agreement”) was entered upon by
both parties. In view of the Concession Suspension Agreement, Jiangsu Water is no longer
required to pay the remaining 80% of the tentative price of the Project amounting to
RMB120,000,000.

Salient terms of the Concession Suspension Agreement are as follows:

{a) A reassessment of the Project under the Concession Agreement will be conducted after
5 years from the date of the Concession Suspension Agreement or anytime mutually
agreed by both parties within 5 years after the date of the Concession Suspension
Agreement ("Suspension Period”), to ascertain the feasibility of continuing the Project;

(b} Both parties agreed to suspend the Concession Agreement and terminate the
Acquisition Agreement due to the construction cost was higher than the original
budgeted cost;

°  For the timing of the refund of RMB30.0 million by Yizheng City & Rural Water Company Limited, please refer io the

salient terms of the Termination of Acguisition Agreement as staled in page VIl — 16 of this Circular.
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{c) The Concession Agreement and shall be terminated if mutual agreement cannot be
reach by the end of the Suspension Period; and

(d}  The Acqguisition Agreement shall be terminated.

Accordingly, Water Bureau of Yizheng City, Yizheng City & Rural Water Company Limited and _
Jiangsu Water had on 6 May 2013 entered into an agreement to terminate the Acquisition
Agreement {"Termination of Acquisition Agreement”). Salient terms of the Termination of
Acquisition Agreement are as follows:

{a) Yizheng City & Rural Water Company Limited shall return RMB30.0 million to Jiangsu
Water in the following manner:

{i) Pursuant to the Assets Acquisition Agreement dated 6 May 2013° entered into by
Water Bureau of Yizheng City and Yizheng Wastewater, Yizheng Wastewater
shall pay a sum of RMB30.754 million to Water Bureau of Yizheng City;

(i)  Within 5 days upon receipt of the sum of RMB30.754 million from Yizheng
Wastewater, Water Bureau of Yizheng City shail pay RMB30.0 million to Yizheng
City & Rural Water Company Limited; and

(iiy  Within 5 days upon receipt of the sum of RMB30.0 million from Water Bureau of
Yizheng City, Yizheng City & Rural Water Company Limited shall pay the same to
Jiangsu Water,

(b) Water Bureau of Yizheng City and Yizheng City & Rural Water Company Limited shall
be liable to Jiangsu Water should either party fails to adhere to the agreed repayment
time.

{d) Upon execution of the agreement, Yizheng City & Rural Water Company Limited and
Jiangsu Water shall not enjoy any rights and no longer bear any responsibility under the
Acquisition Agreement.

The Concession Agreement does not form part of the Disposal Consideration.

For clarification purposes, all the salient terms of the agreements as extracted/summarised
and provided herein have been translated from the original Chinese agreements to English. In
the event of any discrepancy between the original and transfated version of the agreements,
the terms of the original Chinese agreement shall prevail over the fransiated English version.

THE REST OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

% Please refer to Section 3 of Appendix Vil of this Circular for further details on the Assets Acquisition Agreement dated 6

May 2013.
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APPENDIX VIII (A)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont'd)

Salcon Darco Environmental Pte. Ltd.
(formerly known as Darco Environmental Pte Ltd) Directors' Report
Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 2012

We are pleased to subinit this annual report to the members of the Company together with the
audited financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2012.

Directors

The directors in office at the date of this report are as follows:

Tee Xun Hao (appointed on 25 October 2012)
Law Woo Hock (appointed on 17 August 2012)
Ooi Cheng Swee (appointed on 17 August 2012}
Thye Kim Meng

Heather Tan Chern Ling

Directors' interests

According to the register kept by the Company for the purposes of Section 164 of the Singapore
Companies Act, Cap. 50 (“the Act”), particulars of interests of directors who held office at the end of
the financial year in shares, debentures, warrants and share options in the Company and in related
corporations are as follows:

Holdings at
beginning of the Holdings at

Name of director and corporation year/date of end of the
in which interests are held appointment year
Tee Xun Hao
Salcon Berhad #
- ordinary shares

- deemed interests 29,397,400 29,397,400
- shares options of RM(1.57 each

- interests held 30,000 30,000
- warrants of RM0.75 each

- deemed inferests 7,370,650 7,370,650
Law Woo Hock
Salcon Berhad #
- ordinary shares

- interests held 40,000 60,000
- shares options of RM0.57 each

- interests held 400,000 400,000
Qoi Cheng Swee
Salcon Berhad #
- shares options of RM(.50 each

- interests held 750,000 750,000

Page 1
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APPENDIX VIIi {A)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont’d)

Salcon Darco Environmental Pte, Ltd.
(formerly known as Darco Environmental Pte Ltd) Directors' Report
Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 2012

Directors' interests (cont'd)
Holdings at

beginning of the Holdings at

Name of director and corporation year/date of end of the
in which interests are held appointment year
Thye Kim Meng
Salcon Darco Environmental Pte. Ltd.
(formerly known as Darco Environmental Pte Ltd
- ordinary shares '

- deemed interests 200,000 -
Darco Water Technologies Limited #
- ordinary shares _

- interests held 36,795,711 63,795,711

- deemed interests 27,000,000 -
Heather Tan Chern Ling
Darco Water Technologies Limited #
- ordinary shares

- interests held 68,000 68,000

# Formerly, the immediate and ultimate holding company is Darco Water Technologies Limited, On 28 July 2012, Salcon
Berhad acquired 60% equity interest in the Company. Salcon Bethad thus became the immediate and ultimate holding

company of the Company.

Except as disclosed in this report, no director who held office at the end of the financial year had
interests in shares, debentures, warrants or share options of the Company, or of related corporations,
either at the beginning of the financial year, or date of appointment if later, or at the end of the
financial year.

Neither at the end of, nor at any time during the financial year, was the Company a party to any
arrangement whose objects are, or one of whose objects is, to enable the directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other

‘body corporate.

Except as disclosed in this report and in the notes to the financial statements, since the end of the last
financial year, no director has received or become entitled to receive, a benefit by reason of a contract
made by the Company or a related corporation with the director, or with a firm of which he is a
member, or with a company in which he has a substantial financial interest.

Share options

During the financial year, there were:

(i)  no options granted by the Company to any person to take up unissued shares in the Company;
and

(ii)  no shares issued by virtue of any exercise of option to take up unissued shares of the Company.

As at the end of the financial year, there were no unissued shares of the Company under option.

Page 2
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APPENDIX VIII (A)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont’d)

Salcon Darco Environmental Pte. Ltd.

(formerly known as Darco Environmental Pie Lid) Directors' Report
Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 2012
Auditors

The auditors, S P Tan & Co, have indicated their willingness to accept re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Law Woo Hock
Director

Thye Kim Meng
Director

27 March 2013
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APPENDIX VIl (A)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Contf'd)

Salcon Darco Environmental Pte. Ltd.
(formerly known as Darco Environmental Pte Ltd) Statement by Directors
Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 2012

In our opinion:

(a) the financial statements set out on pages 7 to 23 are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 December 2012 and the results, changes in equity
and cash flows of the Company for the year ended on that date in accordance with the
provisions of the Singapore Companies Act, Cap. 50 and Singapore Financial Reporting
Standards; and

(b)  at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be
able to pay its debts as and when they fall due.

The Board of Directors has, on the date of this statement, authorised these financial statements for
issue,

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Law Woo Hock
Divector

Thye Kim Meng
Director

27 March 2013
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APPENDIX VIil (A)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR

THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont'd)
S P TAN & COft

Certified Public Accountants

Independent auditors” report to the members of
Salcon Darco Environmental Pte. Ltd.
(formerly known as Darco Environmental Pte Ltd)

Report on the financial statements

We were engaged to audit the financial statements of Salcon Darco Environmental Pte. Ltd. (formerly
known as Darco Environmental Pte Ltd) (the “Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31
December 2012, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information, as set out on pages 7 to 23.

Management's responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with the provisions of the Singapore Companies Act, Cap. 50 (the “Act”) and Singapore
Financial Reporting Standards, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting
controls sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from
unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded
as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair profit and loss accounts and balance sheets and
to maintain accountability of assets,

Auditors” responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinicn on these financial statements based on conducting the
audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing. Because of the matter described in the
Basis for disclaimer of opimion paragraph, we were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion.

Basis for disclaimer of opinion

We were unable to obtain sufficient evidence to satisfy ourselves that the carrying amount of
investments in subsidiaries amounting to $27,602,946 as stated in Note 4 to the financial statements of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2012 are carried at no more than its recoverable amount

as at that date.
Disclaimer of opinion

Because of the significance of the matter described in the Basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraph,
we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit
opinion. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the financial statements.
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APPENDIX VIIl (A)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 {Cont'd)

Independent auditors’ report to the members of
Salcon Darco Environmental Pte. Ltd.

Report on the financial statements (cont’d)
Emphasis of matier

We draw attention to Note 2 to the financial statements. The financial statements of the Company
have been prepared on a going concern basis, notwithstanding the net current Habilities as at 31
Decemnber 2012 of $31,371 as the immediate and ultimate holding company of the Company has
confirmed its intention to provide the necessary financial support to the Company to continue its
operations and meet its Habilities as and when they fall due. Our opinion is not qualified in respect of
this matter.

Other Matter

The financial statements of Salcon Darco Environmental Pte. Ltd. for the year ended 31 December
2011 were audited by another auditor whose report dated 14 August 2012, expressed an unmodified
opinion on those financial statements.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

In our opinion, except for the matter described in the Basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraph, the
accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company have been properly kept
in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

SPTan & Co
Public Accountanis and
Certified Public Accountants

(NVT/KKS/HKY)

Singapore

27 March 2013
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APPENDIX VI (A)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont’d)

Salcon Darco Environmental Pte. Ltd.

(formerly known as Darco Environmental Pte Lid) Balance Sheet
Annual Report as at 31 December 2012
Note 2012 2011
$ $

Non-current assets
Subsidiaries 4 27,602,946 22,634,627

Current assets

Other receivables 5 - 17,484,037
Prepayment 42291 -
Cash at bank 1,070 1,309
43,361 17,485,346
Total assets 27,646,307 40,119,973
Equity
Share capital 7 25,768,459 200,000
Retained earnings 1,803,116 1,800,863
Total equity 27,571,575 2,000,863

Current liabilities

Other payables 8 74,732 38,119,110
Total liabilities 74,732 38,119,110
Total equity and liabilities 27,646,307 40,119,973

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements,
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APPENDIX VIII (A)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 {Cont'd)

Salcon Darco Envirenmental Pte. Lid.

(formerly known as Darco Environmental Pte Ltd) Statement of Comprehensive Income
Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 2012
Note 2012 2011
$ $
Other gains/(losses)

- net foreign exchange gains/(losses) 23,545 (103,546)
Administrative expenses (21,125) {14,985)
Results from operating activities 2,420 (118,531)
Finance costs - bank charges {167) (90)
Profit/(Loss) before tax 2,253 (118,621)
Tax expense 11 - -
Profit/(Loss) for the year 2,253 (118,621)

Other comprehensive income - -

Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax - -

Total comprehensive income for the year 2,253 (118,621)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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APPENDIX VIl (A)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont'd)

Salcon Darco Environmental Pte, Ltd.

(formerly known as Darco Environmental Pte Ltd) Statement of Changes in Equity
Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 2012
Share Retained
Note capital earnings Total
$ $ §
At 1 January 2011 200,000 1,919,484 2,119,484
Loss for the year - {118,621) (118,621)

Other comprehensive income - -

Total comprehensive income

for the year - (118,621) (118,621)
At 31 December 2011 200,000 1,800,863 2,000,863
Profit for the year - 2,253 2,253

Other comprehensive income - - -

Total comprehensive income
for the year - 2,253 2,253

Contributions by and distributions to owners
Issue of ordinary shares 7 25,568,459 - 25,568,459

Total transactions with owners
in their capacity as owners 25,568,459 - 25,568,459

At 31 December 2012 25,768,459 1,803,116 27,571,575

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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APPENDIX VIIL (A)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR

THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont'd)

Salcon Darco Environmental Pte. Ltd.,
(formerly known as Darco Environmental Pte Ltd)

Annual Report

Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31 December 2012

2012 2011
$ $

Operating activities
Profit/(Loss) for the year/

Operating cash flows before changes in working capital 2,253 {(118,621)
Changes in working capital:
Other payables (2,492) 1,240
Net cash flows used in operating activities (239) (117,381)
Financing activities
Non-trade amount owing by a related company - 6,028
Non-trade amount owing to immediate and ultimate

holding company - 111,269
Net cash flows generated from financing activities - 117,297
Net decrease in cash at bank (239) (84)
Cash at bank at T January 1,309 1,393
Cash at bank at 31 December 1,070 1,309

The gecompanying niotes form an integral part of these financial statements.
Page 10
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APPENDIX VIil (A)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont'd)

Salcon Darco Environmental Pte, Lid.
(formerly known as Darco Environmental Pte Ltd) Notes to the Financial Statements
Annual Report 31 December 2012

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
financial statements.

1.

Domicile and activities

Salcon Darco Environmental Pte. Ltd. {formerly known as Darco Environmental Pte Litd) (the
“Company”) is a company incorporated in the Republic of Singapore. The address of the
Company’s registered office is 123 Woodlands Industrial Park E5 Woodlands E-Terrace
Singapore 757498,

The principal activities of the Company are those relating to investment holding,

With effect from 1 November 2012, the name of the Company was changed from Darco
Environmental Pte Ltd to Salcon Darco Environmental Pte. Ltd...

Formerly, the immediate and ultimate holding company is Darco Water Technologies Limited, a
company incorporated in the Republic of Singapore. On 28 July 2012, Salcon Berhad, a
company incorporated in Malaysia, acquired 60% equity interest in Salcon Darco Environmental
Pte. Ltd. (formerly known as Darco Environmental Pte Ltd). Salcon Berhad thus became the
immediate and ultimate helding company of the Company.

Going concern

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a going concern basis,
notwithstanding the net current liabilities as at 31 December 2012 of $31,371, as the immediate
and ultimate holding company of the Company has confirmed its intention to provide the
necessary financial support to the Company to continue its operations and meet its liabilities as
and when they fall due.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Singapore Financial
Reporting Standards (“FRS").

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except as
disclosed in the accounting policies below.

The financial statements are presented in Singapore Dollars, which is the Company’s
functional currency.

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with FRS requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and
in any future periods affected.

Fage 11
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APPENDIX VIII (A)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont'd)

Salcon Darco Environmentai Pte. Ltd.
(formerly known as Darco Environmental Pte Ltd) Notes to the Financial Statements
Annual Report 31 December 2012

3.  Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)
(a) Basis of preparation (cont'd)

Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainties and critical judgements in
applying accounting policies that have the significant effects on the amounts recognised in
the financial statements are disclosed in Note 16.

Inferpretations and amendments to published standards effective in 2012

On 1 January 2012, the Company adopted the new or amended FRS and Interpretations to
FRS {(“INT FRS") that are mandatory for application for the financial year. Changes to the
Company’s accounting policies have been made as required, in accordance with the
transitional provisions in the respective FRS and INT FRS. The adoption of these new or
amended FRS and INT FRS did not result in substantial changes to the accounting policies
of the Company and had no material effect on the amounts reported for the current or
prior financial years.

(b) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company
has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that presently
exercisable are taken into account.

Investments in subsidiaries are stated in the Company’s balance sheet at cost less
accumulated impairment losses.

(c) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of the
Company at exchange rates at the dates of the tramsactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the end of the reporting period are
retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date. The foreign
cuwrrency gain or loss on monetary items is the difference between amortised cost in the
functional currency at the beginning of the year, adjusted for effective interest and
payments during the year, and the amortised cost in foreign currency translated at the
exchange rate at the end of the year.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured
at fair value are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date
that the fair value was determined. Non-monetary itens in a foreign currency that are
measured in terms of historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of
the transaction. Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognised in
profit or loss.

(d) Financial instruments
Non-derivative financial assets

The Company initially recognises loans and receivables on the date that they are
originated. All other financial assets are recognised initially on the trade date, which is
the date that the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.
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APPENDIX VIII (A)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 {Cont'd)

Salcon Darco Environmental Pte. Ltd.
(formerly known as Darco Environmental Pte Ltd) Notes to the Financial Statements
Annual Report 31 December 2012

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)

(d) Financial instruments (cont'd)
Non-derivative financial assets (cont’d)

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the
financial asset in a fransaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset are transferred. Any interest in transferred financial
assets that is created or retained by the Company is recognised as a separate asset or
liability.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet

when, and only when, the Company has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends
either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Company classifies non-derivative financial assets into the following categories:
loans and receivables.

Loans and recetvables

Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Such assets are recognised initially at fair value plus any
directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment losses.

Loans and receivables comprise other receivables and cash at bank.
Non-derivative financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised initially on the trade date, which is the date that the
Company becomes a party to the confractual provisions of the instrument,

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged, cancelled or expire.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet
when, and only when, the Company has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends
either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Company classifies non-derivative financial liabilities into the other financial
liabilities category. Such financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus any
directly attributable transaction cosfs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these financial
liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Other financial liabilities comprise other payables.
Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
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APPENDIX VIII (A)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont'd)

Salcon Darco Environmental Pte. Ltd.
(formerly known as Darco Environmental Pte Ltd) Notes to the Financial Statements
Annual Report 31 December 2012

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

(e}

Impairment
Non-derivative financial assets

A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at the end of
each reporting period to determine whether there is objective evidence that it is impaired.
A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss event has a negative effect on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably.

Cbjective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include default or delinquency
by a debtor, restructuring of an amount due to the Company on terms that the Company
would not consider otherwise, indicafions that a debtor will enter bankruptcy.

Loans and receivgbles

The Company considers evidence of impairment for loans and receivables at both a
specific asset and collective level. All individually significant loans and receivables are
assessed for specific impairment. All individually significant receivables found not to be
specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been
incurred but not yet identified. Loans and receivables that are not individually significant
are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together loans and receivables with
similar risk characteristics.

In assessing collective impairment, the Company uses historical trends of the probability
of default, the timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted for
management’s judgement as to whether current economic and credit conditions are such
that the actual losses are Iikely to be greater or less than suggested by historical trends.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated
as the difference between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. Losses are
recognised in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account against loans and
receivables, Interest on the impaired asset confinues to be recognised. When a
subsequent event (e.g. repayment by a debtor) causes the amount of impairment loss to
decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.

Non-financial gssets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is
recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its related cash-generating unit (“CGU")
exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.
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APPENDIX VIl (A}

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 {Conf’d)

Salcon Darco Environmental Pte. Ltd.
(formerly known as Darco Environmental Pte Ltd) Notes to the Financial Statements
Annual Report 31 December 2012

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)

(e)

(g)

Impairment (cont'd)
Non-financial assets (cont'd)

The recoverable ainount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair
value less cosis to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU. For the
purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped
together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use
that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any
indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Finance costs

Bank charges are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Tax

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly
in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any
adjustmnent to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tfax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for
taxation purposes.

The measurement of deferred taxes reflects the tax consequences that would follow the
manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is measured at the tax
rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, based
on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax
authority on the same taxable entity.
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APPENDIX VIII (A)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DPECEMBER 2012 {Cont'd)

Salcon Darco Environmental Pte. Ltd.
(formerly known as Darco Environmental Pte Ltd) Notes to the Financial Statements
Annual Report 31 Deceinber 2012

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)

(g) Tax (cont'd)

A deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible
temporary differences, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related
tax benefit will be realised.

(h) New standards and interpretations not adopted

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and inferpretations are effective
for annual periods beginning after 1 January 2012, and have not been applied in preparing
these financial statements. None of these are expected to have a significant effect on the
financial statements of the Company.
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APPENDIX VHI (A)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont’d)

Salcon Darco Environinental Pte, Lid.
{formerly known as Darco Environmental Pte Ltd) Notes to the Financial Statements
Annual Report 31 December 2012

4, Subsidiaries

2012 2011
$ $
Unquoted equity shares, at cost 27,602,946 22,634,627
Details of subsidiaries are as follows:
Principal activities/ Ownership
Name of subsidiaries Country of incorporation interest
2012 2011
% %
Held by the Company
* Globe Industrial Technology Investment holding/ 95.58 91.00
Company Limited Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region
* Deqging Darco Producing Building, operation and transfer 100.00 100.00
Water Co., Ltd. (“BOT”) of a waste water treatment
plant and the production and supply
of tap water/
People’s Republic of China
Held through Globe Industrial Technology Company Limited
* Deqing Huanzhong Producing  Building, operation and transfer 95.58 91.00

Water Co., Lid. (“BOT”) of a waste water treatment
plant and the production and supply
of tap water/

People’s Republic of China

* Audited by other firm of auditors

On 9 March 2012 and 14 May 2012, the Company allotted ad ditional 113,000 ordinary shares and
2,233 ordinary shares respectively in Globe Industrial Technology Company Limited (“Globe”)
through capitalisation of amount owing to the Company. As a resulf of these allotments, the
Company’s equity interest in Globe increased from 91% to 95.58%.

Consolidated financial statements have not been presented as the Company is a partially-owned
subsidiary of Salcon Berhad, a company incorporated in Malaysia, which produces consolidated
financial statements available for public use, and its other owners do not object to the Company
not presenting consolidated financial statements. The address of Salcon Berhad is at 15" Floor
Menara Summit Persiaran Kewajipan US)1 47600 UEP Subang Jaya Selangor Malaysia,

5. QOther receivables

Note 2012 2011
$ $
Amount owing by a related company (non-trade) 6 - 17,484,037
Add:
Cash at bank 1,070 1,309
Total loans and receivables 1,070 17,485,346
Page 17
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APPENDIX VIl (A)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND |TS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 {Cont'd)

Salcon Darco Environmental Pte. Ltd.
(formerly known as Darco Environmental Pte Ltd) Notes to the Financial Statements
Annual Report 31 December 2012

6. Amount owing by a related company (non-trade)

Amount owing by a related company is unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on
demand.

7.  Share capital

2012 2011
No. of No. of
shares $ shares $
Fully paid ordinary shares,
with no par value:
At 1January 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000
Issue of shares 25,568,459 25,568,459 - -

At 31 December 25,768,459 25,768,459 200,000 200,000

On 16 March 2012, the Company issued 20,600,000 ordinary shares for a total consideration of
$20,600,000, by way of capitalisation of part of the amount owing to immediate and ultimate
holding company. The newly issued shares rank pari passu in all respects with the previously
issued shares.

On 16 May 2012, the Company issued 4,968,459 ordinary shares for a total consideration of
$4,968,459, by way of capitalisation of part of the amount owing to immediate and ultimate
holding company. The newly issued shares rank pari passu in all respects with the previously
issued shares.

All shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.
All issued shares are fully paid, with no par value.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time,
and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.

Capital management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that the Company will be able to continue as a
going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance.

There were no changes in the Company’s approach to capital management during the year.

The capital structure of the Company consists of equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising share capital and retained earnings.

The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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APPENDIX VIII (A)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR

THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont'd)

Salcon Darco Environmental Pte. Ltd.
(formerly known as Darco Environmental Pte Ltd)

Annual Report

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 December 2012

8.  Other payables

Note 2012 2011
$ $
Other payables 4,881 1,240
Accrued operating expenses 13,500 16,000
Amount(s} owing to:
- immediate and ultimate
holding company (non-trade) - 38,107,870
- a corporate sharcholder (non-trade) 10 56,351 -
Total other payables/
Total financial liabilities carried at amortised cost 74,732 38,119,110

Other payables are non-interest bearing and have an average term of six months.

9. Amount owing to immediate and ultimate holding company (non-trade)}

Amount owing to immediate and ultimate holding company was unsecured, non-interest

bearing and payable on demand.

10. Amount owing to a corporate shareholder (non-trade}

Amount owing to a corporate shareholder is unsecured, non-interest bearing and payable on

demand.

11. Tax expense

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

2012 2011

$ $
Profit/(Loss) before tax 2,253 {118,621)
Tax calculated using Singapore tax rate of 17% (2011: 17%) 383 (20,165)
Effects of:
- non-deductible expenses 3,620 20,165
- tax exempt income (4,003) -
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APPENDIX VIII {A)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont'd)

Salcon Darco Environmental Pte. Ltd.
(formerly known as Darco Environmental Pte Ltd) Notes to the Financial Statements
Annual Report 31 December 2012

12. Related party transactions

In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the
following significant transactions between the Company and related parties took place at terms
agreed between the parties during the financial year:

2012 2011
$ $
Payments made on behalf and reimbursed by the immediate
and ultimate holding company - 7,717
Payments made on behalf and reimbursed by a related company - 6,028
Payments made on behalf and reimbursed by a corporate
shareholder 56,278 -

13. Contingent liability

In 2011, an individual claimed, inter alia, an order requiring the Company to buy 10,000 shares
{equivalent to 9% equity interest) of Globe Industrial Technology Company Limited (“Globe”),
in which the Company was a 91% shareholder, held by the individual; or alternatively, an order
requiring all the shares of Globe held by the Company to be sold to the individual, at a price to
be agreed or failing which an agreement is to be determined by an independent valuer to be
appointed by the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region court; and costs incurred by the
individual to be borne by the Company. The case is currently ongoing.

14. Financial risk management

The Company is exposed to financial risks arising fromn its operations and the use of financial
instruments. The key financial risks include credit risk, liquidity risk and foreign currency risk.
The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies and procedures for the management of these
risks. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in
market conditions and the Company’s activities.

There has been no change to the Company’s exposure to these financial risks or the manner in
which it manages and measures the risks.

{(a) Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments should a
counterparty default on its obligations. The Company’s exposure to credit risk arises
primarily from other receivables. For other financial assets (including cash at bank), the
Company minimises credit risk by dealing exclusively with high credit rating
counterparties.
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APPENDIX VIl (A)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont’d)

Salcon Darco Environmental Pte. Ltd.
{formerly known as Darco Environmental Pte Ltd) Notes to the Financial Statements
Annual Report 31 December 2012

14. Financial risk management (cont’d)
(a)  Credit risk (cont’d)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has no significant concentration of credit
risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the balance sheet.

(i) Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

Other receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are with creditworthy
debtors with good payment record with the Company. Cash at bank is placed with
reputable financial institutions with high credit ratings and no history of default.

(ii) Financial assets that are either past due or impaired
There is no other class of financial assets that is either past due or impaired
{b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the
obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as
far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due,
under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or
risking damage to the Company's reputation.

At the end of the reporting period, the contractual cash flows of the Company’s current
financial liabilities approximate the carrying amounts and they are expected to be settled
within the next twelve months,

{c)  Foreign currency risk

The Company has transactional currency exposures arising from transactions that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the Company. The
foreign currency in which these fransactions are denominated is mainly United States
Dollar. The Company monitors its net exposure to this foreign currency to ensure that it
remains insignificant.

The summary of guantitative data about the Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk
as provided to the management of the Company based on its risk management policy was

as follows:
31 December 2012 31 December 2011
United States United States
Dollar Dollar
$ $
Cash at bank 1,070 1,309
Other payables (42,364) (18,420,879)
Net exposure {41,294) (18,419,570)
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APPENDIX VIl (A)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont'd)

Salcon Darco Environmental Pte. Ltd.
(formerly known as Darco Environmental Pte Lid} Notes to the Financial Statements
Annual Report 31 December 2012

14. Financial risk management (cont'd)
(¢}  Foreign currency risk (cont’d)
Sensitivity analysis

A strengthening of the Singapore Dollar, as indicated below, against the United States
Dollar at 31 December would have increased/(decreased} equity and profit net of tax by
the amounts shown below. This analysis is based on foreign currency exchange rate
variances that the Company considered to be reasonably possible at the end of the
reporting period. The analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates,
remain constant and ignores any impact of forecasted transactions. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2011, as indicated below:

Profit net
Equity of tax
$ $
31 December 2012
United States Dollar (10% strengthening) - 4,129
Profit net
Equity of tax
$ $
31 December 2011
United States Dollar (10% strengthening) - 1,841,957

A weakening of the Singapore Dollar against the above currency at 31 December would
has had the equal but opposite effect on the above currency to the amounts shown above,
on the basis that all other variables remain constant.

15. Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value of financial instruments by classes that are not carried at fair value and whose
carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of fair value

Cash at bank and other current financial assets and liabilities

The carrying amounts of these financial assets and liabilities are reasonable approximation of
fair values due to their short-term nature.

16. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances. The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements and other
uncertainties affecting application of those policies and the sensitivity of reported results to
changes in condition and assumptions are factors to be considered when reviewing the financial
statements. The principal accounting policies are set forth in Note 3. The Company believes the
following critical accounting policy involves the most significant judgement and estimate used
in the preparation of the financial statements.
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APPENDIX VIl (A)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont’d)

Salcon Darco Environmental Pte. Ltd.
{formerly known as Darco Environmental Pte Ltd) Notes to the Financial Statements
Annual Report 31 December 2012

16. Critical accounting estimates and judgements (cont'd)
Impairment of investments in subsidiaries
The Company assesses annually whether investments in subsidiaries have any indication of
impairment in accordance with the accounting policy, When there is an indication of
impairment, the recoverable amount of the investments in subsidiaries will be determined
based on the value-in-use calculation. These calculations involve the use of judgement and

estimates. The cost of investments in subsidiaries is disclosed in Note 4 to the financial
statements.

17. Comparative information

The financial statemnents for the year ended 31 December 2011 were audited by another firm of
Certified Public Accountants.

18. Authorisation of financial statements

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2013.
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APPENDIX Vil (B)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012

{Translated based on the original audited financial statements in Chinese)

DEQING DARCO PRODUCING WATER COMPANY LIMITED

ENGLISH TRANSLATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR 1 JANUARY 2012 TO 31 DECEMBER 2012
IF THERE IS ANY CONFLICT BETWEEN THE CHINESE VERSION
AND ITS ENGLISH TRANSLATION, THE CHINESE VERSION WILL PREVAIL
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APPENDIX VIl (B)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont’d)

AUDITORS’ REPORT
By 3R F E B 1301246 5
The Board of Directors of Deqing Darco Producing Water Co., Ltd.:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Deqing Darco Producing Water
Co., Ltd. (“the Company”) on pages 1 to 18, which comprise the balance sheet as at 31
December 2012, and the income statement and cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements. This responsibility includes: (1) preparing these financial statements in
accordance with Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises (hereinafter represents
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises-Basic Standard issued in 2006 and specific
accounting standards issued before 2006} and Accounting Regulations for Business
Enterprises issued by the Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of China, and fairly
presenting them; (2) designing, implementing and maintaining internal control which is
necessary to enable that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is 1o express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with China Standards on Auditing for Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with China Code of Ethics for Certified
Public Accountants, and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessiments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit atso includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.
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APPENDIX VI (B)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont’d)

AUDITORS’ REPORT (continued)
H I B AR F 5 1301246 5
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2012, and the financial performance and the cash
flows of the Company for the year then ended in accordance with the requirements of

Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises and Accounting Regulations for Business
Enterprises issued by the Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of China.

KPMG Huazhen (Special General Partnership) Certified Public Accountants

Shanghai Branch Registered in the People’s Republic of
China

Shanghai, The People’s Republic of China Tian Chunshan
Qian Di

Date: 28 March 2013

The accompanying financial statements are not intended to present the financial position and
results of operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices
generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than the People’s Republic of China.
The standards, procedures and practices to audit such financial statements are those
generally accepted and applied in the People’s Republic of China.
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APPENDIX Vill (B)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont’d)

COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR

Deqing Darco Producing Water Co., Ltd.
Balance sheet as at 31 December 2012
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Note 2012 2011
Note 18
Assets
Current assets
Cash at bank and on hand 3 306,423.18 2,095,354.56
Accounts receivable 6 6,499,185.82 2,013,458.75
Other receivablies 7 21,485.40 1,061,721.40
Inventories § 62,217.50 30,608.50
Payments in advance 17,300.00 405,623.00
Total current assets 6,906,611.90 5,606,766.21
Fixed assets
Cost 179,110,861.28 25,729,653.29
Less: Accumulated depreciation {14.138,302.85) (804.138.85)
Net book value 9 164,972,558.43 24,925,514.44
Construction in progress 10 - 136,973,270.42
Total fixed assets 164,972,558.43 161,898,784.86
Intangible assets 11 6,740,082.27 6,889,309.23

Total assets 178,619,252 .60 174.394,860.30

The notes on pages 7 to 18 form part of these financial statements.



APPENDIX VIII (B)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR

THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont’d)

Deqing Darco Producing Water Co., Ltd.

Balance sheet as at 31 December 2012 (continued)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Note 2011
Note 18
Liabilities and owners’ equity
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 6,987,624.67 2,477,828.00
Accrued payroll 166,658.39 81,051.49
Taxes payable 4(c) 248,721.94 60,007.08
Other creditors 4(d) 30,241.18 7,293.67
Other payables 37,939,518.95 27,287,000.00
Accrued expenses 209,268.89 484,305.25
Long-term liabilities due within one year 12 8.750,000.00 12.400,000.00
Total current liabilities 54,332,034.02 42.797,485.49
Long-term liabilities
Long-term loan 13 40,850.,000.00 46,500,000.00
Total Liabilities 95,182,034.02 89,297 485.49

Owners’ equity
Paid-in capital 14
Accumulated losses

Total owners’ equity

87,534,925.32
(4,097.706.74)

87,534,92532
(2,437.550.51)

83,437,218.58

85,097,374.81

178,619.252.60 174.394.860.30

Total liabilities and owners’ equity

These financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company at

28 March 2013' _’gv:"':"ﬂ —\—
ﬁ/’?p if

i /\ 7: .
éﬁﬂ ﬁ? jus ff";
i M =
WWW{ W gmhyg

Thye Kim Meng Kooi MoK Sang Wang Jinglin = .
Legal Representative The person in-charge of The head of the 3 (Compan \:s\tam
the accounting affairs accounting department \e K/

(Signature and stamp) (Signature and stamp) (Signature and stamp) ﬂmgmmngﬁ
The notes on pages 7 to 18 form part of these financial statements,
2 SALCON BERGHAD (508786-7)
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APPENDIX VIHl (B)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR

THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 {Cont’d)

Deging Darco Producing Water Co.,L.td.
Income and profit appropriation statement
for the year ended 31 December 2012
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Note
Sales from principal activities 15
Less: Cost of sales from principal activities
Business taxes and surcharges 4(a)
Profit from principal activities
Less: General and administrative expenses
Financial expenses 16
Operating loss
Add: Subsidy income
Loss before income tax
Less: Income tax 4(b)

Net loss for the year

Add: Accumulated losses at the
beginning of the year

Accumulated losses carried forward

2012

25,757,975.31

(18,480,117.98)

2011
Note 18

3,471,748 .82

(1,235,671.72)

(180.305.84) (24.302.23)
7,097,551.49 2.211,774.87
(2,393,753.09)  (4,554,023.48)
(6,363.954.63) (159,556.90)

(1,660,156.23)

(2,501,805.51)

64,255.00

(1,660,156.23)

(2,437,550.51)

(1,660,156.23)

(2.437,550.51)

(2,437,550.51)

(4,097.706.74)

(2.437,550.51)

The notes on pages 7 to 18 form part of these financial statements.



APPENDIX VIt (B)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FCR

THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont'd)

Deging Darco Producing Water Co., L.td.

Cash flow statement

for the year ended 31 December 2012

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Cash fiows from operating activities:

Notes to the
cash flow
Statement 2012 2011

Note 18

Cash received from sale of goods
Refund of taxes
Cash received relating to other operating activities

Sub-total of cash inflows
Cash paid for goods and services
Cash paid to and for employees -

Cash paid for all types of taxes
Cash paid relating to other operating activities

Sub-total of cash cutflows

Net cash inflow from operating activities i

Cash flows from financing activities:
Cash received relating to other investing activities

Sub-total of cash inflows

21,272,248.24

1,153,236.00

04,255.00
4,725,013.31

22,425,484.24

(4,737,076.43)
(1,414,760.25)

(94,183.82)
(1,614,682.55)

4,789,268.31

(612,705.09)
(1,150,046.39)
(166,406.93)
(1.023.495.85)

(7,860,703.05)

(2,952,654.26)

16,734.46

3,298.60

16,734.46

3,298.60

Cash paid for acquisition of {ixed assets

and intangible assets

Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash outflow from financing activities

(11,898.140.90) (16,734.161.18)

(11,898,140.90)

(16,734,161.18)

(11,881,406.44)

(16,730,862.58)

The notes on pages 7 to 18 form part of these financial statements.

4 SALCON BERHAD (533756-7)
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APPENDIX VIl {B)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR

THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont'd)

Deqing Darco Producing Water Co., Ltd.

Cash flow statement

for the year ended 31 December 2012 (continued)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Notes (o the

Cash flows from financing activities:
Cash received from borrowings

Sub-total of cash inflows
Cash repayments of borrowings
Cash paid for interest expenses
Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash outflow from financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
cash equivalents

cash flow
sStatement 2012

63,300,000.00

2011
Nore 18

16.713,000.00

63,300,000.00

16,713,000.00

(63,400,000.00) ;
(4.522.306.13) (6,482.53)
(67,922,306.13) (6,482.53)
(4,622,306.13)  16,706,517.47

ii (1,938,931.38) 1.812,268.94

The notes on pages 7 to 18 form part of these financial statements.
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APPENDIX VIII (B)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR

THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont'd)

Deqging Darco Producing Water Co., Ltd.
Cash flow statement

for the year ended 31 December 2012 (continued)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Notes to the cash flow statement

i Reconciliation of net loss to cash flows from operating activities
2012
Net loss (1,660,156.23)

Add: Depreciation of fixed assets
Amortisation of intangible assets
Amortisation of long-term deferred expenses
[ncrease in accrued expenses
Financial expenses
[ncrease in gross inventories
(Increase)/decrease in operating receivables

201]
Note 18

(2,437,550.51)

(Decrease)/increase in operating payables

Net cash inflow from operating activities

ii  Net (decrease)/increase in cash

Cash at the end of the year

13,334,164.00 546,953.35
149,226.96 149,226.96

; 3,161,199.54

110,000.00 -

6,360,054.26 158,136.48
(31,609.00) (30,608.50)

(3,057,168.07) 140,904.49

(639,730.73) 148,352.24
14,564,781.19 1,836,614,05

2012 2011

306,423.18 2,095,354.56

(150,000.00)

Less: Cash with restricted usage

Closing balance of cash available on demand
Less: Opening balance of cash
available on demand

156,423.18

(2.095.354.56)

2,095,354.56

(283,085.62)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash

The notes on pages 7 to 18 form part of these financial statements.

(1,938.931.38) 1,812.268.94
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APPENDIX VIIi (B)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont’d)

Deqing Darco Producing Water Co., Ltd.
Notes to the financial statements
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

1

COMPANY STATUS

Deqing Darco Producing Water Co., Ltd.(the Company) is a wholly foreign-owned
enterprise established in Deqing County, Zhejiang Province in the People’s Republic of
China (PRC) by Salcon Darco Environmental Pte. Ltd. (formerly known as Darco
Environmental Pte, Ltd., Singapore Darco). The Company obtained an approval
certificate Shang Wai Zi Zhe Fu Zi Hu Zi [2006] No. 00222 on 21 November 2006, and
a business license Qi Du Zhe Hu Zong Zi No. 002155 on 16 January 2007 issued by
Huzhou Administration of Industry and Commerce. The registered capital is USD
15,000,000.

The Company’s Board of Directors resolved to decrease the Company’s registered
capital to USD 11,960,000 on 4 November 2008. The registered capital was decreased
from USD 15,000,000 to USD 11,960,000. The Company obtained approval from the
People’s Government of Zhejiang Province for the change on 31 December 2008, The
articles of associate were revised on 4 November 2008 accordingly. The Company also
obtained a revised approval certificate Shang Wai Zi Zhe Fu Zi Hu Zi [2006] No. 00222
on 21 November 2006 and a revised business license (Qi Du Zhe Hu Zong Zi No.
002155 (For pre-operation purpose of one year) on 5 August 2009 and 16 April 2010
respectively. The Company also obtaind a revised business license (No.
330500400007391 (For formal operation) on 30 July 2012.

The Company’s period of operation is 30 years, and its principal activities are producing
water centrally and providing sewage treatment operation and services. The Company
was established on 13 December 2006, completed the pre-operation work in October
2011 and commenced its operations of providing water in January 2012,

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been translated into English from the Company’s
statutory financial statements issued in the PRC in Chinese.

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements
are in conformity with Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises-Basic Standard
issued in 2006, specific accounting standards issued before 2006 and the Accounting
Regulations for Business Enterprises, all issued by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC
(MOF). The accounting policies comply with the legal and reporting requirements of
the relevant government authorities.

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis that the Company will
continue to operate throughout the next accounting period until at least 31 December
2013 as a going concern.

~
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VIl (B} - 10



APPENDIX VIl (B)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont’d)

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

The Company has accumulated losses of RMB 4,097,706.74 and its current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by RMB 47,425,422,12 as at 31 December 2012, Since the
owners of the Company have undertaken to provide such financial support to the
Company as may be necessary to ensure its continuing operation for the year of 2013,
the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Accounting year
The accounting year of the Company is from 1 January to 31 December.
Basis of preparation and measurement basis

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on an accrual basis.
Unless otherwise stated, the measurement basis used is historical cost.

Functional currency

The Company’s functional currency is the Renminbi.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into Renminbi at the
exchange rates quoted by the People’s Bank of China and other exchange rates
recognised by the state ruling at the transaction dates.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into Renminbi at the exchange rates quoted by the People’s Bank of China and
other exchange rates recognised by the state ruling at the balance sheet date.
Exchange gains and losses on foreign currency translation, except for the

exchange gains and losses directly relating to the construction of fixed assets (see
note 3(g)), are dealt with in the income statement.

8 SALCUN BERHAD (538756-1)



APPENDIX VIIi (B)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont’d)

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

()

®

(g)

Provision for bad and doubtful debts

The provision for bad and doubtful debts is estimated by management based on
individual accounts receivable which show signs of uncollectibility. Provision for
other receivables is determined based on their specific nature and management’s
estimate of their collectibility.

Inventories
Inventories include raw materials and low value consumables.
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs.
Inventories are measured at their actual cost upon acquisition, The cost of
inventories is calculated using the weighted average method.

Any excess of the cost over the net realisable value of each item of inventories is
recognised as a provision for diminution in the value of inventories. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale
and relevant taxes.

1

Low value consumables are amortised in two equal instalments when they are first
used and when they have been used up.

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are assets with relatively high unit values held by the Company for
use in the production of goods. They are expected to be used for more than one
year.

Fixed assets are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (see note 3(1)).

All direct and indirect costs that are related to the construction of fixed assets and
incuired before the assets are ready for their intended use are capitalised as
construction in progress. Those costs include borrowing costs (including foreign
exchange differences arising from the loan principal and the related interest) on
specific borrowings for the construction of the fixed assets during the construction
period. Construction in progress is transferred to fixed assets when it is ready for
its intended use. ’

9 SALOGH BERRAD (558795-1)

VIl (B) - 12



APPENDIX VIt (B)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont’d)

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(8)

(h)

Fixed assets (continued)

Fixed assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the shorter period
between their estimated useful lives and concession operation agreement. The
respective estimated useful lives and the estimated rate of residual values on cost
for the Company’s fixed assets are as follows:

Estimated Estimated rate Rate of

useful life  of residual value depreciation
Plant and buildings 20 years 10% 4%
Machinery and equipment 10 years 10% 9%
Electronic and office equipment 5 years 10% 18%
Motor vehicles 5 years 10% 18%
Instrument 5 years 10% 18%

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (see note 3(i)). The cost of the intangible
assets is amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
amortisation period for the intangible assets is as follows:

Land use right 50 years
Provision for impairment

The carrying amounts of assets (including fixed assets and intangible assets) are
assessed regularly to determine whether their recoverable amounts have declined
below their carrying amounts. Assets are tested for impairment whenever events
or changes in conditions indicate that their recorded carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. When such a decline has occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to
the recoverable amount, The amount by which the carrying amount is reduced is
the impairment loss.

The recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows arising from the continuous use of the asset and
from the disposal of the asset at the end of its useful life.

Provision for impairment is calculated on an item-by-item basis and recognised as
an expense in the income statement.

If there is an indication that there has been a change in the factors used to
determine the provision for impairment and as a result the estimated recoverable
amount is greater than the carrying amount of the asset, the impairtnent loss
recognised in prior years is reversed. Reversals of impairment losses are
recognised in the income statement. An impairment loss is reversed only to the
extent of the asset’s carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

AT IR BRI A M frae e
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VIl (B} - 13



APPENDIX VIli {B)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET CCMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont'd)

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

)

(k)

)

Income tax

Income tax is recognised when payable under the tax payable method. Income tax
for the year is provided at the applicable tax rate on taxable incone.

Revenue recognition

When it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
revenue and costs can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in the income
statement according to the following methods:

(1)  Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of the
ownership of goods have been transferred to the buyers and the Company
retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold.

(i) Interest income
Interest income 1s recognised on a time proportion basis with reference to
the principal outstanding and the applicable rate.

(iii) Subsidy income

i
Subsidy income is recognised in the income statement upon receipt of the
subsidy.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred on specific borrowings for the construction of fixed
assets are capitalised into the cost of the fixed assets during the construction
period until the fixed assets are ready for their intended uses.

Except for the above, other borrowing costs are recognised as financial expenses
in the income statement when incurred.

Retirement benefits

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the Company has joined
a defined contribution retirement plan for the employees arranged by a
governmental organisation. The Company makes contributions to the retirement
scheme at the applicable rates based on the employees’ salaries. The
contributions are capitalised into cost of assets or charged to the income statement
on an accrual basis. After the payment of the contributions under the retirement
plan, the Company does not have any other obligations in this respect.

11 SALCOHN BERHAD (828796.7)
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APPENDIX VIl {(B)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont'd)

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED}

(n)

Related parties

If the Company has the power, directly or indirectly, to control, jointly control or
exercise significant influence over another party, or vice versa, or where the
Company and one or more parties are subject to common control from another
party, they are considered to be related parties. Related parties may be individuals
or enterprises.

4 TAXATION AND SURCHARGE

(a)

(b)

(©

The types of tax and surcharge applicable to the Company’s sale of goods include
value added tax (VAT), urban maintenance and construction tax, education fee
surcharge, local education fee surcharge and water conservancy construction
specific fee, etc.

Tax name Tax basis and applicable rate
VAT Qutput VAT is 6% of product sales, according

to tax laws, input VAT is not deductible
Urban maintenance and

construction tax 5 % of the business tax
Education fee surcharge 3 % of the business tax
Local education fee surcharge 2 % of the business tax
Water conservancy construction

specific fee 0.1 % of taxable revenue

Business taxes and surcharges include urban maintenance and construction tax,
education fee surcharge, local education fee surcharge and water conservancy
construction specific fee, etc,

Income tax
The statutory income tax rate of the Company is 25% (2011: 25%).

The Company endures a tax loss at 31 December 2012, and as a result, didn't
accrue income tax.

Taxes payable
2012 2011
VAT payable 248,557.70 59,948.09
Individual income tax payable 164.24 58.99
Total 248.721.94 60,007.08
12 SALCUN BERHAD (583786-7)
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APPENDIX VHII {B)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND TS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont'd)

4 TAXATION AND SURCHARGE (CONTINUED)

(d) Other creditors

VI {B) - 16

2012 2011
Urban maintenance and construction
tax payable 12,427.88 2,997.40
Education fee surcharge payable 7,456.73 1,798.44
Local education fee surcharge payable 4,971.15 1,198.96
water conservancy construction
specific fee payable 4,142.63 999.13
Stamp duty payable 1,242.79 299.74
Total 30.241.18 7.293.67
5 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND
2012 2011
Cash on hand 12,490.49 9.205.54
Demand deposits 143,932.69 2,086,149.02
Other monetary funds (electricity deposit) 150.0006.00 -
Total 306,423.18 2.095.354.56
6 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
The ageing analysis of the Company’s accounts receivable is as follows:
2012 2011
Percentage Provision Percentage Provision
of total Jor bad and of total Jor bad and
accounts doubtful accounts doubtful
RMB receivable debis RMB receivable debts
Within 1 year 6,499,185 82 100% 201345875 __ 100%
7 OTHER RECEIVABLES
The ageing analysis of the Company’s accounts receivable is as follows:
2012 2011
Percentage Provision Percentage Provision
of total Jor bad and of total Jor bad and
accounts doubtful accounts doubtful
RMB  receivable debts RMB  receivable debts
Within 1 year 21,485.40 100% 1,049,721.40 99%
After lyear but
Within 2year - 12.060.00 1%
2148540 ___ 100% 1,061,721.40 100% -
13 SALCON BERHAD (5937350}



APPENDIX VIil (B)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 {Cont'd)

8 INVENTORY

2012 2011
Raw materials 62,217.50 30,608.50
All the above inventories are purchased from others.
9 FIXED ASSETS
Plant and Machinery Motor Electronic
buildings  and equipinerit Tnstrument vehicles  office equipment Total
Cost
As nt ! January 2012 - 20,730,836.38 4,429,422 91 441,936.00 127,458.00 25,725,65329
Additiens - - - - 5,650,00 5,650.00
Transfer from construction
In progress 5006196614 _102.980451.85 327.140.00 - - _153.375,557.99
As at 31 December 2012 50,061,966.14  123,717,288.23 4,756,562.91 441,936.00 133,108.00 179,110,861 28
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 January 2012 (310962.52)  (131,806.18)  {323,109.00) (3826115}  (804,138.85)

Charge for the year {2,061.006.83) _(10,343.210.45) (841,820.58) (69.249.60) (18.876.54) _(13.334,164.00)

Asat3] December 2012 (2,061,006.83) (10,654,172.97)  (973,626.76)  (392,358.60) {57,137.69) (14,138,302.85)

Carrying amount

As at 3] December 2012 __48,000959.31 _113.063.115.26 __ 3,782934.15 49 577.40 7597031 _164.972,558.43
AsallJanuary2012 - _ 2041987386 __ 4,297.616.73 118,827.00 £9.196.85 _ 24,925 51444

10 CONSTRUCTION IN PROFGESS

Including:
Borrowing costs

capitalised

As at 1 January 2012 136,973,270.42 5,492,347.08
Additions during the year 16,402,287.57 303,302.28
Transfer to fixed assets during the year (153,375.557.99 (5,795.649.36)

As at 31 December 2012 - -

The capitalisation rate used to determine the borrowing costs to be capitalised was 8.30%
(2011: 7.79%).

14 SALOON BERAD (523796-1)
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APPENDIX VIl (B)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDMARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont'd)

11

12

13

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Land use rights
Cost
As at 1 January 2012 7,461,345.91
Additions -

As at 31 December 2012
Accumulated amortisation

Asat 1 January 2012

Charge for the year

As at 31 December 2012

Carrying amount

7,461,345.91

(572,036.68)
(149.226.96)

(721,263.64)

______________________

As at 31 December 2012 6,740,082.27
As at 1 January 2012 6.889,309.23
LONG-TERM LIABITIES WITHIN ONE YEAR
20/2 2011
Interest Secured/ Inferest Secured/
Principal rafe (p.a}  guaranieed Principal rate (p.aj  guaranteed
UQOB Shenzhen branch 12,400,000.00 note 13() note 13(ii)
Hangzhou bank
Deqing branch __ 8.750,000.00 note 13(ili)  note 13(iv)
Total 8,750,000.00 — 12.400,000.00
LONG-TERM LOANS
2012 2011
Interest Secured/ Interest Secured/
Principal Period rate (p.a) guaranteed Principal Period rate (p.a.} guaranteed
UOB Shenzhen 2009/8/28
branch 48,500,000.00 -2013/8/28 (i) (i
Hangzhou bank 2012/1112%
Deging branca 40,850,000.00  -2020/8/28 {iii) (iv)
Total __40,850,000.00 46,500,00000

©

(in)

(i)

@)

The borrowing is going to be due on 28 August 2013 and the Company has repaid
all the balances on 29 November 2012. Benchmark lending rate of three to five
years by the People’s Bank of China floated with 30%. The current year’s interest
rate is 8.32% (2011: 8.97%).

The borrowing is secured by land use right certificate (Deqing Guo Yong (2008)
No. 00216192).

The borrowing is scheduled to repay by installments. Benchmark lending rate of
over five years by the People’s Bank of China on the withdrawn date. The current
year’s interest rate is 6.55%.

The borrowing is secured by land use right certificate (Deging Guo Yong (2008)
No. 00216192), property certificate (No. 0011234011237) and pledged by
accounts receivables.

15 SALCUN BERNAD (385795-7)
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont’d)

14

15

16

PAID-IN CAPITAL

Registered capital

Singapore Darco

2012 & 2011
Amount in %
original
CUFFENCy
USD

11,960,000.00 100%

2012 & 2011

Amount in

Paid-in capital original currency
USD

Singapore Darco 11,960.000.00

Amount in
RMB equivalent %

87.534.925.32 100%

Capital contributions in foreign currency have been translated into Renminbi at the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of each contribution received as quoted by the

People’s Bank of China.

Certified Public Accountants have verified the above capital contributions, and issued

the capital verification report.

SALES FROM PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Producing water revenue

FINANCIAL EXPENSES

Interest expenses
Less: Interest income
Other financial expenses

Total

2012 2011
25.757.975.31 3.471,748.82
2012 2011
6,376,788.72 161,435.08
(16,734.46) (3,298.60)
3.900.37 1,420.42
6,363,954.63 159,556.90

16
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont’d)

17

RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

Related parties with controlling relationships

Relationship Types

Registered Principal with the of legal

address activities Company entity

Singapore Darco Singapore Investment Invester Limited liability
holding on comparny

drinking water

Registered capital of related parties with controliing relationships and its changes

At the beginning At the end
of the year Increase of the vear
Singapore Darco  HKD 200,000.00 25,568,459.00 25,768,459 .00

Equity interests held by related parties with controlling relationships and their
changes

At the beginning At the end

of the year Increase of the yvear

Amount %% Amount % Amount %

Singapore Darco 87,534,925.53  100% - - 87,534925.53  100%

Relationship between the Company and related parties without controlling
relationships

Relationship with the Company

Deging Huanzhong Producing Water Co., Ltd.

(Deging Huanzhong) Fellow subsidiaries

Darco Water Technology Co., Ltd.
(Darco Water) Investor of parent company
17 SALLON BERNAD (553756-1)
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APPENDIX VIil (B}

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMEER 2012 (Cont’d)

17 RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(¢) The amounts of the Company’s related party transactions during the year and its
balances with related parties at the year end are summarised as follows:

(i) The material related-party transactions of the Company are summarised as

follows:
2012 2011

Receipt of borrowings

- Deging Huanzhong 8,200,000.00 13,500,000.00

- Darco Water 4.500,000.00 -
Payment of borrowings

- Deging Huanzhong 3,500,000.00 -
Payment of interest expenses

- Deqging Huanzhong 1,427.949.22 811,569.73

The Board of Directors of the Company is of the opinion that the above
transactions were carried oul in the normal course of business and on
normal comrmercial terms.

(i) The balances of related party receivables, and payables are summarised as

follows:
2012 2011
Other payables
- Deqing Huanzhong 26,939,518.95 20,000,000.00
- Darco Water 4.500,000.00 -

18 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The comparative figures of 2011 was audited by Huzhou Jiangnan Hua Xin Cerfitied
Public Accountants and issued the audit report. In order to meet the requirements of
business development, the company has engaged KPMG Huazhen (Special General
Partnership) Shanghai Branch to provide audit services for the financial statements of
2012. Certain items in these comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with
the current year’s presentation to facilitate comparison.

18 SALCON BERNAD (523756-7)
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont’d)
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APPENDIX Vil (B)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 {Cont’d)
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APPENDIX Vil (B)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont’d)
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APPENDIX VIH (B)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR

THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont'd)
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont’d)
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APPENDIX VIl (B)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont’d)
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APPENDIX VIII (C)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 {(Cont’d)

Report of the directors

The directors submit herewith thetr annual report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2012.

Principal place of business

Globe Industrial Technology Limited (“the company™) is a company incorporated and
domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office and principal place of business at Room
D, 11/F, 8 Hart Avenue, 8-10 Hart Avenue, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Principal activity

The principal activity of the company is investment holding. Details of the company’s
subsidiary are set out in note 9 to the financial statements.

Financial statements

The loss of the company for the year ended 31 December 2012 and the state of the company’s
affairs as at that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 5 to 22.

Transfer to reserves

Losses attributable to shareholders of HK$300.023 (2011: profits of HK$6,561,892) have
been transferred 1o reserves. Other movements in reserves are set out in the statement of
changes in equity.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the vear ended 31 December
2012 (2011: Nib).

Share capital

Details of the share capital of the company are set out in note 11(b) to the financial statements.
During the year, 115,233 ordinary shares of HK$266.333 each were allotted and issued to
Darco Water Technologies Limited by the means of capitalising the amount due 1o Darco
Water Technologies Limited of HK$30,690,951.

Directors

The directors during the financial year and up to the date of this report were:

Ooi Cheng Swee (appointed on 1 December 2012)

Law Woo Hoek (appointed on 1 December 2012)

Tee Xun Hao {(appointed on 1 December 2012)

Thye Kim Meng

Yeoh Ah Luan

Teh Fu Gene (resigned on 1 December 2012)
-1-
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont'd)

Directors (continued)

In accordance with the company’s articles of association, all directors retire and, being eligible
offer themselves for re-election.

At no time during the year was the company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors of the company to

acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the company or any
other body corporate.

No contract of significance to which the company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiary

or fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a director of the company had a material
interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Auditors

KPMG were first appointed as auditors of the company upon the resignation of Simon Chan
& Co. A resolution for the appointment of KPMG as auditors of the company is to be
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

By order of the board

Nk

Director

Hong Kong
30 APR 2013
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hepiac

KPMG Loy Telephone %44 +852 2622 6022
8th Floor AR & Fax 1# 3 +852 2845 25688
Prince’s Bullding AP EITEICT Internet |kt www.kpmg.comfecn

10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong AFXAEEH
P O Box 50 HHIRAL S
General Post Office £ #5505

Hong Kong

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of

Globe Industrial Technology Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the unconsolidated financial statements of Globe Industrial Technology
Limited (“the company™) set out on pages 5 to 22, which comprise the company’s statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2012, the company’s statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year then ended
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
This report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

KPMG, a Hong Keng partnership and 8 member firm of the KPMG
network ol Independent member firms affilialed with KPMG
Intzrnational Cooperative (*KPMG Intemational”), a Swiss enlity.
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APPENDIX VIl (C)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont’d)

hcaizo

Independent auditor’s report to the sharcholders of

Globe Industrial Technology Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with fimited liability)

An audit involves performing procedures 1o obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our adverse audit opinion.

Basis of adverse opinion

As explained in note 2(a) to the financial statements, the company has a subsidiary but did not
prepare consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 because the
directors of the company considered that the preparation of consolidated financial statements
would involve expense and delay out of proportion to the value to the members of the
company. As disclosed in notes 2(d) and 9 to the financial statements, investiment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less any impairment losses. In our opinion, this accounting
treatment does not comply with section 124 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
Hong Kong Accounting Standard 27, Censolidated and separate financial statements, issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, so far as the preparation of
consolidated financial statements is concerned and the effects of such departure are material
and pervasive and have not been quantified.

Adverse opinion

In our opinion, because of the significance of the matter discussed in the basis for adverse
opinion paragraph, the unconsolidated financial statements do not give a true and fair view of
the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 December 2012 and of its loss and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In all other respects, in our opinion
the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

ijm

Certified Public Accountants
8" Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

30 APR 2013 -4 -
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APPENDIX VIII {(C)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont'd)

Globe Industrial Technology Company Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

Statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2012
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Note 2012 2011

HKD HKD

Turnover 4 - 7,223,461

Other revenue 5 3 12
Administrative and operating expenses (300.026) (661.581)

(Loss)/profit before taxation 6 (300,023) 6,561,892

Income tax 7(a) u -

Total comprehensive income
for the year (300,023) 6,561,892

The notes on pages 9 to 22 form part of these financial statements.

-5
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APPENDIX VII! (C)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 {(Cont'd)

Globe Industrial Technolagy Company Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

Statement of financial position as 31 December 2012
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Note 2012 2001
HKD HKD
Non-current asset
Investment in a subsidiary 9 39,866,949 39,866,949
Current asset
Dividend receivable 7,223,401 7,223,461
Casli and bank balances 37,036 80,659
7,260,497 7.304,120
Current liabilities
Accrued liabilities 143,398 125,104
Amount due to ultimate
holding company 10 - 30,707,131
Amount due to a related company 10 254,985 -
Amounts due to a shareholder 10 - 99
398,383 30,832,334
Net current assets/(liabilities) 6,862,114 (23,528,214)
NET ASSETS 46.729.063 16,338.735
CAPITAL AND RESERVE 11
Share capital 11(b) 226,353 111,120
Reserves 46.502.710 16,227.615
TOTAL EQUITY 46,729,063 16,338,735

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 3 0 APR 2013

N\l

P s

The notes on pages 9 to 22 form part of these financial statements.
-6 -
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APPENDIX VIl (C)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR

THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 {Cont’'d)

Statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 December 2012
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Globe Industrial Technology Company Linited

Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

Share Share  Accumulated
capital Premium (losses)/profits Total
HKD HKD HKD HKD
(note 11(b))
Balance at 31 December 2010
and 1 January 2011 111,120 26,830,483 {17,164,760) 9,776,843
Changes in equity for 2011
Total comprehensive income
for the year - - 6,561,892 6,561,892
Balance at 31 December 2011
and 1 January 2012 111,120 26,830,483 (10,602,868) 16,338,735
Changes in equity for 2012
Incremental of authorised share
Capital and allotment of
additional new shares 115,233 30,575,118 - 30,690,351
Total comprehensive income
for the year - - (300,023} (300,023)
Balance at 31 December 2012 226.353 57,405,601 {10,902.891) 46,729,063

The notes on pages 9 to 22 form part of these financial statements.

-7
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APPENDIX VIl (C)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont'd)

Globe Industrial Technology Company Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 20§2

Cash flow statement

for the year ended 31 December 2012
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2012 2011
HKD HKD
Operating activities
(Loss)/profit before taxation (300,023) 6,561,892
Adjustments for:

Interest income 3) (12)
Operating loss before changes in working capital (300,026) 6,561,880
Increase in dividend receivable - (7,223,461)
Increase in accrued liabilities 18,294 6,594
Decrease in amount due to imtermediate

holding company - (9,400)
Decrease in amount due to a shareholder (99) -
Increase in amount due to

a related company 238,205 551,413
Net cash used in operating activities (43,626) (112,974)
Investing activities
Investment in a subsidiary - (3,188)
Interest received 3 12
Net cash generated from investing activities 3 (3,176)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (43,623) (116,150)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 80,659 196,809
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 37,036 80.659

The notes on pages 9 to 22 form part of these financial statements.
-8-
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APPENDIX Vil (C)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 {Cont'd)

Globe Industrial Technology Company Limited
Financial statemenis for the year ended 31 December 2012

Notes to the financial statements
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1.

Principle activity

The principle activity of the company is investment holding. Details of subsidiary are set
out in note 9 to the financial statements.

Sigunificant accounting policies

(@)

Statement of compliance

As disclosed in note 9, the company has a subsidiary but group financial
statements in the form of consolidated financial statements as required under
section 124 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance have not been prepared as
the directors of the company are of the opinion that it would involve expenses and
delay out of proportion to the value to the members of the company.

For the purposes of compliance with sections 122 and 123 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, these financial statements have been prepared to present a
true and fair view of the state of affairs and profit or loss of the company only.
Consequently, they have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes
all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs™)
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA™), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance which apply
to the preparation of separate unconsolidated financial statements. A summary of
the significant accounting policies adopted by the company is set out below.

These financial statements do not comply with HKAS 27, Consolidated and
separate financial statements, so far as the preparation of consolidated financial
statements is concerned. As a consequence, the financial statements do not give
all the information required by HKAS 27 about the economic activities of the
group of which the company is the parent. Full compliance with HKAS 27 would
require the company to produce consolidated financial statements which disclose
this information.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first effective
or available for early adoption for the current accounting period of the company.
Note 2(c) provides information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the company for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these
financial statements.

-0.
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APPENDIX VIIi (C)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 {(Cont'd)

Globe Industrial Technology Company Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the
historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgments and estimates made by management in the application of HKFRSs that
have significant effect on the financial statements are discussed in note 3.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSs and new Interpretations
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the company. None of the developments is relevant to the company's
financial statements.

The company has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet
effective for the current accounting period.

Subsidiary

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the company. Control exists when the
company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity
so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting
rights that presently are exercisable are taken into account.

In the company’s statement of financial position, investment in a subsidiary is
stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(e)).

-10 -
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APPENDIX VIII (C)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR

THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont’d)

Globe Industrial Technology Company Limited
Financial statetments for the year ended 31 December 2012

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e)  Impairment of assefs

(1)

Impairments of other receivables

Other receivables that are stated at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the company about one or
more of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation; and

- significant changes in the technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor.

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts are recognised when there is
objective evidence of impairment and are measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets) where the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where financial assets carried at amortised
cost share similar risk characteristics, such as similar past due status, and
have not been individually assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for
financial assets which are assessed for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to
the coliective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss decreases and
the decrease can be linked objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses for other receivables whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote are recorded using an allowance account. When the
company 1is satisfied that recovery i1s remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against the receivables directly and any amounts
held in the allowance account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit or loss.
-11 -
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APPENDIX V1!l (C)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont’d)

Globe Industrial Technology Company Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e) Impairment of assels (continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to identify indications that the investment in a subsidiary
may be impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss whenever the carrying
amount of such an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less cost
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying amount
of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce the canying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group of units) and
then, to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value less costs to sell,
or value in use, if determinable.

- Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. A reversal of
impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

-12 -
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APPENDIX VIII (C)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 {Cont'd)

0

(&)

()

()

Globe Indusirial Technology Company Limited
Financial statements jor the vear ended 31 December 2012

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Other receivables (including amounts due from related parties)

Other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see note 2(e)(i)),
except where the receivables are interest-free loans made to related parties without
any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In
such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of
doubtfil debts (see note 2(e)(1)).

Other payables (including amounts due to related parties)

Other payables are initially recognised at fair value and thercafter are stated at
amortised cost, except where the payables are interest-free loans from related
parties without any fixed term of repayment or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits
with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred tax
assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to
items recognised directly in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period, and
any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable temporary
differences respectively, being the differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred
tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits. Apart from
differences which arise on initial recognition of assets and liabilities, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised.

-13 -
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APPENDIX VIII (C)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont'd)

Globe Industrial Technology Company Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 3! December 2012

2.  Significant accounting policies (continued)

()

()

*)

Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected manner
of realisation or seftlement of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacled at the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are
recognised when the liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Provisions and contingent Habilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the
company has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the fime value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow of cconomic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the occuirence or
non-occurrence of one or more fulure events, are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.
Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and
the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profil or loss as follows:

(i) Dividends

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholder’s right fo receive
payment is established.

(iiy Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest
method.

-14 -
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APPENDIX VIII (C)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR

THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont’d)

Globe Industrial Technology Company Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

@

(m)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies and non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of each reporting period. Exchange gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Related parties

(a)

(b

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the
company if that person:

(1)
(i1)
(iii)

has control or joint control over the company;
has significant influence over the company; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the company or the
company’s parent.

An entity is related to the company if any of the following conditions
applies:

(1)

(i)

(ii1)

(iv)

v)

{v1)

(vil)

The entity and the company are members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which the other
entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party,

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the company or an entity related to the company.

The entity i1s controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in

(a).
A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).
- 15 -
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APPENDIX VIIi (C})

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont’d)

Globe Industrial Techinology Company Limited
Financial statements for the pear ended 31 December 2012

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
(m} Related parties (continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be
expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity.
3.  Accounting judgements and estimmates

Impairment of investment in a subsidiary

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed by the company at the end of
each reporting period to assess whether there is any indication that investment in a
subsidiary may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated to determine impairment losses on the asset. Changes in facts and
circumstances may result in revisions to the conclusion of whether an indication of
impairment exists and revised estimates of recoverable amounts, which would affect
profit or loss in future years.

4.  Turnover
The principal activity of the company is investment holding.

The company did not generate any income from its investments during the year,

2012 2011
HKD HKD
Dividend income from a subsidiary - 1,223,401
5 Other Revenue
2012 2011
HKD HKD
Interest income 3 12
6.  (Loss)/profit before taxation
{Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:
2012 2011
HKD HKD
Auditor’s remuneration 22.300 ) 7.000

- 16 -
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APPENDIX VIl (C})

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont'd)

7.

Globe Industrial Technology Company Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

Income tax in the statement of comprehensive income

(@) No provision has been made for Hong Kong Profits Tax as the company has no
assessable profit for the current year and the prior year.

No deferred tax assets or liabilities have been recognised as the company has no
significant deductible or taxable temporary differences which would give rise to
deferred tax assets or liabilities.

(b) Reconcilintion between tax expense and accounting (loss)/profit at an
applicable tax rate:

2012 2011
HKD HKD
(Loss)/profit before taxation (300,023) 6,561,892
Notional tax on loss before taxation
calculated at 16.5% (2011:16.5%) (49,504) 1,082,712
Tax effect of non-taxable income (1,191,873)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 49,504 109.161

Actual tax expense - ;

Directors’ remuneration
There is no directors’ remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2012, which is

required to be disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Investment in a subsidiary

2012 2011
HKD HKD
Capital contribution 39,866,949 39,866,949

The company’s partially-owned subsidiary, Deqing Huanzhong Producing Water Co.,
Limited was set up on 28 September 2002 as a co-operative joint venture company. The
company exercise unilateral control over the co-operative joint venture company,

-17 -
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 {Cont'd)

10.

11.

Globe Indystrial Technology Company Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

Investment a in subsidiary (continued)

Particulars of the subsidiary are as follows:

Place of

incorporation/ Percentage of equity interest
registration Particulars of held by held by Principal
Name and operations  paid up capital  the company a subsidiary activities
Deqing Huanzhong  The People’s Republic  USDS,939,000 88.32% - Management and
Producing Water of China (“PRC™) operatien of water
Company Limited production and
distribution of
water

The directors of the company consider that the investment to be valued at cost is
appropriate.

No impairment loss on investment in a subsidiary has been provided as, in the opinion of
the directors, the company’s share of net assets value of the subsidiary would exceed the
company’s cost of investment.

Post-acquisition profits of the subsidiary attributable to the company based on the
audited financial statements of the subsidiary prepared in accordance with the Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles of the PRC are summarised as below:

Current year Prior years Total

Amounts dealt with in the

financial statements of the

company - 7,223,461 7,223,461
Amounts not dealt with in the

financial statements of the

company 8.082,663 8,371,330 16,453.993
Total 8.082.663 15,594,791 23,677.454

Amounts due to ultimate helding company, a sharcholder, and a related company

The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

Capital and reserve
(a} Components of the company’s capital and reserve

The opening and closing balances of each component of the company’s equity and
reconciliation between these amounts are set out in the statement of changes in

cquity.
- 18-
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont'd)

Globe Industrial Technology Company Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

11. Capital and reserve

(b)  Authorised and issued share capital

(¢)

At 3] December 2012 and 2011

No. of shares Amount
Authovised:
Ordinary share of HK$1 each 226,353 111.120
Issued and fully paid:
At 1 January 226,353 111,120
Capitalisation 57.405.601 26.830.483
At 31 December 57.631.954 26.941.603

By resolutions passed by shareholders of the Company on 9 March and 14 May of
2012, the authorised share capital of the Company was increased from
HK$111,120 to HK$226,353 by the issuance of additional 113,000 and 2,233
shares of HK$1.00 per share respectively, These additional new shares rank pari
passu in all respects with the existing shares of the Company.

These 115,233 new additional shares were then allotted to the existing
shareholders at HK$266.333 per share. These total proceeds of HK$30,690,351
were agreed to offset the amount due to Darco Water Technologies Limited.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from
time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the company.
All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to company’s residual assets.

Capital management

The company’s primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
company’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for sharcholders by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost. As the
company is part of a larger group, the company’s sources of additional capital and
policies for distribution of excess capital may also be affected by the group’s
capital management objectives.

The company defines “capital” as including all components of equity.

The company’s capital structure is regularly reviewed and managed with due
regard to the capital management practices of the group to which the company
belongs. Adjustments are made to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions affecting the company or the group, to the extent that these
do not conflict with the directors’ fiduciary duties towards the company or the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The company is not
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR

THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont’d)

12.

13.

Globe Industrial Technology Compaiy Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 Decemnber 2012

Financial risk management and fair values

Exposure to credit and liquidity risks arises in the normal course of the company’s
business. The company’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk management
policies and practices used by the company to manage these risks are described below.

(@)

()

()

Credit risk

The company’s credit risk is primarily attributable to dividend receivable and cash
at bank. The directors consider the company’s exposure to bad debts from
dividend receivable is not significant since the subsidiary is creditworthy.

Bank deposits are normally placed with financial institutions that have a good
credit rating,

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of
cach financial asset in the statement of financial position. The company does not
provide any other guarantees which would expose the company to credit risk.

Liquidity risk

The company’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements, to ensure
that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.

All of the company’s financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period do not
bear interest and are repayable within one year or on demand.

Fair values

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially different from their
fair value as at 31 December 2012.

Material related paréy transactions

There are no material related party transactions during the year.

The outstanding balances at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2012 2017
HKD HKD
Amount due to uitimate holding company
Darco Water Technologies Limited (i) - 30,707,131
Amounts due to a related party company
Darco Water Technologies Limited (1) 254,985 -
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont’d)

13.

14.

15.

Globe Indusirial Technology Company Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

Material related party transactions (continued)

2012 2011
HKD HKD

Amounts due to a shareholder
Fan Ming Chun - 99

The outstanding balances are unsecured, interest free, have no fixed repayment terms and
are included in note 10.

(i) Darco Water Technologies Limited was considered the ultimate controlling party of
the company as at 31 December 2011. However, Darco Water Technologies Limited
was a minority shareholder of Darco Environment Pte Limited which was the
immediate parent of the company as at 31 December 2012. Thus, Darco Water
Technologies Limited was considered a related party of the company.

Litigation

On 9 February 2011, Fan Ming Chun, one of the shareholders of the company, made a
petition in the High Court of Hong Kong against Darco Environment Pte Limited, the
immediate parent of the company in relation to the allotment of 71,120 shares of the
company to Darco Environment Pte Limited in 2010. Fan Ming Chun claimed an order
requiring Darco Environmental Pte Ltd to buy 10,000 shares of the company held by Fan
Ming Chun; or alternatively, an order requiring all the shares of the company held by
Darco Environment Pte Limited to be sold to Fan Ming Chun, at a price to be agreed or
failing agreement to be determined by an independent valuer to be appointed by the
Hong Kong court; and costs incurred by Fan Ming Chun to be borne by Darco
Enviromment Pte Limited. The case is currently ongoing.

At 31 December 2012, the directors of the company are of the opinion that the above
case is concerning the dispute between shareholders of the company, and hence, it is not
required to make any provision of liability in the accounts at this moment.

Immediate and ultimate controlling party

At 31 December 2012, the directors consider the immediate parent of the company to be
Darco Environment Pte Limitfed, which is incorporated in Singapore. The directors
consider the ultimate controlling party of the company to be Salcon Berhad, which is
incorporated in Malaysia. Salcon Berhad produces financial statements prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and Malaysian Financial
Reporting Standards, generally accepted accounting principles and the Companies Act,
1965 in Malaysia available for public use.
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont'd)

L6.

Globe Industrial Techinology Company Limited
Financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2012

Possible ilnpact of amendments, new standards and interpretations issued but not
yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2012

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a number
of amendments, new standards and interpretations which are not yet effective for the
year ended 31 December 2012 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These included the following which may be relevant to the company:

FEffective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements

—Presentation of items of other comprehensive income 1 July 2012
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement 1 January 2013
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments 1 January 2015

The company is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these
amendments is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it has
concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
company’s results of operations and financial position.
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THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012

(Transiated based on the original audited financial statemenis in Chinese)

DEQING HUANZHONG PRODUCING
WATER COMPANY LIMITED

ENGLISH TRANSLATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR 1 JANUARY 2012 TO 31 DECEMBER 2012
IF THERE IS ANY CONFLICT BETWEEN THE CHINESE VERSION
AND ITS ENGLISH TRANSLATION, THE CHINESE VERSION WILL PREVAIL
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND (TS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 {Cont'd)

AUDITORS’ REPORT
B AR T 1301244 5
The Board of Directors of Deqing Huanzhong Producing Water Co., Ltd.:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Deqging Huanzhong Producing
Water Co., Ltd. (“the Company™) on pages 1 to 18, which comprise the balance sheet as at 31
December 2012, and the income and profit appropriation statement and cash flow statement
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements. This responsibility includes: (1) preparing these financial statements in
accordance with Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises (hereinafter represents
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises-Basic Standard issued in 2006 and specific
accounting standards issued before 2006) and Accounting Regulations for Business
Enterprises issued by the Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of China, and fairly
presenting them; (2) designing, implementing and maintaining internal control which is
necessary to enable that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibihity

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with China Standards on Auditing for Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with China Code of Ethics for Certified
Public Accountants, and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider interpal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

VIl (D) - 2
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 {Cont'd)

AUDITORS’ REPORT (continued)
BB R T FF 1301244 5
Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2012, and the financial performance and the cash
flows of the Company for the year then ended in accordance with the requirements of
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises and Accounting Regulations for Business
Enterprises issued by the Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of China.

KPMG Huazhen (Special General Partnership) Certified Public Accountants

Shanghai Branch Registered in the People’s Republic of
China
Shanghai, The People’s Republic of China Tian Chunshan

(TS T ey

Qian Di

Date: 28 March 2013

The accompanying financial statements are not intended to present the financial position and
results of operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices
generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than the People’s Republic of China.
The standards, procedures and practices fo audit such financial statements are those
generally accepted and applied in the People's Republic of China.
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont’d)

Deging Huanzhong Producing Water Co., Ltd.
Balance sheet as at 31 December 2012
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Nofte 2012 2011
Nofe 18
Assets
Current assets
Cash at bank and on hand 5 6,445,301.25 523,378.92
Accounts receivable 6 1,845,000.00 2,722,065.85
Other receivables 7 28,739,502.94 21,561,413.06
Inventories 8 282,437.89 285,479.16
Payments in advance 6.240.00 -
Total current assets 37,318,482.08 25,092,336.99
Fixed assets
Cost 68,226,332.53 68,045,332.53
Less: Accumulated depreciation (31,490,750.71) (26,712.851.40)
Net book value 9 36,735,581.82 41,332,481.13
Construction in progress 10 450.000.00 -
Total fixed assets 37,185,581.82 41,332,481.13
Intangible assets 11 5,420,591.58 5,774,203.14
Total 79.924,655.48 72.199.021.26

The notes on pages 7 to 17 form part of these financial statements.

1 SALOCH BERHAD (523758-1)
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AUDITED FINANCSAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDMARIES FOR
THE FYE 3t DECEMBER 2012 (Cont’d)

Deqing Huanzhong Producing Water Co., Ltd.
Balance sheet as at 31 December 2012 (continued)
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Note 2012 ’ 2011

Note 18
Liabilities and owners’ equity
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 65,485.30 13,518.20
Accrued payroll 166,601.14 110,566.66
Dividends payable 5,906,442.18 5,906,442.18
Taxes payable 4(c) 920,120.53 1,239,424 38
Other creditors 92,701.29 22,994.44
Other payables 511,193.34 187,640.67
Accrued expenses 100,000.00 -

7,762,543.78

Total current liabilities 7,480,586.53

Owners’ equity

Paid-in capital 12 54,941,820.62 54,941,820.62
Surplus reserve 13 3,591,785.27 2,847,417.57
Retained earnings 14 13,628,505.81 6.929,196.54

Total owners’ equity

72,162,111.70

64,718,434.73

79,924,655 .48

72.199.021.26

Total liabilities and owners’ equity

These financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company at
28 March 2013.

-!jm*t“""’?
P
-
i ]
R A
5 v

Thye Kim Meng Mooi Mok Sang Yu fie

Legal Representative The person in-charge of The head of the

the accounting affairs accounting department
(Signature and stamp)  (Signature and stamp)

(Signature and stamp)

The notes on pages 7 to 17 form part of these financial statements.

AT SN BRI A TS
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR

THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont’d)

Deqing Huanzhong Producing Water Co., Ltd.

Income and profit appropriation statement
for the year ended 31 December 2012
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Note

Sales from principal activities 15

Less: Cost of sales from principal activities
Business taxes and surcharges 4(a)

Profit from principal activities

Add: Profit from other operations

Less: General and administrative expenses
Financial expenses

Operating profit

Add: Subsidy income
Less: Non-operating expenses

Profit before income tax

Less: Income tax 4(b)
Net profit for the year

Add: Retained earnings at

the beginning of the year

Profits available for distribution
Less: Statutory surplus reserve 13

Profits available for distribution to owners
Less: Cash profits appropriated to owners

Retained earnings carried forward

2012

21,234,905.70

2011
Note 18

22,004,307.44

(10,454,414.97) (10,881,218.67)
(148.644.27) (150,797.06)
10,631,846.46 10,972,291.71
1,427,949.22 811,569.73
(2,542,059.69) (1,9006,868.36)
3,025.94 3.440.31
9,520,761.93 9,880,433.39
414,140.66 420,032.71
(10,000.00) (10.000.00)
9,924,902.59 10,290,466.10

(2.481.,225.62)

(2,591,358.83)

7.443,676.97

6.929,196.54

7,699,107.27

6,906,442.18

14,372,873.51
(744.367.70)

14,605,549.45
(769.910.73)

13,628,505.81

13,835,638.72
(6.906.442.18)

13,628,505.81

6,929,196.54

The notes on pages 7 to 18 form part of these financial statements.
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR

THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont'd)

Deqing Huanzhong Producing Water Co., Ltd.

Cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 December 2012

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Nofte

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash received from sale of goods

Cash received relating to other
operating activities

Sub-total of cash inflows

Cash paid for goods

Cash paid to and for employees
Cash paid for all types of taxes

Cash paid relating to other operating activities

Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash inflow from operating activities i

Cash flows from financing activities:

Cash received relating to other
investing activities

Sub-total of cash inflows

Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets
and intangible assets

Cash paid for acquisition of investments

Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash outflow from investing activities

4

vill (D) -7

2012

22,111,971.55

2011
Note I8

21,127,241.59

688,999.38

22,111,971.55

(4,907,534.24)
(1,714,762.16)
(3,281,078.43)
(1,013.393.24)

21,816,240.97

(5,273,933.58)
(1,515,904.32)
(2,372,787.23)

(541.651.97)

(10,916,768.07)

(9,704,277.10)

________________

(4,700,000.00)

5.751.75 8,522.80
5,751.75 8,522.80
(579,032.90) (254,254.80)

(13,500,000.00}

(5,279,032.90)

_________________

(13,754,254.80)

________________
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont’d)

Deqing Huanzhong Producing Water Co., Ltd.
Cash flow statement

for the year ended 31 December 2012 (continued)
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Note 2012 2011

Note 18
Cash flows from financing activities:
Cash paid for dividends or profits distribution - (1.000.000.00)
Sub-total of cash outflows - (1,000,000.00)
Net cash outflow from financing activities - (1,000,000.00)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents i 5,921,922 .33 (2,633.768.13)

The notes on pages 7 to 18 form part of these financial statements,

5 SALOON BERHAD (523756-T)
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont'd)

Deqing Huanzhong Producing Water Co., Ltd.
Cash flow statement

for the year ended 31 December 2012 (continued)
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Notes to the cash flow statement

i Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows from operating activities

2012 2011

Note 18

Net profit 7,443,676.97 7,699,107.27
Add: Depreciation of fixed assets 4,777,899.31 4,773,213.89
Amortisation of intangible assets 353,611.56 353,611.56
Increase in accrued expenses 100,000.00 -
Financial expenses (5,751.75) (8,522.80)
Gains arising from investments (1,427,949.22) (811,569.73)
Decrease in gross inventories 3,041.27 76,824.17
Increase in gross operating receivables (179,314.81) (608,099.18)

Increase in operating payables

Others 129.990.15 637,398.69

Net cash inflow from operating activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash at the end of the year
Less: Cash at the beginning of the year

Net increase/(decrease) in cash

11,195,203.48

12,111,963.87

2012

6,445,301.25
(523,378.92)

2011

523,378.92
(3,157.147.05)

and cash equivalents (2,633,768.13)

5,921,922 .33

The notes on pages 7 to 18 form part of these financial statements,

S A AL ENELE A By s
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 {Cont’'d)

Deqing Huanzhong Producing Water Co., Ltd.
Notes to the financial statements
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

1

COMPANY STATUS

Degqing Huanzhong Producing Water Co., Ltd.(the Company) is a co-operative joint
venture established in Deqing County, Zhejiang Province in the People’s Republic of
China (PRC) by Deqing Water Co., Ltd registered in China (Deqing water) and Globe
Industrial Technology Company registered in Hong Kong (HK Globe). The Company
obtained an approval certificate Shang Wai Zi Zhe Fu Zi Hu 7i [2002] No. 00542 on 28
Septermber 2002, and a business license Qi He Zhe Hu Zong Zi No. 001041 on 28
September 2002 issued by Huzhou Administration of Industry and Commerce. The
Company obtained an updated business license of No. 330500400006876 on 19 April
2010. The registered capital is USD 8,939,000, and Deqing Water accounts for 11.68%
while HK Globe accounts for 88.32%.

The Company’s period of operation is 25.5 years, and its principal activities are
producing water centrally and providing sewage treatment operation and services. The
Company was established on 28 September 2002 and commenced its operation of
providing water in April 2006.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been translated into English from the Company’s
statutory financial statements issued in the PRC in Chinese.

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements
are in conformity with Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises-Basic Standard
issued in 2006, specific accounting standards issued before 2006 and the Accounting
Regulations for Business Enterprises, all issued by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC
(MOF). The accounting policies comply with the legal and reporting requirements of
the relevant government authorities.
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Accounting year

The accounting year of the Company is from 1 January to 31 December.

(b} Basis of preparation and measurement basis

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on an accrual basis.
Unless otherwise stated, the measurement basis used is historical cost,

(¢) Functional currency

The Company’s functional currency is the Renminbi.
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont’d)

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

(B

(2)

Translation of foreigh currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into Renminbi at the
exchange rates quoted by the People’s Bank of China and other exchange rates
recognised by the state ruling at the transaction dates.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into Renminbi at the exchange rates quoted by the People’s Bank of China and
other exchange rates recognised by the state ruling at the balance sheet date.

Exchange gains and losses on foreign currency translation, except for the
exchange gain and losses directly relating to the construction of fixed assets (see
note 3(g)), are dealt with in the income statement.

Provision for bad and doubtful debts

The provision for bad and doubtful debts is estimated by management based on
individual accounts receivable which show signs of uncollectibility. Provision for
other receivables is determined based on their specific nature and management’s
estimate of their collectibility.

Inventories
Inventories include raw materials and low value consumables.
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs.
Inventories are measured at their actual cost upon acquisition. The cost of
inventories is calculated using the weighted average method.

Any excess of the cost over the net realisable value of each item of inventories is
recognised as a provision for diminution in the value of inventories. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale
and relevant taxes.

Low value consumables are amortised in two equal instalments when they are first
used and when they have been used up.

Fixed assets

Fixed asscts are assets with relatively high unit values held by the Company for
use in the production of goods. They are expected to be used for more than one
year.

Fixed assets are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (see note 3())).

8 SALCON BERHAD (523738-7)
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 {Cont'd)

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(g)

(h)

@

)

Fixed assets (continued)

All direct and indirect costs that are related to the construction of fixed assets and
incurred before the assets are ready for their intended use are capitalised as
construction in progress. Those costs include borrowing costs (including foreign
exchange differences arising from the loan principal and the related interest) on
specific borrowings for the construction of the fixed assets during the construction
period. Construction in progress is transferred to fixed assets when it is ready for
its intended use.

Fixed assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the shorter period
between their estimated useful lives and concession operation agreement. The
respective estimated useful lives and the estimated rate of residual values on cost
for the Company’s fixed assets are as follows:

Estimated Estimated rate Rate of
useful life  of residual value depreciation
Plant and buildings 20 years 10% 4,5%
Machinery and equipment 10 years 10% 9%
Office and other equipment 5 years 10% 18%
Motor vehicles 5 years 10% 18%

Lease

A lease can be classified as a finance lease or an operating lease. An operating
lease is a lease other than a finance lease. Rental payments under operating leases
are charged as expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (see note 3(j)). The cost of the intangible
assets is amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
amortisation period for the intangible assets is as follows:

Land use right 22 years
Provision for impairment

The carrying amounts of assets (including fixed assets and intangible assets) are
assessed regularly to determine whether their recoverable amounts have declined
below their carrying amounts, Assets are tested for impairment whenever events
or changes in conditions indicate that their recorded carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. When such a decline has occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to
the recoverable amount. The amount by which the carrying amount is reduced is
the impairment loss.
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont'd)

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1),

(k)

O

Provision for impairment (continued)

The recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows arising from the continuous use of the asset and
from the disposal of the asset at the end of its useful life.

Provision for impairment is calculated on an item-by-item basis and recognised as
an expense in the income statement.

If there is an indication that there has been a change in the factors used to
determine the provision for impairment and as a result the estimated recoverable
amount is greater than the carrying amount of the asset, the impairment loss
recognised in prior years is reversed. Reversals of impairment losses are
recognised in the income statement. An impairment loss is reversed only to the
extent of the asset’s carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Income tax

Income tax is recognised when payable under the tax payable method. Income tax
for the year is provided at the applicable tax rate on taxable income.

Revenue recognition

When it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
revenue and costs can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in the income
statement according to the following methods:

(i)  Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of the
ownership of goods have been transferred to the buyers and the Company
retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold.

(ii) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis with reference to
the principal outstanding and the applicable rate.

(iii) Subsidy income

Subsidy income is recognised in the income statement upon receipt of the
subsidy.

10 SALCON BERHAD (£83735-7)
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont'd)

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(m) Retirement benefits

(n)

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the Company has joined
a defined contribution retirement plan for the employees arranged by a
governmental organisation. The Company makes contributions to the retirement
scheme at the applicable rates based on the employees’ salaries. The
contributions are capitalised into cost of assets or charged to the income statement
on an accrual basis. After the payment of the contributions under the retirement
plan, the Company does not have any other obligations in this respect.

Related parties

If the Company has the power, directly or indirectly, to control, jointly control or
exercise significant influence over another party, or vice versa, or where the
Company and one or more parties are subject to common control from another
party, they are considered to be related parties. Related parties may be individuals
or enterprises.

4 TAXATION AND SURCHARGE

(a)

The types of tax and surcharge applicable to the Company’s sale of goods and
other revenue include value added tax (VAT), business tax, urban maintenance
and construction tax, education fee surcharge, local education fee surcharge and
water conservancy construction specific fee, etc.

Tax name Tax basis and applicable rate
VAT Output VAT is 6% of product sales, according
to tax laws, input VAT is not deductible

Business tax 5% of the interest income
Urban maintenance and

construction tax 5 % of the VAT and business tax
Education fee surcharge 3 % of the VAT and business tax
Local education fee surcharge 2 % of the VAT and business tax
Water conservancy construction

specific fee 0.1% of taxable revenue

Business taxes and surcharges include urban maintenance and construction tax,
education fee surcharge, local education fee surcharge and water conservancy
construction specific fee, etc.

11 SALOGH DERHAD (£38756-1)
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 {Cont’d)

4  TAXATION AND SURCHARGE (CONTINUED)

(b) Income tax
Income tax in the income statement represents:
2012 2011
Provision for income tax for the year 2,481,225.62 2,588,379.14
Under provision for income tax
in respect of preceding year - 2.979.69
Total 2,481,225.62 2,591,358.83
The statutory income tax rate of the Company is 25% (2011: 25%).
(c) Taxes payable
2012 2011
VAT payable - 104,433.96 154,079.20
Business tax payable - 40,578.49
Income tax payable 815,551.47 1,044,766.69
Individual income tax payable 135.10 -
Total 920,120.53 1,239.424.38
5 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND
2012 2011
Cash on hand 801.26 46,521.63
Cash at bank 6.444,499.99 476.857.29
Total 6,445.301.25 523,378.92
6 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

The ageing analysis of the Company’s accounts receivable is as follows:

2012 2011
Percentage Provision Percentage Provision
of total Jor bad and of total Jor bad and
aACCOUNIS doubiful aCCOUNLS doubtful
RMB receivable debts RMB receivable debts
Within 1 year 1,843,000.00 100% - 2,722.065.85 _  100% -
12 SALLON BERHAD [523756-7)
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7 OTHER RECEIVABLES

2042 2011

FPercentage Provision Percentage Provision

of total Jor bad and of total Jor bad and

accounts doublful accounts doubiful

RMRB receivable debts RMB  receivable debts

Within 1 year 7,178,089.88 24.98% - 21,544,903.06  99.92% -
After 1 year but

within 2 years 21,544,903.06  74.97% - - 0% -
After 2 year but

within 3 years - 0% - - 0% -

After 3 years 16,510.00 0.05% - 16,510.00 0.08% -

Total 28,739.502,94 100% - 21.561.413.06 100% -

The balance of other receivables over one year is due from related parties and includes
the deposits and the management considers no need to provide bad debt provision. The
Company lent the fund to Deqing Darco Producing Water Co., Ltd. totalling RMB
28,200,000 in 2011 and 2012 and received the payment of RMB 3,500,000 in 2012. The
interest rate of 2012 is 5.6% (2011: 6.31%).

8 INVENTORY

Raw materials

All the above Inventories are purchased from othets.

Cost of inventories charged to costs and
expenses in the income statement

9 FIXED ASSETS

Cost
As at | January 2012
Additions
As at 31 December 2012
Accumulated depreciation
Asat 1 January 2012
Charge for the year
As at 31 December 2012
Carrying amount

Asat 31 December 2012

As at 31 December 2011

2012 2011
282.437.89 285.479.16
2012 2011
414.614.32 411,173.50

Plant and Machinery Electric and
buildings and equipment office equipment Motor vehicles Total
29,742,581.48 37,686,831.05 255,656.00 360,264.00 68,045,332.53
108.,000.00 70,400.00 2,600.00 - 181.000.00
29,850,581.48 37,757,231.05 258,256.0G 360,264.00  68,226,332.53

(7,438,188.48) (18,760,045.62)
(1.342.936.99) _ (3.407.515.74)

(215,122.65)
(4,607.10)

(299,494.65) (26,712,851.40)
(22,839.48) _ (4,777.899.31)

(8,781,125.47) (22,167,561.36)

(219,729.75)

(322,334.13) (31,490,750.71)

Vit (D) - 16

21,069,456 01 __15,589,669.6% 38.526.25 37.929.87 _ 36,735.581.82
22,304.393.00 _ 18926 78543 40.533.25 60,769,335 _ 41.332.481.13
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10

11

12

CONSTRUCTION IN PROFGESS

Including:
Borrowing costs

capitalised

As at 1 January 2012 -
Additions during the year 450.,000.00 -

As at 31 December 2012 450,000.00 -
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Land use rights
Cost
As at 1 January 2012 7,779,454.10
Additions -
As at 31 December 2012 7,779,454.10
Accumulated amortisation
Ag at 1 January 2012 (2,005,250.96)
Charge for the year {353.611.56)
As at 31 December 2012 (2,358,862.52)
Carrying amount
As at 31 December 2012 5,420,591.58
Asat 1 January 2012 5,774,203,14
PAID-IN CAPITAL
Registered capital
2012 & 2011
Amount in
original %
currency
USD
HK Globe 7,894,000.00 88.3%
Deqing Water 1,045.000.00 11.7%
Total £.939.000.00 100%
14 SALCON BERNAD (385756-T)
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont’d)

12 PAID-IN CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Paid-in capital

2012 & 2011

Amount in Amount in

Paid-in capital original currency — RMB equivalent %
USD
HK Globe 7,894,000.00 65,326,718.12 88.3%
Deqing Water 1,045,000.00 8,630,000.00 11.7%
Withdrawn capital in advance
by HK Globe (2,788.589.51) (19,014,897.50)

Total 6,150,410.49 54,941,820.62

Capital contributions in foreign currency have been translated into Renminbi at the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of each contribution received as quoted by the
People’s Bank of China.

Deqing Tiangin Certified Public Accountants have verified the above capital
contributions, and issued the capital verification report of De Tian Kuai Yan (2005)
No.276 on 31 October 2005,

According to the cooperation agreement and approved by Department of Finance of
Zhejiang Province, the foreign investor is permitted to withdraw the investment capital
in advance. Until 31 December 20612, the accumulated capital withdrawn by HK Globe
is RMB 19,014,897.50, amounting to USD 2,788,589.51 at the exchange rate prevailing
at the date of the capital withdrawn as quoted by the People’s Bark of China.

RS EIIREAE A B (O AIRA Y
15 SALOUN BERNALD (E33786-)
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13

14

15

16

SURPLUS RESERVES
General
Reserve fund
As at 1 January 2012 2,847,417.57
Profit appropriation (note 14) 744,367.70
As at 31 December 2012 3,591,785.27
PROFIT APPROPRIATION

In accordance with the Articles of Association, the company made appropriation to
statutory surplus reserve fund based on 10% of net profit.

SALES FROM PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

2012 2011

Producing water revenue 21,234,905.70 22,004.307.44

RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS

(a)

Related parties with controlling relationships

Relationship Types

Registered Principal with the of legal

address aclivities Compary entity

Investment Limited liability

HK Giobe HK holding Investor company

Registered capital of related parties with controlling relationships and its changes

At the beginning At the end
of the year Increase of the year
HK Globe HKD 111,120.00 115,233.00 226,353.00

Equity interests held by related parties with controlling relationships and their
changes

At the beginning At the end

of the year Increase of the vear

Amount %% Amount % Amount %

HK Globe 65,326,718.12 88.3% - 0%  65,326,718.12 88.3%

Less; Withdrawn

capital in advance _(19,014,897.50) {19,014.857.50)
Total 46,311.820.62 .46.311,820.62

16 SALCCH BERHAD (533756-1)
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THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont’d)

16 RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(b) Relationship between the Company and related parties without controlling
relationships

Relationship with the Company

Deqing Darco Producing Water Company Limited
(Deqing Darco) Fellow subsidiaries

{¢) The amounts of the Company’s related party transactions during the year and its
balances with related parties at the year end are summarised as follows:

(1)  The material related-party transactions of the Company are summarised as

follows:
2012 2011

Sales of goods

- Deqing Water 21,234,905.70 22,004,307.44
Lease payments

- Deqing Water 1,400,000.00 1,600,000.00
Borrowings

- Deqing Darco 8,200,000.00 1,350,000.00
Return of borrowings

- Deqing Darco 3,500,000.00 -
Interest income

- Deqing Darco 1,427,949.22 811,569.73

The Board of Directors of the Company is of the opinion that the above
transactions were carried out in the normal course of business and on
normal commercial terms.

(ii) The balances of related party recefvables, and payables are summarised as

follows:
2012 2011
Accounts receivable
- Deqing Water 1,845,000.00 2,722,065.85
Other receibables
- Deqing Water 1,333,333.33 733,333.33
- Deqing Darco 26,939,518.95 20,811,569.73
QOther payables
- Deqing Water 148,333.34 161,666.67
17 SALOCON BERRMAD (833755-1}
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 {Cont’d)

17  COMMITMENTS
(a) Operating lease commitments

As at balance sheet date, the future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases in respect of the leasing of fixed assets were payable

as follows:

2012 2011
Within 1 year 1,400,000.00 1,400,000.00
After 1 year but within 2 years 1,400,000.00 1,400,000.00
After 2 years but within 3 years 1,400,000.00 1,400,000.00
After 3 years 7,666.666.67 9,066.666.67
Total 11,866.666.67 13.266,600.67

18 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The comparative figures of 2011 was audited by Deqing Tiangin Cerfitied Public
Accountants and issued the audit report. In order to meet the requirements of business
development, the company has engaged KPMG Huazhen (Special General Partnership)
Shanghai Branch to provide audit services for the financial statements of 2012, Certain
items in these comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the current
year’s presentation to facilitate comparison.

18 SALCON BEL
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR

THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont'd)
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EH TR 5 % 10% 18%
i

AT AMAATF2ERT. BEMT AR RRTAT b o) s,
BEMFOALLEMTRANKILEEHAATA.

A K

T R AR R I A R A S (BRI 3G e ANE S AR AR
F T P00 A AR A TUOMER FRA R, LW TSRSy

. HiAd R A 22 %
= WAL A

A B ST AR K (03 B R RAY /)R a0 RN, A
FETRELARECHRERT RO M. SALFAXTALELEREA

{8 T e RO 8, X R HE #ATRALR K. FRIRAHER, IkE
MR BARE T I 28, WA ML A 5 SRR %o

TS ARHE SN L MMAE R TR ERAPERFoL R4
E P AT RRAEATOREAE P HERZHE,
A ) 3B B K SRR Kk, SRR At A SR A

do BA & A VAN F BRI FAA S EELETR, /47~
BN E A KT RSN E, NATEECHAN TS BAREELHED,
HEEGFZRAREHASHRE, 2HDELSORANMERE S T4
R IR AR LT 8 R A A
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APPENDIX Vil (D)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND iTS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont’d)

3 AR ECR(E)

(k)

M
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(n)

B 4334,

B B AT BLAOE A e SIPTARBLT M R SR LB R R AL A
it o

BANFRIA

BNRAEGHFABRBANRNE, BB AR NG R A ST K 3§
BE, ARIET 3 A

1)  AEH KA

HERSPRALFSAR LEER R EBLME T,
BN EARGRET HABMB RGBS TIER, LRAT AN
¥ 8 o 5 AL H I T AR A

(i) A B

FEBRNREFERASFERANFHHE, AR A EERIA.
(i) AP M AN

b T N ARAE ST OB 2] &9 A I AR A
1% K38 )

B P B A AR, ANEAR T A T BATRRSHY AR FERIAH R,
ANEBERIIFN—ZrhE, HRKAAIMESR. ERBEERBR T L ER
BRI ANTFRARSIME . BRI NHMAS, RO THEH L L
4t X Zo

RIBEF
do R AN A AL AHEREAEEN . AREHNS —FEHF —FahE Y
wh; B — A A AL LA AR B A ) At Bl R A 8 St A E e E A

Bk, BANALF—FREFAE—FH, WA AR T, ARFT
H AR S
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APPENDIX VIII (D)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND [TS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER. 2012 {Cont’d)

4 Ht, 10 B M he

Ak A

Wl
=]

(@) AN HERM S P R BRI F 8R4 B o 6L B B
WA HA R AL TR Ao, e RE B M KA RS A

AT T AT

AR AL BB R R AR WM 6%t AL,
IR A A 2R AL

2 AL A A GG 5%

BT 43P AL T2 TR B4 AR AL A WABLBL T 09 5%

HF W W Ao 5= IR SR B B AL ALAL T 89 3%

W H 3 M Ae G TR B B AR B Fo B AL T 69 2%

KA EH R A A ko A8 0.1%

FE N EELAE R e, QR YIRS HF WA FHFF M A
Bk A R A

(b)  FrAFHL

A2 A AP 69 BT AT AL LA

2012 4 2011 4
A A e e PR AT A 2,481,225.62 2,588,379.14
L R - 2.979.69
43t 2,481,225.62 2,591,358.83

A 8] A M vk A A 25%AT (2011 25%).

(c) FHIH#H4L

2012 % 2011 %
KL B FEAE AL 104,433.96 154,079.20
R g A, - 40,578.49
I 3R AT 815,551.47 1,044,766.69
JE A AP AR, 135.10 -
A3t 920.120.53 1,239.424.38
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APPENDIX Vil (D)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont'd)

5 wEREe

2012 # 2011 &
4 801.26 46,521.63
SRAT 2k 6.444.499 99 476.857.29
A1 6.445,301.25 523.378.92
6 LM E
I kR #4 H Ae T
2012 & 2011 5
& B4 & B
A5 pb ) kA H 25 b 4] Ik A&
—E VLR 1,845,000.00 _100% - 272206585 _100%
7 HoA ol R
S RO HOR S O AT A F
2012 & 2011 &
& ¥ & ¥
430 | BRE AL A 25 rh 4 HEEf
—ERLA 7.178,089.88 24.98% - 21,544,903.06 99.92%
—5£ o8 21,544,903.06 74.97% - - 0%
ZHEEZ % - 0% . - 0%
- 16,510.00 0.05% - 16510.66 0.08%
oy 28 02,94 100% - 21.561.413.06 100%

= B A B R A R AR T B AT, FREAAALTITRAESE
Al o R F 2011 E4u 2012 S5 T A& 38 B H) ACH M & A AR T 2,820 %
7, F 2012 Sl B iR s AR T 350 H o, 2012 S HEAEA 5.6%2011 %

6.31%).
8  B%
2012 4 2011 &
JE A #H 282.437.89 285,479.16
VA L5 5 ¥ 2 W 3 T
F R A % B P AR A 09 B LA 414.614.32 411,173.50
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APPENDIX ViIl (D)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont'd)
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Bl %

MR
EX R i
A3 o
SR e

E#irm:
L ]

AL RAFE

S ]

e
]
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AEITAE
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A5 o

F RRB
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FR A
FA0 £
AW
S XAB

Rt s
F A
A Fg o

F KA

R
-

Eq A

(7,438,188.48)
(1.342,936.99)

(18,760,045.62)
(3.407.515.74)

A
I E&B g ik & Fibif Ei LA &t
29,742,581.48 37,686,831.05 255,656.00 360,264.00 68,045,332.53
§08.000.00 70,400.00 2,600.00 - 181.000.00
29,850,581.48 37,757,231.05 258,256.00 360,264.00 68,226,332.53

(215,122.65)
{4.607.10)

(299,494.65)
(22.839.48)

(26,712,851.40)
(4.777.899.31)

(8,781,125.47)

(22,167,561.36)

(219,729.75) (322,334.13)  (31,490,750.71)

21,069,456.01

15,589.669.69

3852623 37,929 87 36,735 581,82

22,304,393.00 18,926,785.43
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4053335 60,769.35 41.332.481.13

Hof: HHER
A M

450.000.00 -

450.000.00 -

BN

7,779,454.10

7,779,454.10

(2,005,250.96)
(353,611.56)

(2,358,862.52)

5.420,591.08

5,774,203.14




APPENDIX VIII (D)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont'd)
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13

SR A
2012 $52 2011 %
VEM A il %
#7
BT 7,894,000.00 88.3%
K4 1,045.000.00 11.7%
A3t 8.939.000.00 100%
2012 42011 %
% 7T AR,

Sl A A BT A3 o) %
P 7 7.894.000.00 65,326,718.12 88.3%
i E K% 1,045,000.00 8.630,000.00 11.7%
BRI P T EICT A (2.788.589.51}  (19.014.897.50)

At 6.150.410.49 54,941.820.62

FEEERAREY, ZRTALAREAARTRHRAOLEZRAEF S P
LA RARAT A 630

L SRR AT R EF R FSARIE, ST 20054510 A 31 A AT
K AI(R005)% 276 S AL

ARAE S AF W AE B & B, FH R MET A, SFTAITKRIER
FH, Wk 2012 412 A 31 g F#5F B ATE I AHRART 19,014,897.50
Ft,, i B LAt AR T P A A £ T 2,788,589.51 .

BoA i
Bz kR BAAR
51 8 2,847,417.57
AINEEAT 14 744.367.70
b3 ] 3,.591,785.27
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APPENDIX VIl (D)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont’d)

14 HESE

A 8] Hes 8] FRLH R ARIE AR i 0 10%32 805 & B A0,

15 &AL HMA
2012 2011 %
4 AKOM N 21,234,905.70 22.004,307.44
16 (xBAFARLZS
(a) AAEIEH XA XTEF
A EERF  HAMARAE BiFHASARY
AR s RREER REA A 4]
BRI AR AT EMTARLEL
Sk AR F RH
i #* i 111,120.00 115,233.00 226,353.00
FAEH LR G AR R ERLLEWL
S AEEE ES T
| % 4 % £ 5 %
FHEIP 65,326,718.12 88.3% - 0%  65,326,718.12 88.3%
A EATEER A (19.014,897.50) (19.014,897.50)
4 _46,311,820.62 _46,311,820.62
(b) FRAELEF X RN XKT
B A kA&
PE kS Uil &
1 3 355 KA TR )
(AT R B L) B — 4 ) -4 4]
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APPENDIX VIl (D)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR

THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont’d)

16 HXBHFAALLEE

(€ ARSGAEFTFAERRTHELZNEFRFXAERAR T
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AmEEXRBEFZANERIH I T T

FTAAE B
- 3R H R

W= 1
SRR RS

#] Bl A
- A K

2012 &

21,234,905.70

1,400,000.00

8,200,000.00

3,560,000.00

1,427,949.22

2011 &

22,004,307 .44

1,600,000.00

1,350,000.60

811,569.73

AN EFLUALELHRFEEFTHH LIS FH 5T, Ful—MK
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26,939,518.95

148,333.34

2011 3
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733,333.33
20,811,569.73
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APPENDIX VIII (D)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARGET COMPANIES AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2012 (Cont’d)
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